
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
II. Approval of Agenda

III. Public Comment
IV. Chairman's Remarks
V. Message from the Executive Director

VI. Committee Reports
VII. Presentation and Consideration of New Business

VIII. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports

IX. Monthly Procurement Report

X. Correction and Approval of Minutes

XI. Other Business

XII. Closed Session

XIII. Adjournment

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

May 8, 2018
9:30 a.m.

REGULAR MEETING

Michael A. Bilandic Building
160 North LaSalle Street

Chicago, Illinois 60601

 

Suite S-1000

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 1



Call-In: 888-494-4032 1:30 PM
Passcode: 431 498 6139# 172263

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff

A) Ben Boehne Hoyleton (Washington County) $280,000                        -                          -   PE/LK

B) Tanner J. Radke Crooked Creek (Jasper County) $228,480                        -                          -   PE/LK

C) Levi & Libby Collins Crooked Creek (Jasper County) $224,400                        -                          -   PE/LK

D) Justin K. Kellerman Beacoup (Perry County) $74,700                        -                          -   PE/LK

$807,580                        -                          -   

Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff

2
Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamarro d/b/a PSD 
Printing

Rockford (Winnebago County) $20,000                         2                        -   SL

$20,000                         2                        -   

$827,580                 2                -   

Board Meeting
May 8, 2018
Page 2

NEW BUSINESS

TAX-EXEMPT CONDUIT TRANSACTION PROJECTS

TOTAL TAX-EXEMPT CONDUIT TRANSACTION PROJECTS

1

Private Activity Bonds - Revenue Bonds
Final (One-Time Consideration)

DIRECT AND ALTERNATIVE FINANCING PROJECTS

Participation Loans
Final (One-Time Consideration)

TOTAL DIRECT AND ALTERNATIVE FINANCING PROJECTS

GRAND TOTAL

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 2



.

Tab Staff

3 RF/BF

4 RF/BF

5 RF/BF

6 RF/BF

7 PL

8 EW/RO

Tax-Exempt Conduit Transactions

Resolution Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of the First Amendment to the Bond and Loan Agreement Executed in Connection with the $58,000,000 
Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond, Series 2017 (Cantigny Foundation Project), to provide for Certain Amendments Relating to the Interest Rate 
Calculations and Certain Other Matters; Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of any Other Documents Necessary and Appropriate to Effect the Matters 
Set Forth in such First Amendment; and Authorizing and Approving Related Matters

Direct and Alternative Financings

Resolution Delegating to the Executive Director of the Illinois Finance Authority the Power to Fund and Administer a Loan Program for Deferred Action for 
Childhood Arrivals ("DACA") Applicants to Medical and Dental Schools in Illinois, the "DACA Loan Program," in an Amount Not to Exceed $2,900,000 
and Ratifying Certain Matters Related Thereto

Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of a Second Amended and Restated Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants in 
Connection with the Illinois Finance Authority $9,765,000 Original Principal Amount Variable Rate Demand Affordable Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 
1997 (Cinnamon Lake Towers Project); and Related Matters

Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Not to Exceed $50,000,000 Principal Amount Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2018 
(Chicago Symphony Orchestra); Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a Bond and Loan Agreement, a Tax Exemption Certificate and Agreement and 
Related Documents; and Approving Related Matters

Resolution Consenting to a New Rate, Indexed Put Rate Period and New Indexed Put Date for Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2012 (Carmel Catholic High School) Pursuant to the Terms of the Indenture and Approving of the Reissuance of Said Bonds for Federal Income Tax 
Purposes

Resolution Authorizing Certain Amendments to the Bond Trust Indenture relating to the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue refunding Bonds, Series 2015 
(Riverside Health System), the Proceeds of which were Loaned to Riverside Medical Center, Riverside Senior Living Center and Oakside Corporation

Action

NEW BUSINESS

May 8, 2018
Page 3

RESOLUTIONS

Board Meeting

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 3



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL  60601 
312-651-1300  
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com 

Date:  May 8, 2018 
   
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman Lerry Knox 
 Gila J. Bronner Lyle McCoy 
 James J. Fuentes George Obernagel 
 Michael W. Goetz Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Neil Heller Roger Poole 
 Robert Horne Beth Smoots 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Bradley A. Zeller 
   
 
From:  Christopher B. Meister, Executive Director 
 
Subject: Message from the Executive Director 
 
 
Dear Member of the Authority: 
 
Working towards the Authority’s Transformation  
 
 At our February 2018 meetings, we outlined ambitious plans to expand, diversify and transform 
the Authority’s business lines and revenues.  These plans are essential in the aftermath of serious efforts 
by the United States House of Representatives in late 2017 to eliminate private activity bonds (“PABs” or 
federally tax-exempt conduit bonds), traditionally the primary tool the Authority utilizes to fulfil its 
statutory economic development mission.  I am pleased to report progress on three of the most promising 
proposals to date: (1) PACE, (2) Participation Loans and (3) Public-Private Partnerships and 
Transportation Infrastructure. 
 
Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”) Bonds 
 
 Since early 2007, at least 30 states have adopted some form of PACE enabling legislation but 
only a small number have been successfully implemented.  Commercial PACE programs allow 
commercial property owners to finance or refinance up to 100% of their energy efficiency and renewable 
energy projects on a long-term basis through a voluntary PACE assessment added to their property tax 
bill.  As repayment obligations can seamlessly transfer to any new owner upon sale of the commercial 
property, PACE financings are able to exceed standard commercial lending terms that are typically only 
5-7 years otherwise.  Similarly, the new owner of the commercial property continues to benefit from the 
ongoing savings from the energy efficiency and renewable energy projects. 
 
 While the PACE concept is simple, implementation has proven to be challenging and involves 
complex legal and financial issues.  After having considered a variety of PACE proposals over a number 
of years, in August 2017 Illinois enacted Public Act 100-77 (50 ILCS 50/1 et seq.), a comprehensive and 
landmark framework enabling PACE financings for commercial properties.  Soon afterwards, various 
stakeholders approached the Authority requesting assistance with program implementation.  Working 
with a large number of stakeholders, including the Authority’s longtime legal partners in municipal 
finance, the Authority drafted legislation to draw upon our Public-Private Partnership (“P3”) experience 
to ease the administrative burden of PACE financings and ensure PACE financings are more economical 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 4



 
 
for all small businesses.  Senate Bill (“SB”) 2773, which has no impact on the State Budget and passed 
the Senate 52-0 on May 2, will help fulfill the Authority’s public mission and provide greater opportunity 
for successful PACE implementation in Illinois.  The Authority thanks Senators Pam Althoff and Karen 
McConnaughay for their leadership on SB 2773 as well as the Environmental Law & Policy Center for 
their tireless advocacy on behalf of PACE.  The Authority looks forward to working with SB 2773’s 
House sponsor, Deputy Majority Leader Lou Lang, a longtime proponent of PACE in Illinois.          
 
Sustainable Rejuvenated Participation Loan Program  
 
 A major challenge to the adoption and effectiveness of any financing tool involving governmental 
actors is the perception that the tool may not be available when the lenders and borrowers actually need it.  
The purpose of SB 43 is to address this challenge with respect to the Authority’s rejuvenated participation 
loan program.  SB 43 allows the Authority to use monies from three existing, statutorily-created funds, 
two of which are held by the State Treasurer while one is locally held by the Authority, both for the 
rejuvenated participation loan program and smaller PACE loans.  By increasing the amount of money 
available, the Authority increases the probability that the rejuvenated participation loan program will be 
widely used by lenders to the benefit of potential borrowers, particularly, veteran, minority, female, and 
disabled-owned ventures as well as farmers and others engaged in various types of agribusiness – and a 
variety of Illinois small businesses.   
 
 The Authority thanks Senator Bertino-Tarrant and Representative Natalie Manley for their 
leadership on SB 43.  SB 43 passed the Senate on April 24 on a vote of 52-1 and has been assigned to the 
House Revenue and Finance Committee.  The Authority is also grateful to the Illinois Bankers 
Association, the Illinois Farm Bureau and the Office of the Illinois Treasurer for their consideration of the 
proposal.   
 
 The Authority’s rejuvenated participation loan program continues to be well-received by both 
lenders and borrowers.  Since our April meeting, the Authority has enrolled 3 additional lenders with 2 
more considering the documents, for a total of 10  lenders currently or prospectively participating in the 
program.  Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamaro d/b/a PSD Printing, a Hispanic-owned printing business 
located in Rockford and the second project under the rejuvenated participation loan program, is on 
today’s agenda.  Our team has also initiated its analysis of a lender loan request in support of a woman-
owned, Rockford-based manufacturing company and is anticipating the receipt of a lender loan request in 
support of a veteran-owned venture.    
 
The Authority and Illinois Infrastructure  
 
 In February, the American Society of Civil Engineers issued its “2018 Report Card for Illinois’ 
Infrastructure” and gave the state an overall grade of “C-.”  The Authority continues to be active and 
constructive in the policy discussion to use our tools to help address this insufficient grade.  As part of 
this effort, the Authority contributed to the draft of a comprehensive and innovative plan by the 
Infrastructure Council of the State Chamber of Commerce for financing infrastructure in our state.  The 
result of this collective work is House Bill (“HB”) 5468, sponsored by Representative Margo McDermed.  
Included in a lengthy set of proposals, the Authority’s contributions are (1) allowing the Authority to act 
as a center for competency and capacity for P3’s undertaken by Illinois local governments and (2) a 
proposed State-funded transportation revolving loan fund for transportation infrastructure.  This proposal 
appeared to be well-received by the House Transportation Committee, chaired by Representative Marcus 
Evans, on April 17, 2018.          
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 5



 
 
Strengthening the Authority’s Team 
 
 We recognize that the strength of the Authority’s tools are only as strong as the Authority’s team 
members and its organization.  To this end, we are pleased to highlight progress in the areas below: 
 

 By June 1, 2018, the Authority expects to complete the transition of our employees to a 
new benefits and internal payroll platform from a third-party vendor.  While this 
process is not yet complete, our goal has been to maintain the same quality, choice and 
cost (to both the Authority and its employees) and we are on track to meet these goals.   

 Working through a complex regulatory environment, the Authority is finalizing a 
process to recruit, select and hire several key positions, the first of which is anticipated 
to be the permanent staffing of the rejuvenated participation loan program.  

 Internal audit should be a key resource for management.  After a lengthy effort that 
included an innovative partnership with the Illinois Department of Central 
Management Services (“CMS”), the Authority is in receipt of its first two internal 
audit reports.  More reports pursuant to the Authority’s internal audit plan are 
expected.     

 
  We want to extend a special note of gratitude to Janella Kaczanko who joined us on a part-time 
basis to assist with the benefits/payroll transition and the strengthening of the Authority’s human 
resources function in light of our transformation plans.  Janella will be returning to a full-time position in 
the private sector.  We are very appreciative of her help and we wish her success in the future.   
 
The Business of the Authority 
 
 As we work to transform the Authority, we pledge not to lose focus on the Authority’s core and 
long-time tool to meet its public mission:  federally tax-exempt conduit bonds or PABs.  This means an 
ongoing commitment to work with our borrowers as both bonds, particularly PABs, loans and other 
commitments may evolve over time.  Accordingly, we are pleased to have the Members consider 
resolutions regarding the following PAB projects:  Carmel Catholic High School (Mundelein), Chicago 
Symphony Orchestra, Cantigny Foundation Project, Cinnamon Lake Towers Project, and Riverside 
Health System.  We also are pleased to have four beginning farmer bond projects on the agenda, two in 
Jasper County and one each in Washington and Perry Counties, in addition to a resolution and an update 
regarding the Authority’s pilot DACA loan program for medical students.      
 
 Finally, before the end of May, we expect to report the final resolution of a longstanding and 
large legacy liability to Authority.  As always, I look forward to continuing to work with you in support 
of jobs and financing capital expansion projects throughout our state. 
 
Respectfully,  
 

 
___________________ 
Christopher B. Meister 
Executive Director   

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 6



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
To:  IFA Board of Directors 
 

From:  Patrick Evans and Lorrie Karcher  
 

Date:  May 8, 2018 
 

Re:  Overview Memo for Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 
 

 Borrower/Project Name:  Beginning Farmer Bonds 
 

 Locations:  Throughout Illinois 
 

 Board Action Requested:  Final Bond Resolution for the attached projects 
 

 Amount:  Up to $533,500 maximum of new money for each project 
 

 Project Type:  Beginning Farmer Revenue Bonds 
 
 Total Requested: $807,580 
 
 Calendar Year Summary: (as of May 8, 2018) 

– Volume Cap:  $10,000,000  
– Volume Cap Committed:  $1,832,400 
– Volume Cap Remaining:   $8,167,600 
– Average Farm Acreage:  65 
– Number of Farms Financed: 9 

 
 IFA Benefits: 

–  Conduit Tax-Exempt Bonds – no direct IFA or State funds at risk  
–  New Money Bonds:   

– IFA conveys tax-exempt, municipal bond status onto the financing  
– Will use dedicated 2018 IFA Volume Cap set-aside for Beginning Farmer Bond transactions  

 

 IFA Fees:   
 One-time closing fee will total 1.50% of the bond amount for each project  
 

 Structure/Ratings:  
 Bonds to be purchased directly as a nonrated investment held until maturity by the Borrower’s bank (the 

“Bank”) 
 The Bank will be secured by the Borrower’s assets, as on a commercial loan (typically 1st Mortgage) 
 Interest rates, terms, and collateral are negotiated between the Borrower and the Bank, just as with any 

commercial loan 
 IFA assigns all of its rights to cash flows and security to the Bank 
 Workouts are negotiated directly between the Borrower and Bank, just as on any secured commercial loan 

 

 Bond Counsel: Burke, Burns & Pinelli, Ltd. 
Stephen F. Welcome, Esq. 

 Three First National Plaza, Suite 4300 
 Chicago, IL  60602 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 7



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 2 May 8, 2018 
 Patrick Evans and Lorrie Karcher 
 
 
A. Project Number:  30402 
Borrower(s): Boehne, Ben 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Hoyleton, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $280,000 
Use of Funds: Farmland –80 acres of farmland  
Purchase Price: $560,000 / $7,000 per acre 
% Borrower Equity 5% 
% IFA Bonds 50% (Bank Purchased Bond – Bank secured by 1st Mortgage) 
% USDA Farm Service Agency (“FSA”) 45% (Subordinate Financing – 2nd Mortgage) 
Township: Hoyleton(S) 
Counties/Regions: Washington / Southwestern 
Lender/Bond Purchase: Farmers State Bank of Hoffman / Travis Simpson 
Legislative Districts: Congressional:    15 
 State Senate:       54 
 State House:     108 
 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Thirty-year amortization schedule, with the first 
principal payment date to begin one year from the date of closing. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance thereof shall 
be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin one year from the date of closing with the thirtieth and 
final payment of all outstanding balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 
 
B. Project Number:  30404 
Borrower(s): Radke, Tanner J. 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Newton, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $228,480 
Use of Funds: Farmland –80 acres of farmland  
Purchase Price: $456,960 / $5,712 per acre 
% Borrower Equity 0% 
% IFA Bonds 50% (Bank Purchased Bond – Bank secured by 1st Mortgage) 
% USDA Farm Service Agency (“FSA”) 50% (Subordinate Financing – 2nd Mortgage) 
Township: Crooked Creek 
Counties/Regions: Jasper /Southeastern 
Lender/Bond Purchase: The Peoples State Bank of Newton / Brian Bohnhoff 
Legislative Districts: Congressional:    15 
 State Senate:       55 
 State House:     109 
 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Thirty-year amortization schedule, with the first 
principal payment date to begin on June 1, 2019. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance hereof shall be paid annually, 
with the first interest payment date to begin on June 1, 2019  with the thirtieth and final payment of all outstanding 
balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 
 
C. Project Number:  30405 
Borrower(s): Collins, Levi & Libby 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: Mattoon, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $224,400 
Use of Funds: Farmland –80 acres of farmland  
Purchase Price: $448,800 / $5,610 per acre 
% Borrower Equity 0% 
% IFA Bonds 50% (Bank Purchased Bond – Bank secured by 1st Mortgage) 
% USDA Farm Service Agency (“FSA”) 50% (Subordinate Financing – 2nd Mortgage) 
Township: Crooked Creek 
Counties/Regions: Jasper /Southeastern 
Lender/Bond Purchase: The Peoples State Bank of Newton / Aaron Ochs 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 8



Beginning Farmer Bonds  Final Bond Resolution 
Page 3 May 8, 2018 
 Patrick Evans and Lorrie Karcher 
 
Legislative Districts: Congressional:    15 
 State Senate:       55 
 State House:     110 
 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Thirty-year amortization schedule, with the first 
principal payment date to begin on June 1, 2019. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance thereof shall be paid annually, 
with the first interest payment date to begin on June 1, 2019  with the thirtieth and final payment of all outstanding 
balances due thirty years from the date of closing. 
 
D. Project Number:  30406 
Borrower(s): Kellerman, Justin K. 
Borrower Benefit: First Time Land Buyer 
Town: DuBois, IL 
IFA Bond Amount: $74,700 
Use of Funds: Farmland –18 acres of farmland  
Purchase Price: $74,700 / $4,150 per acre 
% Borrower Equity 0% 
% IFA Bonds 100% (Bank Purchased Bond – Bank secured by 1st Mortgage) 
% USDA Farm Service Agency (“FSA”) 0% (Subordinate Financing – 2nd Mortgage) 
Township: Beacoup 
Counties/Regions: Perry /Southern 
Lender/Bond Purchase: Farmers Merchant Bank & Trust / Gary Zmudzinski 
Legislative Districts: Congressional:    15 
 State Senate:       58 
 State House:     115 
 
Principal shall be paid annually in installments determined pursuant to a Twenty-five year amortization schedule, with 
the first principal payment date to begin one year from the date of closing. Accrued interest on the unpaid balance 
thereof shall be paid annually, with the first interest payment date to begin one year from the date of closing with the 
twenty fifth and final payment of all outstanding balances due twenty five years from the date of closing. 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 9



 
 

May 8, 2018 

                                                        NON-CONDUIT 
$20,000 
HERNON BLANCO & PEGGY CHAMARRO (DBA PSD PRINTING)  (“BORROWERS”) 
PRODUCT TYPE : PARTICIPATION LOAN 

 
REQUEST Rockford Local Development Corporation, (“RLDC”) is requesting that IFA invest $20,000 in funds 

to be used by the Borrowers towards the purchase of real estate located at 2415/2421 North Court St., 
Rockford, IL 61103. The total cost of the real estate is $190,000 plus $2,000 in soft costs. The 
structure being has Midland State Bank (“MSB”) providing a First Mortgage Loan of $152,000, 
supported by a RLDC Second Mortgage Loan for $40,000, in which the Authority will participate 
50%, ($20,000). Currently the Borrowers lease 100% of the space now being purchased, however, as 
RLDC notes, the Borrower’s projected P&I Loan payments would be on a par with what the 
Company now pays in rent.  

The current property owner wishes to sell the real estate, and the Borrowers are concerned that they 
might be forced to vacate the premises. They feel that, in buying the property, they will have more 
control of their work space and be better able to make modifications/additions to accommodate their 
expanding operations and expected growth in employment. 

IFA Funds at risk $20,000 

Subject to all RLDC terms and conditions, including but not limited the subordination of the 
RLDC/IFA $40,000 Loan to MSB’s exposure under its $152,000 CRE Loan.  Note, however, that 
RLDC and IFA will be pari passu relative to their joint Second Mortgage position. 

BOARD ACTIONS Final Participation Loan Resolution 
Voting Record:  None prior 

MATERIAL CHANGES N/A 

JOB DATA 3  Current jobs 2 New jobs projected within next 2 years 

  0 Retained jobs TBD Construction jobs projected 
BORROWER  ●Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamarro (dba PSD Printing)  

DESCRIPTION ● PSD Printing PSD Printing began as a re-sell business focusing on embroidered products, targeting 
Metro Chicago/Rockford markets where Hispanic restaurants and supermarkets were prevalent. They 
have since expanded their market area and product portfolio, to include various printing techniques. 
Products now include menus, caps, uniforms, signage, window decorations, and other commercial 
photography.  

 ● The purpose of this financing is to help finance the purchase of real estate that the Borrower is 
currently leasing. Borrowers need assistance because they have limited equity available to participate 
in purchasing the property. They’ve previously avoided use of a RLOC or term debt, and only used 
cash to purchase equipment/reinvest in the business, thus creating a current need for subordinate 
debt. 

CREDIT INDICATORS Second Mortgage on the RE property at 2415/2421 North Court St., Rockford, IL 61103   

 First Priority Blanket Lien on all non-RE Business Assets of the Borrower, (i.e., machinery) 

PROPOSED  -Rockford Local Development Corporation (“RLDC”) is the Participating Financial Institution. 

STRUCTURE -Second Mtge on RE property at 2415/2421 North Court St, Rockford, IL 61103   

 -1st Priority Lien on all non-RE Business Assets of the Borrower, (incl. machinery) 
 -10yr Amortization Schedule, 5 yr Initial Term, followed by 5 Yr Balloon at the end of Yr 5.  
  -Blended/Weighted Rate 6.75% pa, fixed. RLDC Rate: 7.5% pa Fixed, IFA Rate: 6.0% pa Fixed 
SOURCES AND USES  Midland States Bank Loan $152,000 Real Estate Purchase $192,000 

  RLDC Loan (split $20K each 
Between RLDC and IFA) 

  $40,000  

 TOTAL SOURCES: $192,000 TOTAL USES                  $192,000 

RECOMMENDATION Credit Review Committee recommends approval. 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 10



Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamarro (dba PSD Printing)                      Final Resolution 
Participation Loan May 8, 2018 
Page 2 Stanley Luboff 

 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 

BOARD SUMMARY 
May 8, 2018 

 
Project:       Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamarro (dba PSD Printing) 

STATISTICS 
Project Number:  #38149  (Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamarro (dba PSD Printing)  Amount:   $20,000 
Type:  Participation Loan                                              IFA Staff:   Stanley Luboff 
County/Region:  Winnebago/Northern Stateline                                              City:     Rockford 

BOARD ACTION 
 

Participation Loan Resolution      Staff request:  Approval subject to bank conditions 
 
IFA Funds contributed: $20,000 (50% of Rockford Local Development Corporation $40K Second Mortgage Loan)  
 
Extraordinary condition:  RLDC/IFA $40K Loan is subordinated to $152K First Mortgage CRE Loan from Midland 
States Bank, (“MSB”); however, RLDC and IFA will be pari passu with each other after satisfaction of MSB exposure. A 
Minority (Hispanic) entrepreneur owns the Borrower. Per Program Guidelines IFA’s Interest Rate on its $20K portion is 
set at 1.5% below the rate being charged by RLDC on its own portion. 
  
Credit Review Committee recommends approval. 
  

VOTING RECORD 
None.   This is the first time the project has been considered. 

PURPOSE 

Loan proceeds will be used by the Borrowers towards the purchase of real estate located at 2415/2421 North Court St., 
Rockford, IL  

 

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION 

Under its Participation Loan Program, IFA participates in bank loans financing projects for business, industry, farmers 
and agri-industry.  The Authority will participate in loans for up to 10 years at a rate of interest that is variable or fixed 
for up to 5 years at 100 basis points below the originating bank’s rate on its portion.  (IFA Rate set at 1.5% below 
Participating Lender Rate when Borrower is Veteran, Minority, Female, or Disabled-owned. The Authority is 
subordinated to the bank’s collateral position, and generally funds up to the lesser of 25% of a project’s total cost, 50% 
of a specific loan facility within an overall project, or $500,000, (contingent on no more than $50,000 per FTE to be 
created within the next two years or “at risk” FTE retained). IFA’s participation mitigates some of the bank’s credit risk, 
and provides credit-disadvantaged borrowers with access to capital and a reduced interest rate. 

VOLUME CAP 

Not Applicable  

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Sources: IFA Participation:        $20,000     Uses: Purchase of Building              $192,000              
  Rockford Local Development Corp.      $20,000                        (2415/2421 Court St. Rockford)  
                   Midland States Bank  $152,000               
  Total:                           $192,000  Total:                                     $192,000  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 11



Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamarro (dba PSD Printing)                      Final Resolution 
Participation Loan May 8, 2018 
Page 3 Stanley Luboff 

 
 

FINANCING SUMMARY/STRUCTURE 

Security: The Loan will be secured by a Second Mortgage on the property at 2415/2421 Court St. 
Rockford, (recently appraised for $210,000), and a First Priority Lien on all Business Assets of 
PSD Printing. RLDC/IFA $40,000 Loan will be subordinated to MSB’s exposure under its 
$152,000 CRE Loan, however RLDC and IFA will be pari passu relative each other.  

Structure: 5 year Loan Term with 60 monthly principal and interest payments, (based on a 10 year 
Amortization Schedule), followed by a 5 year Balloon at the end of Year 5. 

Interest Mode:  Fixed  
Maturity Estimated: 5 Years 
Estimated Closing Date:   06/01/18 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Summary: Borrowers are seeking approval for a $40K CRE Term Loan, (to be split 50/50 between Rockford 

Development Corporation and IFA), to be used to complete the financing for the purchase of their current 
leased space at 2415/2421 North Court St., Rockford, IL. The current lessor/property owner wishes to sell the 
real estate in question, and the Borrowers are concerned that they might be forced to vacate the premises 
should some unaffiliated third party purchase it. They feel that, in buying the property, they will have more 
control of their work space and be better able to make modifications/ additions to accommodate their 
expanding operations and expected growth in employment. This 5-year loan, structured using a 10-year 
Amortization Schedule will bear a blended/weighted rate of 6.75% p.a. This loan is meant to supplement the 
$152,000 CRE First Mortgage Loan being extended by Midland States Bank, (“MSB”). MSB is only willing 
to finance a maximum of 80% of the cost of the real estate being purchased.   

Project  
Rationale: PSD Printing is a growing Minority-owned company that has recently developed business outside of its 

target market of Hispanic restaurants and supermarkets, and has now expanded its customer base to virtually 
any business that has advertising needs. IFA participation in this project will help the company expand 
operations and add a minimum of two additional staff to meet demand. (Depending on future demand the 
company will add additional employees as needed.) Though the Company has been profitable over the past 
three years analyzed, they have limited equity available to invest in the purchase of the proposed the real 
estate.  This is because, to date, they have only used cash to purchase equipment and reinvest in the business. 
Management has refrained from requesting any debt financing, (even to the extent that they have not sought 
access to a Working Capital Line of Credit), relying instead on personal credit cards and the reinvestment of 
funds generated from operations to purchase capital equipment. Thus, subordinate financing is required to 
supplement the 80% CRE Loan being provided by Midland States Bank.    

  
Timing: The transaction is expected to close within 60 days of approval. 

BUSINESS SUMMARY 

Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamarro operate PSD Printing, a business originally started by Blanco’s father. Originally the 
company began as a re-sell business focusing on embroidered products, primarily targeting Hispanic restaurants and 
supermarkets in Metro Chicago locations that had a strong Hispanic presence. Due to their high quality results and 
customized service, the business grew rapidly. However, because management sensed that limiting themselves to the 
embroidery business was constraining, they decided to expand into new, but related revenue streams, leading them to 
invest in major capital equipment, including printers that allowed them to enter the screen printing market.  Gradually 
screen printing became the main focus of PSD Printing, with embroidery occupying a lesser role. As their customer base 
continued expanding, requests arose for other related products, and so PSD Printing purchased digital printing 
equipment and started to produce menus, business decorations, and other products produced via digital methods.  The 
company slowly expanded further into digital printing and embroidery, as well as wide format printing, though the pace 
of this growth was constrained by management’s desire to avoid debt financing.  Nonetheless, having multiple revenue 
streams has greatly aided the company in its expansion beyond Rockford, and even far beyond Illinois, (by use of 
broker/agents). Bottom Line:  The Company’s growing and strengthening revenue, and its history of durability despite 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 12



Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamarro (dba PSD Printing)                      Final Resolution 
Participation Loan May 8, 2018 
Page 4 Stanley Luboff 

 
beginning operations at the height of the economic recession, is clear evidence of the dedication and drive that Blanco 
and Chamarro have for their business’ success. 
 
The Lender reports that they were “very impressed with the cleanliness of the building and quality of the equipment”.   
 

OWNERSHIP / ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 

Applicants:  Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamarro (dba PSD Printing)        
Project Location:  2415/2421 North Court St.  
   Rockford, IL 61103 (Winnebago County) 
Borrowers:  Hernon Blanco & Peggy Chamarro  
Ownership:  Hernon Blanco: 100% Owner, Peggy Chamarro (Wife/0% ownership, active in business) 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 

Borrower’s Counsel: Ander Smith Law Firm   Rockford  C. Ander Smith 
Accountant:  N/A       - - -        - - -  
Originating Lender: Rockford Local Development Corp. Rockford  Andrew Jury 
General Contractor: Not Applicable for this project  N/A   N/A 

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS 
Congressional:  17 
State Senate: 34 
State House: 67 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: PSD Printing began as a re-sell business focusing on embroidered products. The 
company targeted markets where Hispanic restaurants and supermarkets were prevalent in the Chicago area. The 
company is a sole proprietorship 100% owned by Hernan Blanco, though his wife Peggy Chamarro is also involved in 
all day to day operations of the business. The business quickly grew through word of mouth, as they were known as a 
high-quality custom embroidery supplier. The company then decided that to tap into additional revenue streams they 
acquired additional printing equipment and invested in other capital expenditures. In 2008, the company purchased a 
screen printing press. Although the company continued to sell embroidered apparel, the screen printing business began 
to see traction and became the focus of the business. 
 
As PSD began to obtain a large customer base, it started to evolve its products and services with its clients’ needs in 
mind. Due to customer requests they started expanding product offerings to meet client demand. They expanded the 
digital business and started to develop menus, business decoration and other digital needs. Since then the company has 
slowly acquired equipment for three types of products: digital printing, wide format printing and embroidery. Having 
multiple revenue streams in three separate categories has greatly aided the company by diversifying its reach into many 
more markets and potential customers. The company provides high quality products while offering businesses a 
complete array of products that are needed from menus, uniforms, signs, window decoration, commercial photography 
of their products for interior decoration, and all their digital printing needs. PSD prides itself on being a one-stop shelf 
for all client needs. The company has also recently grown its business outside of its target market of Hispanic restaurants 
and supermarkets, as now they have expanded are customer base to any business that has advertising needs. 
 
Some of its customers in the Rockford area are Supermercado La Chiquita in Rockford and in the Chicago Area, Mexico 
Clasico, Dunkin Donuts, Lucha Cantina, ML Farm System and others. The company has brokers in Wisconsin, 
Alabama, Tennessee, Georgia and Florida. The business continues to gain customers by word of mouth, through email 
advertising, social media advertisement such as Facebook, and telemarketing. PSD Printing works closely with its 
providers to offer the highest quality products and very competitive prices. The company prides itself on manufacturing 
menus that are made from American made equipment, material and suppliers. The company has made it a point to 
purchase the best brands in equipment, so its customers are receiving the best quality. The company’s commitment to 
quality has formed many long-term business relationships and is now seeking to grow the company. PSD Printing goal 
is to continue growing, generate employment and become a staple name for businesses in the Rockford Region. 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 13



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum  
 

To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Date: May 8, 2018 
 
Re: Resolution Consenting to a New Rate, Indexed Put Rate Period and New Indexed Put Date for Illinois 

Finance Authority Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 (Carmel Catholic High School) Pursuant to 
the Terms of the Indenture and Approving of the Reissuance of Said Bonds for Federal Income Tax 
Purposes  

 IFA Series 2012 File Number:  12112 
 
 
Request: 
 
Carmel Catholic High School, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Borrower” or “Carmel”), and Lake 
Forest Bank and Trust Company (Wintrust Financial) (the “Bank” or “Rate Calculation Agent”) are requesting 
approval of a Resolution to (i) consent to a 6-month extension  of the Initial Indexed Put Rate Period until December 
1, 2027 and (ii) approve the execution and delivery of an IRS Form 8038 to effectuate and acknowledge the deemed 
reissuance of the Authority’s Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 (Carmel Catholic High School) (the 
“Series 2012 Bonds”) as the Borrower and Bank have agreed to waive application of certain provisions of the 
Continuing Covenant Agreement triggered by recent federal corporate tax rate changes (the “Waiver”). 
 
The Series 2012 Bonds were purchased by Lake Forest Bank and Trust Company and closed as of July 10, 2012.  
The Series 2012 Bonds were issued in the original principal amount of $17,000,000 and remain outstanding in full.   
 
On January 13, 2015, the Authority approved a Supplemental Loan Agreement in connection with the Series 2012 
Bonds to permit the Borrower to make the payments required under Section 4.1 of the Original Loan Agreement 
directly to Lake Forest Bank and Trust Company as Lake Forest Bank and Trust Company is the 100% owner of the 
Series 2012 Bonds. 
 
On December 14, 2017, the Authority approved a First Supplemental Bond Trust Indenture between the Authority 
and U.S. Bank N.A., as bond trustee (the “Trustee”) to permit the Borrower to engage the Bank as its Rate 
Calculation Agent (instead of engaging a third party remarketing agent) to certify that the interest rate borne on the 
Series 2012 Bonds which would continue to allow the Series 2012 Bonds to be remarketed at par.  This certification 
was required because the Borrower and Bank agreed to extend the Initial Indexed Put Rate Period by five years to 
July 1, 2027, as consented to by the Authority. 
 
Impact: 
 
Approval of this Resolution will acknowledge the Waiver as agreed to by the Borrower and Bank concerning the 
Series 2012 Bonds.  Specifically, the Borrower and Bank have agreed to enter into the Waiver as a result of recent 
federal corporate tax rate changes that would otherwise increase in the interest rate borne on the Series 2012 Bonds.  
This Waiver will constitute a deemed reissuance of the Series 2012 Bonds which the Authority will acknowledge 
through execution and delivery of a new IRS Form 8038.  Bond counsel has determined that a new public hearing on 
the project (i.e., “TEFRA Hearing” as defined by Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended) will not be necessary.   
 
Additionally, approval of this Resolution will provide consent to again extend the Initial Indexed Put Rate Period for 
an additional 6 months.  As a result, the Series 2012 Bonds will bear a variable rate of interest based on LIBOR until 
December 1, 2027. 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 14



Carmel Catholic High School  Resolution Acknowledging Reissuance and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Providing Further Consent  
Page 2  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
Background: 
 
Proceeds of the Series 2012 Bonds were loaned to Carmel and used, together with certain other funds, to (i) current 
refund the outstanding principal amount of the Illinois Development Finance Authority Adjustable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2003 (Carmel High School Project) (the “Prior Bonds”), (ii) pay or reimburse the Borrower 
for, the payment of the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, remodeling and equipping certain educational 
facilities of the Borrower including but not limited to renovations and add-on construction to create instructional 
space for the fine and performing arts and to create a new library (the “Project”); (iii) fund one or more debt service 
reserve funds, if deemed necessary or advisable by the Borrower; (iv) pay a portion of the interest on the Bonds, if 
deemed necessary or advisable by the Borrower; (v) provide working capital, if deemed necessary or advisable by 
the Borrower; and (vi) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds and the refunding 
of the Series 2003 Bonds (and items (iii) – (vi) together with the “Prior Bonds” and the “Project” comprising the 
“Financing Purposes”). 
 
All payments relating to the Series 2012 Bonds have been paid as scheduled. 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the accompanying Resolution as presented. 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
 

Bond Counsel:  Dentons US, LLP St. Louis, MO Karen Jordan   
Bond Purchaser:  Lake Forest Bank & Trust Co. 
   (Wintrust Financial) Lake Forest, IL Laura B. Crandall 
Bank Counsel:  Dentons US, LLP Chicago, IL Mary G. Wilson 
IFA Financial Advisor:     Sycamore Advisors LLC Chicago, IL Diana Hamilton 
   Courtney Tobin 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-0508-TE03 

 
RESOLUTION CONSENTING TO A NEW RATE, INDEXED PUT RATE 

PERIOD AND NEW INDEXED PUT DATE FOR ILLINOIS FINANCE 

AUTHORITY VARIABLE RATE REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2012 

(CARMEL CATHOLIC HIGH SCHOOL) PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF 

THE INDENTURE AND APPROVING OF THE REISSUANCE OF SAID 

BONDS FOR FEDERAL INCOME TAX PURPOSES 

WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) has been created by the Illinois 
Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1, et.seq., as amended (the “Act”); and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to and in accordance with the provisions of a Bond Trust Indenture dated as 
of July 1, 2012, as supplemented and amended by a First Supplemental Bond Trust Indenture dated as of 
December 1, 2017 (the “Bond Indenture”) between the Authority and U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as bond trustee, on July 10, 2012, the Authority issued its Variable Rate Revenue Bonds, Series 2012 
(Carmel Catholic High School) (the “Series 2012 Bonds”) and loaned the proceeds thereof to CARMEL 

CATHOLIC HIGH SCHOOL, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the “Borrower”) pursuant to and in 
accordance with the provisions of a Loan Agreement dated as of July 1, 2012, as supplemented and 
amended by a First Supplemental Loan Agreement dated as of March 16, 2015 by and between the 
Authority and the Borrower; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2012 Bonds currently remain outstanding in the principal amount of 
$17,000,000; and 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 15



Carmel Catholic High School  Resolution Acknowledging Reissuance and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Providing Further Consent  
Page 3  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
WHEREAS, Lake Forest Bank and Trust Company (“Lake Forest Bank and Trust”) owns 100% of 

the outstanding Series 2012 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of a Continuing Covenant Agreement dated as of July 10, 2012 
between the Borrower and Lake Forest Bank and Trust (the “Continuing Covenant Agreement”), the 
Borrower made certain covenants in connection with and as a condition to the Lake Forest Bank and 
Trust’s purchase of the Series 2012 Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested and Lake Forest Bank and Trust has agreed to waive 
application of certain provisions of the Continuing Covenant Agreement triggered by the recent corporate 
tax rate changes (the “Waiver”); and 

WHEREAS, Dentons US LLP has advised that for federal income tax purposes, the Waiver will 
constitute a modification (within the meaning of U.S. Treasury Regulations §1.1001-3) of the terms of the 
Series 2012 Bonds that will result in a deemed sale or exchange and “reissuance” of the Series 2012 
Bonds ; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to a Written Request (as such term is defined in the Bond Indenture) that has 
been previously provided to and is on file with the Authority, the Borrower has requested that Lake Forest 
Bank and Trust continue holding the Series 2012 Bonds following the Indexed Put Date on July 1, 2027; 
and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to such Written Request and the requirements set forth in Section 
3.01(f)(7)(D) of the Bond Indenture, the Borrower has proposed, and Lake Forest Bank and Trust has 
accepted, that the Series 2012 Bonds continue to bear interest at the LIBOR Index Rate as defined in 
Section 1.01 of the Indenture and the new Indexed Put Date be December 1, 2027; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the requirements set forth in Section 3.01(f)(7)(D) of the Bond Indenture, 
Wintrust Bank, as Rate Calculation Agent, has delivered a certificate (the “Certificate of Rate 
Calculation Agent”), a copy of which has been previously provided to and is on file with the Authority, 
confirming that the proposed interest rate on the Series 2012 Bonds stated therein is an interest rate on 
the Bonds which permits the Bonds to be remarketed at par; and 

WHEREAS, Section 3.01(f)(7)(D) of the Bond Indenture requires that the governing body of the 
Authority consent to the new interest rate, the length of the new Indexed Put Rate Period and the new 
Indexed Put Date. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

Section 1.  Acknowledgment of Reissuance.  The Authority does hereby acknowledge the 
reissuance of the Series 2012 Bonds and does hereby authorize and approve the execution by its 
Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Executive Director and the delivery and use of an IRS Form 8038 in 
connection with the reissuance. 

Section 2.  Further Acts. The Chairman, Secretary, Assistant Secretary and Executive Director 
are authorized to sign all necessary documents on behalf of the Authority to comply with the requirements 
of this Resolution. 

Section 3.  The execution and delivery of the IRS Form 8038 by any officer of the Authority as 
authorized in Section 1 above is expressly conditioned upon the delivery of an Opinion of Bond Counsel 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 16



Carmel Catholic High School  Resolution Acknowledging Reissuance and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Providing Further Consent  
Page 4  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 
(as defined in the Bond Indenture) that the Waiver will not adversely affect the exclusion from federal 
gross income of interest on the Series 2012 Bonds. 

Section 4.  Consent to New Interest Rate, the Length of the New Indexed Put Rate Period 
and the New Indexed Put Date.  As required by Section 3.01(f)(7)(D) of the Bond Indenture and relying 
solely on the Rate Calculation Certificate, the Authority hereby consents to the new interest rate, the 
length of the new Indexed Put Rate Period and the new Indexed Put Date. 

Section 5.  Ratification of Acts.  All of the acts and doings of the members, officials, officers, 
agents and employees of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of this 
Resolution, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and are hereby ratified, confirmed and 
approved. 

Section 6.  Severability. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Resolution shall be 
held to be invalid or ineffective for any reason, the remainder of this Resolution shall continue in full force 
and effect, it being expressly hereby found and declared that the remainder of this Resolution would have 
been adopted despite the invalidity or ineffectiveness of such section, paragraph, clause or provision.  

Section 7.  Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption, and 
any provisions of any previous resolutions in conflict with the provisions hereof are hereby superseded. . 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 17



 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Date: May 8, 2018 
 
Re: Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of not to exceed $46,100,000  Principal Amount Illinois Finance Authority 

Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2018 (Chicago Symphony Orchestra); Authorizing the Execution and Delivery 
of a Bond and Loan Agreement, a Tax Exemption Certificate and Agreement and Related Documents; and 
Approving Related Matters 

 IDFA Series 1994 File Number:  10311 
 IFA Series 2018 File Number: 12424 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Request: 
 
Chicago Symphony Orchestra, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “CSO”, the “Corporation” or the 
“Borrower”) and The Northern Trust Company, an Illinois state banking corporation (together with its permitted 
successors and assigns, the “Bond Purchaser” or the “Bank”), are requesting approval of a Resolution to authorize 
execution and delivery of a Bond and Loan Agreement, a Tax Exemption Certificate and Agreement, and related 
documents to effectuate the refinancing of certain amounts borrowed by the Corporation in connection with the Illinois 
Development Finance Authority Adjustable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 (the “Series 1994 Bonds” or the 
“Prior Bonds”).   
 
The Series 1994 Bonds were issued in the original aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000, of which $46,100,000 
remained outstanding as of April 1, 2017.  On March 29, 2018, the Corporation exercised an option to call and optionally 
redeem $3,900,000 of the Prior Bonds effective as of May 1, 2018, which would reduce the outstanding principal balance 
from $50,000,000 to $46,100,000.  The Prior Bonds are currently secured by a Direct Pay Letter of Credit (“LOC”) from 
The Northern Trust Company, which would otherwise be scheduled to expire as of June 30, 2018.   
 
It is anticipated that The Northern Trust Company will purchase the planned Series 2018 Revenue Refunding Bond to be 
issued by the Authority in an expected amount of $46,100,000 which will fully fund redemption of the Prior Bonds and 
pay costs of issuance.  This transaction will be considered a refunding for tax purposes.  Bond counsel has determined that 
a new public hearing on the project (i.e., a “TEFRA Hearing” as defined under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended) will not be necessary, however.   
 
Impact: 
 
Adoption of the accompanying Resolution will enable the Borrower to switch from a LOC-secured structure to a new 
Bank Direct-Purchase bond structure, thereby minimizing future LOC-pricing risk.  The Northern Trust Company will 
remain the primarily relationship lender for the CSO.  As contemplated, the Series 2018 Revenue Refunding Bond will 
bear interest at a variable rate based on a LIBOR interest rate (or an alternate method or rate comparable to the LIBOR-
based rate in effect prior to its replacement or unavailability) for a term of 10 years (which would coincide with the 
existing final 12/1/2028 final maturity date on the Series 1994 Bonds).   
 
Background: 
 
Proceeds of the IDFA Series 1994 Bonds were loaned to the Chicago Symphony Orchestra and were used to (a) finance 
and be reimbursed for all or a portion of the costs of the acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement and equipping 
of certain and existing facilities constituting an “industrial project” as defined under the Illinois Development Finance 
Authority Act (the “Series 1994 Project”), and (b) pay certain costs relating to the issuance of the Series 1994 Bonds, 
including the credit enhancement thereof.  All scheduled payments relating to the Prior Bonds were current as of 4/1/2018 
and have been paid as scheduled. 
 
Note:  The Resolution is presented beginning on p. 6 of this memorandum (and follows the listing of professionals 
and the CSO board member listing on pp. 2-5). 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 18



  
Chicago Symphony Orchestra  Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Loan Agreement and Related Documents 
Page 2  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 

 

Recommendation: 
 
IFA staff and the Credit Review Committee recommend approval of the accompanying Resolution as presented. 
 
Note regarding Resolution parameters:  although the Resolution provides for a not-to-exceed amount of $50,000,000 and 
a maximum 15-year maturity, the Resolution merely specifies maximum not-to-exceed parameters, the CSO and Bank 
anticipate (i) a $46,100,000 issuance amount and (ii) retaining the existing 12/1/2028 final maturity date in effect with the 
outstanding Series 1994 Bonds.  As a matter of general practice, bond counsel recommend specifying broader parameters 
in Resolutions as an abundance of caution in the event modifications in the anticipated transaction amount or terms are 
deemed necessary or desirable (and also credit-approved by the Bond Purchaser or bank, as applicable).  
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
 

Borrower’s Advisor: Columbia Capital Management, LLC Chicago, IL Courtney Shea, 
     David Abel 
Borrower’s Counsel:  Mayer Brown LLP Chicago, IL  Joanna Horsnail 
     Jeromy Cannon 
Bond Counsel:  Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL  Nancy Burke 
     Leslie Cornell 
Bond Purchaser:  The Northern Trust Company Chicago, IL 
Bank Counsel: Dentons LLP Chicago, IL  Mary Wilson 
Filing Agent: Amalgamated Bank of Chicago Chicago, IL  Michele Martello 
 
Exiting Direct Pay LOC 
  Provider: The Northern Trust Company Chicago, IL 
Exiting Trustee: BNY Mellon Chicago, IL  Kathy Cokic 
Exiting Remarketing 
  Agent: BofA Merrill Lynch New York, NY   
 
IFA Counsel:  Sanchez Daniels & Hoffman LLP Chicago, IL  Heather Erickson 
IFA Financial Advisor: Acacia Financial Group, Inc. Chicago, IL  Phoebe Selden, 
     Siamac Afshar 
 

Chicago Symphony Orchestra Association 
Board of Trustees 

 
Officers of the Board of Trustees of the Chicago Symphony Orchestra Association 
Helen Zell, Chair 
Mary Louise Gorno, Vice Chair 
Robert A. Kohl, Vice Chair  
Paul R. Wiggin, Vice Chair  
W. Robert Reum, Treasurer  
Jeff Alexander, President 

 
Additional Officers (Non-Trustee) 
Karen Rahn, Secretary of the Board 
Isabelle Goossen, Assistant Treasurer 
Karen Lewis Alexander, Vice President for Development 
The Honorable Rahm Emanuel, Honorary Chairman 
The Honorable Bruce Rauner, Honorary Chairman 

 
Honorary Trustees 
The Honorable Richard M. Daley 
Lady Valerie Solti 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 19



  
Chicago Symphony Orchestra  Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Loan Agreement and Related Documents 
Page 3  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 

 

 
Regular and Ex Officio Trustees 
Name   Professional Affiliation 
John Aalbregtse  JA and Associates LLC 
*Elizabeth Adams  President, Chicago Symphony Orchestra Women’s Board 
William Adams IV  Co-President, Nuveen Investments 
M. Cherif Bassiouni  Emeritus Professor of Law, DePaul University  
Randy Lamm   Berlin Lecturer, University of Chicago School of Law  
Laurence O. Booth  Design Principal, Booth Hansen Associates  
Kay Bucksbaum  Philanthropist 
Robert J. Buford  President and CEO, Planned Realty Group, Inc. 
Debra A. Cafaro  Chairman and CEO, Ventas, Inc.  
Marion A. Cameron  President and CEO, Sipi Metals Corp.  
Gregory C. Case  President and CEO, Aon 
David Casper  President and CEO, BMO Harris Bank and Group Head, Commercial Banking 
Bruce E. Clinton  Retired Chairman and CEO of The Clinton Companies 
George P. Colis  Chairman of the Board, Oxford Bank & Trust 
Dr. Christopher L. Culp  Senior Affiliate, Compass Lexecon 
*Timothy A. Duffy – Chairman, CSO  Partner, Kirkland & Ellis 
        Governing Members     
*Mimi Duginger President, Chicago Symphony Orchestra League  
Brian W. Duwe Partner, Skadden, Arps, Meagher & Flom LLP  
Rajiv Fernando CEO, The Chopper Group 
Richard C. Godfrey Senior Partner, Kirkland & Ellis, LLP 
Thomas M. Goldstein Former Senior Vice President & CFO, Protection, Allstate Insurance Company 
Joyce T. Green Civic Leader 
David P. Hackett Managing Partner of the North American Region, Baker & McKenzie, LLP  
Lori Julian Patron of the Arts 
Robert Kohl President, Robert Kohl Company 
Joseph A. Konen Retired President and COO, TD Ameritrade 
Josef Lakonishok CEO and Chief Investment Officer, LSV Asset Management 
Patty Lane Philanthropist 
Mark J. Larson Partner, U.S. Retail and Consumer Leader, KPMG  
John F. Manley President, Chicago City Capital Group 
Beth Mannino Philanthropist 
Mark G. McGrath Director Emeritus, McKinsey & Co. 
David E. McNeel Retired Managing Director, Bessemer Trust Company, N.A.  
Christopher Melvin Chairman and CEO, Melvin & Company 
Sylvia Neil Lecturer, University of Chicago Law School 
Thomas F. O’Toole Senior Vice President, Marketing and Loyalty & President, MileagePlus,  
     United Airlines 
Gerald Pauling Partner, Seyfarth Shaw LLP 
Jose Luis Prado President, Quaker Foods and Snacks North America, PepsiCo 
Dr. Irwin Press Civic Leader/Co-founder, Press Ganey Associates/Professor Emeritus,  
    University of Notre Dame 
Col. Jennifer N. Pritzker Colonel (Retired), Tawani Enterprises, Inc. 
W. Robert Reum Chairman, President and CEO, Amsted Industries 
Burton X. Rosenberg Of Counsel, Seyfarth Shaw 
Kristen C. Rossi Managing Director, Investment Banking Division, Morgan Stanley 
Earl J. Rusnak, Jr Founding Partner, Retired, Harris Associates, L.P.  
E. Scott Santi President and CEO, Illinois Tool Works, Inc. 
Steven E. Shebik Executive Vice President and CFO, The Allstate Corporation and Allstate  
    Insurance Company 
Alejandro Silva Chairman and CEO, Evans Food Group, Ltd.  
Walter Snodell Chairman and CEO, Peerless Industries Inc.  
Scott Swanson President, PNC Bank in Illinois 
Nasrin Thierer Founder and Chief Executive Officer, Revenew Systems LLC 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 20



  
Chicago Symphony Orchestra  Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Loan Agreement and Related Documents 
Page 4  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 

 

Regular and Ex Officio Trustees 
 (continued) 
Liisa Thomas Partner and Chair of the Privacy and Data Security Practice, Winston &  
    Strawn LLP  
Terrence J. Truax Managing Partner, Jenner & Block 
William A. Von Hoene, Jr. Senior Executive Vice President and Chief Strategy Officer, Exelon  
    Corporation 
Frederick H. Waddell Chairman and CEO, Northern Trust Corporation  
Paul R. Wiggin Vice President, McMaster-Carr Supply Company  
Robert Wislow Chairman and CEO, U.S. Equities Realty 

  Helen Zell Executive Director, Zell Family Foundation 
 
*Ex Officio Trustee 
Life Trustees 
Mrs. Robert A. Beatty Civic Leader 
Marshall Bennett Partner, Marshall Bennett Enterprises 
Melvyn Bergstein Chairman, Diamond Management & Technology Consultants 
Arnold M. Berlin Retired Chairman, Norlin Music, Inc.  
William G. Brown Retired Partner, Bell, Boyd & Lloyd 
Dean L. Buntrock Chairman Emeritus, Waste Management, Inc.  
Robert N. Burt Retired Chairman and CEO, FMC Corporation  
Richard Colburn Henley Management Company 
Richard H. Cooper Founder, Cooperfund, Inc. 
James S. Crown President, Henry Crown & Company 
Anthony T. Dean Retired President and Chief Operating Officer, The John Nuveen Company 
Charles Douglas Chairman, Sidley Austin LLP 
John A. Edwardson Retired Chairman of the Board, CDW Corporation 
Thomas J. Eyerman Retired 
James B. Fadim Senior Vice President and General Counsel, Conlon Public Strategies, Inc.  
David W. Fox, Sr. Retired Chairman, The Northern Trust Company 
Richard J. Franke Chairman and CEO Emeritus, John Nuveen & Company 
Cyrus F. Freidheim, Jr Retired President and CEO, Sun-Times Media Group 
H. Laurance Fuller Retired Co-Chairman, BP Amoco Corporation 
Mrs. Robert W. Galvin Civic Leader 
Paul C. Gignilliat Senior Vice President, UBS Financial Services  
Joseph B. Glossberg Senior Partner, Gofen and Glossberg LLC  
William A. Goldstein President, Chesley, Taft and Associates 
Mary Louise Gorno Managing Director, Ingenuity International LLC  
Howard L. Gottlieb General Partner, Glen Eagle Partners, Ltd. 
Mrs. Richard H. Gottlieb Civic Leader 
Chester A. Gougis Managing Partner, Cognitive Capital Partners 
Richard Gray Managing Partner, Richard Gray Gallery 
Mary Winton Green David Green and Mary Winton Green Foundation 
Dietrich Gross Chairman Secretary, Jupiter Aluminum Corp.  
Joan W. Harris Chairman, The Irving Harris Foundation  
John H. Hart Chairman, Hart Davis Hart Wine Company 
Thomas C. Heagy Retired Vice Chairman, LaSalle Bank Corporation 
Jay L. Henderson Retired Vice Chairman, Client Services, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 

Debora de Hoyos Partner, Mayer Brown LLP  

Mrs. Roger B. Hull Civic Leader 
Judith W. Istock Patron of the Arts 
William R. Jentes Alternative Dispute Resolution 
Paul R. Judy Founder and Chairman, Symphony Orchestra Institute 
Richard B. Kapnick Katten & Temple, LLP 
Donald G. Kempf, Jr Retired Executive Vice President, Chief Legal Office of Morgan Stanley 
George D. Kennedy Senior Partner, Berkshires Capital Investors 
Mrs. John C. Kern Civic Leader 
Fred A. Krehbiel Partner, KF Partners, LLC 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 21



Chicago Symphony Orchestra  Resolution Authorizing Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Loan Agreement  
Page 5  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 

 

Life Trustees 
(Continued) 
Charles Ashby Lewis Chairman, Lewis-Sebring Family Foundation 
Eva F. Lichtenberg Clinical Psychologist 
John S. Lillard Retired Chairman, Wintrust Financial Corporation 
Donald G. Lubin Partner, Dentons LLP 
James W. Mabie Principal, William Blair & Company, L.L.C.  
R. Eden Martin Of Counsel, Sidley Austin LLP 
Ling Z. Markovitz Civic Leader 
Arthur C. Martinez Retired Chairman and CEO, Sears, Roebuck & Co.  
Judith W. McCue Retired Partner, McDermott, Will & Emery LLP 
Lester H. McKeever Managing Principal, Washington, Pittman & McKeever 
Newton N. Minow Senior Counsel, Sidley Austin LLP 
John D. Nichols Retired Vice Chairman, Marmon Group, Inc.  
James J. O'Connor Retired Chairman and CEO, Unicom Corporation  
William A. Osborn Retired Chairman, The Northern Trust Company  
Mrs. Albert Pawlick Civic Leader 
Jane DiRenzo Pigott Managing Director, R3 Group LLC 
John M. Pratt Managing Director, Merrill Lynch Investment Banking 
Mrs. Neil K. Quinn Volunteer Council, American Symphony Orchestra League 
John M. Richman Retired Counsel, Wachtell, Lipton, Rosen & Katz 
John W. Rogers, Jr. Chairman and CEO, Ariel Investments  
Jerry Rose Retired Vice Chairman, Jones Lang LaSalle  
Frank A. Rossi Chairman, FAR Holdings Company, L.L.C.  
Cynthia M. Sargent Philanthropist 
John R. Schmidt Partner, Mayer Brown LLP 
Thomas C. Sheffield, Jr.            Partner, Kenosha Trading Company  
Rita Simó                                  Founder, The People’s Music School  
Robert C. Spoerri                     President and CEO, Beneficial Reuse 
Carl W. Stern Vice Chairman Investment Banking, Goldman Sachs 
Roger W. Stone Chairman and CEO, KapStone Paper and Packaging Corporation 
William H. Strong Retired Co-CEO Asia Pacific, Morgan Stanley 
Louis C. Sudler, Jr. Retired Chairman, Sudler & Co. Real Estate 
Richard L. Thomas Retired Chairman, First Chicago NBD Corporation 
Richard P. Toft Former Chairman and CEO, Chicago Title & Trust Company 
Penny Van Horn Patron of the Arts 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK] 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 22



Chicago Symphony Orchestra  Resolution Authorizing Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Loan Agreement  
Page 6  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 

 

 
RESOLUTION 2018-0508-TE04 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT TO EXCEED $50,000,000 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE REFUNDING 

BOND, SERIES 2018 (CHICAGO SYMPHONY ORCHESTRA); AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT, A TAX 

EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE AND AGREEMENT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS; AND 

APPROVING RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority, a body politic and corporate duly organized and validly existing 

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (the “Authority”), including without limitation the Illinois 

Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq. (as supplemented and amended, the “Act”), is authorized by the 

laws of the State of Illinois, including without limitation, the Act, to issue its revenue bonds for the purposes set 

forth in the Act and to permit the expenditure of the proceeds thereof to finance or refinance the cost of “projects” 

(as such term is defined in the Act), including the refunding of any outstanding bonds previously issued for such 

purpose; and 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Development Finance Authority (a predecessor to the Authority) has heretofore 

issued its Variable/Fixed Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 1994 (Chicago Symphony Orchestra Project) (the 

“Series 1994 Bonds”) in the original aggregate principal amount of $50,000,000, and loaned such proceeds of the 

Series 1994 Bonds to Chicago Symphony Orchestra, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the “Corporation”); and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation used proceeds of the Series 1994 Bonds to finance the acquisition, construction, 

refurbishment, installation and equipping of certain new and existing facilities, all constituting an “industrial 

project,” as defined in a predecessor to the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation has requested that the Authority issue its Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2018 

(Chicago Symphony Orchestra), in a principal amount not to exceed $50,000,000 (the “Series 2018 Bond”), and 

loan the proceeds from the sale thereof to the Corporation pursuant to a Bond and Loan Agreement (the “Bond and 

Loan Agreement”) among the Authority, the Corporation and The Northern Trust Company (the “Purchaser”); and 

WHEREAS, the Corporation will apply the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2018 Bond to refund and 

redeem all of the outstanding Series 1994 Bonds (the “Financing Purposes”); and 

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purposes set forth in the Act, the Authority wishes to issue the Series 2018 

Bond and loan the proceeds from the sale thereof to the Corporation pursuant to the Bond and Loan Agreement in 

order to carry out the Financing Purposes; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2018 Bond and the obligation to pay principal, premium, if any, and interest thereon 

will be special, limited obligations of the Authority, payable solely out of the revenues and income derived from the 

Bond and Loan Agreement; the Series 2018 Bond and the obligation to pay interest thereon shall not be deemed to 

constitute an indebtedness, a general or moral obligation, or a pledge of the full faith and credit of the Authority, the 

State of Illinois or any political subdivision thereof within the purview of any constitutional limitation or statutory 

provision or a charge against the general credit or taxing powers, if any, of any of them; and neither the Purchaser 

nor any future owner of the Series 2018 Bond shall have the right to compel any exercise of the taxing power, if any, 

of the Authority, the State of Illinois or any political subdivision thereof to pay any principal or purchase price of, 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 23



Chicago Symphony Orchestra  Resolution Authorizing Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Loan Agreement  
Page 7  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 

 

premium, if any, or interest on the Series 2018 Bond; and no recourse shall be had for the payment of the principal 

of, premium, if any, and interest on the Series 2018 Bond or for any claim based thereon or upon any obligation, 

covenant or agreement contained in the Bond and Loan Agreement against any past, present or future member, 

officer, agent or employee of the Authority, or any incorporator, member, officer, employee, director or trustee of 

any successor corporation, as such, either directly or through the Authority or any successor corporation, under any 

rule of law or equity, statute or constitution or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise; and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Series 2018 Bond, the Corporation and the Purchaser will 

execute and deliver a Continuing Covenant Agreement containing, among other provisions, certain additional 

covenants to be made by the Corporation to the Purchaser; and  

WHEREAS, in connection with the issuance of the Series 2018 Bond, it is now necessary and proper to 

authorize the execution and delivery of (i) the Bond and Loan Agreement, (ii) the Filing Agent Agreement (as 

hereinafter defined), (iii) a Tax Exemption Certificate and Agreement (the “Tax Agreement” and, collectively with 

the Bond and Loan Agreement and the Filing Agent Agreement, the “Authority Documents”) between the Authority 

and the Corporation and (iv) the Other Documents (as hereinafter defined); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has caused to be prepared and presented to its members a form of the Bond and 

Loan Agreement, including the form of Series 2018 Bond attached thereto as Exhibit A; 

NOW, THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the members of the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

 Section 1. Recitals.  That the foregoing recitals are incorporated in and made a part of this Resolution 

by this reference. 

 Section 2. Findings.  That based upon the representations of the Corporation, the Authority hereby 

makes the following findings and determinations with respect to the Corporation, the Series 2018 Bond to be issued 

by the Authority and the facilities to be refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bond: 

 (a) The Corporation is a not for profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of 

Illinois and is qualified to do business in the State of Illinois; 

 (b) The Corporation is a “cultural institution” (as defined in the Act); 

 (c) The Corporation has properly filed with the Authority its request for assistance in 

providing funds to the Corporation and the funds will be used for the Financing Purposes, and the facilities 

refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bond are owned and operated by the Corporation and such 

facilities are included within the term “project” as defined in the Act;  

 (d)  The Series 1994 Bonds to be refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2018 Bond were 

issued for purposes which constitute valid purposes under the Act; all of the proceeds of such indebtedness 

made available to the Corporation were expended to pay, or refinance indebtedness the proceeds of which 

were expended to pay, a portion of the cost of a “project” (as defined in the Act) owned or operated by the 

Corporation; and such refinancing is in the public interest, and is permitted and authorized under the Act; 

and 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 24



Chicago Symphony Orchestra  Resolution Authorizing Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Loan Agreement  
Page 8  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 

 

 (e) The Series 2018 Bond is being issued for a valid purpose under and in accordance with 

the provisions of the Act.  

 Section 3. Approval of Financing.  That issuance of the Series 2018 Bond and the use of the proceeds 

from the sale thereof to carry out the Financing Purposes, in accordance with the terms of the Bond and Loan 

Agreement, is hereby authorized and approved and is in furtherance of the public purposes set forth in the Act. 

 Section 4. Series 2018 Bond.  That, in order to provide funds to carry out the Financing Purposes, the 

Authority hereby authorizes and approves the issuance of the Series 2018 Bond, to be designated the “Illinois 

Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2018 (Chicago Symphony Orchestra).”  The total principal 

amount of the Series 2018 Bond that may be outstanding shall not exceed $50,000,000; that the form of Series 2018 

Bond now before the Authority, subject to appropriate insertions and revisions in order to comply with the 

provisions of the Bond and Loan Agreement be, and the same hereby are, approved; that the Series 2018 Bond shall 

be executed in the name, for and on behalf of the Authority with the manual or facsimile signature of its Chairman, 

Vice Chairman or Executive Director (and for purposes of this Resolution, any person duly appointed to any such 

office on an acting or an interim basis) and attested with the manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any 

Assistant Secretary and the seal of the Authority shall be impressed or imprinted thereon; that the Chairman, Vice 

Chairman, Executive Director or any other officer of the Authority shall cause the Series 2018 Bond, as so executed 

and attested, to be delivered to the Purchaser under the Bond and Loan Agreement, for authentication; and that when 

the Series 2018 Bond is executed on behalf of the Authority in the manner contemplated by the Bond and Loan 

Agreement and this Resolution, it shall represent the approved form of the Series 2018 Bond; provided that (i) the 

Series 2018 Bond will bear interest at variable rates or fixed rates as described in the Bond and Loan Agreement 

(with an initial variable rate not to exceed 5.00% per annum) subject to adjustment, as provided for and pursuant to 

the Bond and Loan Agreement, (ii) the Series 2018 Bond shall be payable over a term not exceeding fifteen (15) 

years from the date of issuance and (iii) the Series 2018 Bond shall be privately placed with the Purchaser. 

The interest rate on the Series 2018 Bond may be subject to adjustment to (i) a higher rate per annum upon 

the occurrence of an Event of Default, as further described in the Bond and Loan Agreement, or (ii) a taxable rate 

after the occurrence of a Determination of Taxability, as defined and further described in the Bond and Loan 

Agreement. 

The Authority hereby authorizes each of the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director, General 

Counsel or any Assistant Executive Director (and, for purposes of this Resolution, any person duly appointed to any 

such office on an acting or an interim basis) of the Authority (each, an “Authorized Officer”) to make a final 

determination as to the principal amount, interest rates, maturities, mandatory sinking fund redemption dates and 

amounts (if any), optional and extraordinary redemption provisions (if any), and uses of the proceeds from the sale 

of the Series 2018 Bond.  The execution by an Authorized Officer of the Bond and Loan Agreement shall constitute 

such Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s approval of the final terms and provisions of the Series 2018 

Bond. 

The Series 2018 Bond, including the interest and any redemption premium payable thereon, shall be a 

limited obligation of the Authority, payable solely from the income and revenues to be derived by the Authority 

pursuant to the Bond and Loan Agreement (except pursuant to Unassigned Rights (as defined in the Bond and Loan 

Agreement)).  The Series 2018 Bond and the interest thereon shall never constitute a general obligation or 

commitment by the Authority to expend any of its funds other than (i) the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2018 

Bond, (ii) the income and revenues derived by the Authority pursuant to the Bond and Loan Agreement (except 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 25



Chicago Symphony Orchestra  Resolution Authorizing Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Loan Agreement  
Page 9  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 

 

pursuant to Unassigned Rights), (iii) other amounts available under the Bond and Loan Agreement and (iv) moneys 

arising out of the investment or reinvestment of such proceeds, income, revenues or receipts. 

 Section 5. Bond and Loan Agreement.  That the Authority is hereby authorized to enter into the Bond 

and Loan Agreement with the Corporation and the Purchaser; that the form, terms and provisions of the Bond and 

Loan Agreement be, and they hereby are, in all respects approved; that the Authorized Officers of the Authority be, 

and each of them hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to execute, and the Secretary or any Assistant 

Secretary of the Authority be, and each of them hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to attest to and to 

affix the official seal of the Authority to, the Bond and Loan Agreement in the name, for and on behalf of the 

Authority, and thereupon to cause the Bond and Loan Agreement to be delivered to the Corporation, such Bond and 

Loan Agreement (as executed) to provide for the loan of the proceeds from the sale of the Series 2018 Bond to the 

Corporation and the use of such proceeds to carry out the Financing Purposes, in the manner and with the effect 

therein provided; that the Bond and Loan Agreement shall be in substantially the same form previously provided to 

and on file with the Authority and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as any Authorized Officer of the 

Authority shall approve, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval of any and all 

changes or revisions from such form of the Bond and Loan Agreement; that when the Bond and Loan Agreement is 

executed, attested, sealed and delivered on behalf of the Authority as herein provided, the Bond and Loan 

Agreement will be binding on the Authority; that from and after the execution and delivery of the Bond and Loan 

Agreement, the officers, employees and agents of the Authority are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to 

do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and 

comply with the provisions of the Bond and Loan Agreement as executed; and that the Bond and Loan Agreement 

shall constitute, and hereby is made, a part of this Resolution, and a copy of the Bond and Loan Agreement shall be 

placed in the official records of the Authority and shall be available for public inspection at the office of the 

Authority. 

 Section 6. Tax Agreement.  That the Authority is hereby authorized to enter into the Tax Agreement 

with the Corporation in the form to be approved by bond counsel, by counsel for the Corporation and by counsel to 

the Authority; that the Authorized Officers of the Authority be, and each of them hereby is, authorized, empowered 

and directed to execute and deliver the Tax Agreement as so approved; that when the Tax Agreement is executed 

and delivered on behalf of the Authority as herein provided, the Tax Agreement will be binding on the Authority; 

and that from and after the execution and delivery of the Tax Agreement, the officers, employees and agents of the 

Authority are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such 

documents as may be necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the provisions of the Tax Agreement as 

executed. 

 Section 7. Filing Agent Agreement.  That the Authority is hereby authorized to enter into the Filing 

Agent Agreement (the “Filing Agent Agreement”) with the Corporation and Amalgamated Bank of Chicago, as the 

Filing Agent; that the form, terms and provisions of the Filing Agent Agreement be, and they hereby are, in all 

respects approved; that the Authorized Officers of the Authority be, and each of them hereby is, authorized, 

empowered and directed to execute, and the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority be, and each of 

them hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to attest to and to affix the official seal of the Authority to, the 

Filing Agent Agreement in the name, for and on behalf of the Authority, and thereupon to cause the Filing Agent 

Agreement to be delivered to the Corporation and the Filing Agent; that the Filing Agent Agreement shall be in 

substantially the same form now before the Authority or with such changes as any Authorized Officer of the 

Authority shall approve, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval of any and all 

changes or revisions from the form of the Filing Agent Agreement now before the Authority; that when the Filing 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 26



Chicago Symphony Orchestra  Resolution Authorizing Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Loan Agreement  
Page 10  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 

 

Agent Agreement is executed, attested, sealed and delivered on behalf of the Authority as herein provided, the Filing 

Agent Agreement will be binding on the Authority; that from and after the execution and delivery of the Filing 

Agent Agreement, the officers, employees and agents of the Authority are hereby authorized, empowered and 

directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary or desirable to carry 

out and comply with the provisions of the Filing Agent Agreement as executed; and that the Filing Agent 

Agreement shall constitute, and hereby is made, a part of this Resolution, and a copy of the Filing Agent Agreement 

shall be placed in the official records of the Authority and shall be available for public inspection at the office of the 

Authority. 

 Section 8. Other Documents.  That the Authorized Officers and any other officer of the Authority be, 

and each of them hereby is, authorized to (i) execute and deliver such documents, certificates and undertakings of 

the Authority, including but not limited to, any supplemental indentures or escrow deposit agreements relating to the 

refunding of the Series 1994 Bonds, or any other documentation necessary to effect the Financing Purposes 

(collectively, the “Other Documents”), (ii) approve the execution and delivery of such other documents, certificates 

and undertakings of other parties, including, without limitation, the Corporation and the Purchaser and (iii) take such 

other actions as may be necessary or required in connection with carrying out and complying with this Resolution, 

the issuance and sale of the Series 2018 Bond and the Financing Purposes and/or the execution, delivery and 

performance of the Authority Documents and the Other Documents; and that all of the acts and doings of the 

Authorized Officers which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of this Resolution, whether heretofore or 

hereafter taken or done, shall be and hereby are authorized, ratified, approved and confirmed.  

 Section 9. Private Placement; Investment Letter; Restrictions on Transfers.  That the Authority 

hereby authorizes the issuance and sale of the Series 2018 Bond to the Purchaser on a private placement basis 

pursuant to the Bond and Loan Agreement; that the Purchaser shall deliver an investment letter to the Authority (in 

the form approved by counsel to the Authority and consistent with the Authority’s Bond Program Handbook) 

stating, among other things, that the Purchaser is either an institutional “accredited investor” within the meaning of 

Regulation D, Sections 501 through 506, or a “qualified institutional buyer” within the meaning of Rule 144A, 

under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended; and that the Bond and Loan Agreement shall contain such 

restrictions, as counsel to the Authority shall reasonably determine are necessary or advisable, on the transfer of the 

Series 2018 Bond by the Purchaser or by any accredited investor or qualified institutional buyer to which the 

Purchaser transfers the Series 2018 Bond. 

 Section 10. Conditions to Effectiveness.  That the approvals granted by the Authority pursuant to this 

Resolution are subject to the Authority Documents and any other document required to carry out and comply with 

this Resolution being in full conformance with the requirements of the Authority (including the Authority’s Bond 

Program Handbook), except as expressly approved by counsel to the Authority or the Executive Director (and, for 

purposes of this Resolution, any person duly appointed to any such office on an acting or an interim basis) of the 

Authority, the satisfaction of such condition to be evidenced by an Authorized Officer’s execution and delivery of 

such documents. 

 Section 11. Other Acts.  That all acts of the officers, employees and agents of the Authority which are 

in conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution be, and the same hereby are, in all respects, ratified, 

approved and confirmed. 

 Section 12. Severability.  That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable, 

and if any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such declaration shall 

not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of this Resolution. 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 27



Chicago Symphony Orchestra  Resolution Authorizing Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds  Loan Agreement  
Page 11  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 

 

 

 Section 13. No Conflict.  That all resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are 

hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 14. Effective Date.  That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its 

passage, as by law provided. 

 

 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 28



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum  
 
To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Date: May 8, 2018 
 
Re: Resolution Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of the First Amendment to the Bond and Loan 

Agreement Executed in Connection with the $58,000,000 Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond, Series 
2017 (Cantigny Foundation Project), to Provide for Certain Amendments Relating to the Interest Rate 
Calculations and Certain Other Matters; Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Any Other Documents 
Necessary and Appropriate to Effect the Matters Set Forth in such First Amendment; and Authorizing and 
Approving Related Matters 

 IFA Series 2017 File Number: 12408 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Request: 
 
Cantigny Foundation, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Borrower”, “Cantigny”, or the “Foundation”) 
and MB Financial Bank, N.A. (the “Bond Purchaser” or the “Bank”), are requesting approval of a Resolution to 
authorize execution and delivery of a First Amendment to the Bond and Loan Agreement in order to provide certain 
amendments to the interest rate formula in order to simplify the calculation of the interest rate formula with no intent 
to materially change in the interest rate on the Series 2017 Bond. 
 
Impact: 
 
The Resolution will amend the interest rate computation formula that is used to determine the applicable interest rate 
on the Series 2017 Bond.  The Borrower and MB Financial Bank have requested consideration of the attached 
Resolution that will amend (and simplify) the interest rate computation formula, with no intent to materially change 
the interest rate on the Series 2017 Bond.   
 
According to Bond Counsel, the subject First Amendment (i) will not materially change the interest rate, (ii) will not 
result in a reissuance for tax purposes, (iii) will not require a TEFRA Hearing Notice, and (iv) will not require the 
delivery of a legal opinion from the Authority’s external counsel on this matter.   
 
Background: 
 
The Series 2017 Bond was issued in the aggregate principal amount of $58,000,000 in December 2017.  The Series 
2017 Bond provided for a draw-down structure, under which Cantigny would be authorized to undertake draws to 
undertake various projects on its campus anticipated over approximately the next 6 years.  The improvements 
included various capital improvement projects in connection located on the Cantigny Park campus located at 1s151 
Winfield Road, Wheaton (DuPage County), Illinois.  Bond proceeds are to be used by the Foundation to finance or 
reimburse all or a portion of the costs of planning, design, acquisition, construction, renovation, improvement, 
expansion, and equipping of its facilities and site, including (i) the First Division Museum; (ii) the Robert R. 
McCormick House Museum and facilities, and (iii) improvements at Cantigny Park including construction or 
renovation and equipping of pavilions, restrooms, construction of a playground, improvements of the ponds, 
gardens, picnic areas, and landscaping, stormwater management and site, parking lot, and lighting improvements.   
 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the accompanying Resolution (see pp. 2-4) as presented. 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 29



Cantigny Foundation  Resolution Authorizing First Amendment to Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bond  Loan Agreement  
Page 2  May 9, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
 
Board Membership: Board of Trustees – Cantigny Foundation (Note: the same 5 board members also comprise 

the Board of the Robert R. McCormick Foundation, which together with the Cantigny 
Foundation comprise a consolidated financial reporting entity) 

 Dennis FitzSimons – Chairman 
 John Madigan 
 Ruthellyn Musil 
 Scott Smith 
 Don Wycliff 
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
 
Borrower’s Counsel: Quarles & Brady LLP Chicago, IL John Vail  
Auditor: GrantThornton LLP Chicago, IL  
Bond Counsel: Quarles & Brady LLP Milwaukee, WI Liz Blutstein 
Purchasing Bank: MB Financial Bank Rosemont, IL John Sassaris, 
     Chicago, IL Jessica Redman 
Bank Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL Carol Thompson. 
      Katharine Gale 
First Division Museum 
  Design: Luci Creative  Lincolnwood, IL A.J. Goehle 
Architect: Sasaki Associates, Inc. Watertown, MA 
General Contractor: Pepper Construction Barrington, IL Lance Tritsch 
IFA Counsel: Ice Miller LLP Chicago, IL Jim Snyder, 
     Mark Huddle, 
     Austin Root 
IFA Financial Advisor: Sycamore Advisors LLC Indianapolis, IN Diana Hamilton 
    Chicago, IL Olyvia Jarmoszka   
 

VOTING RECORD – FINAL BOND RESOLUTION – SEPTEMBER 14, 2017 
 

Yeas:   11 
Nays:  0 
Present: 0 
Abstentions: 0 
Vacancy: 1 
 
Excused Absences:  3 (Obernagel, Poole, Zeller) 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2018-0508-TE05 
 

RESOLUTION Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of the First Amendment to 
the Bond and Loan Agreement Executed in Connection with the $58,000,000 
Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond, Series 2017 (Cantigny Foundation 
Project), to Provide for Certain Amendments Relating to the Interest Rate 
Calculations and Certain Other Matters; Authorizing the Execution and Delivery 
of Any Other Documents Necessary and Appropriate to Effect the Matters Set 
Forth in such First Amendment; and Authorizing and Approving Related Matters. 

 

WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) has been created by the Illinois Finance 
Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1, et seq., as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously issued its $58,000,000 Revenue Bond, Series 2017 (Cantigny 
Foundation Project) (the “Series 2017 Bond”) and loaned the proceeds thereof to Cantigny Foundation, an Illinois 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 30



Cantigny Foundation  Resolution Authorizing First Amendment to Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bond  Loan Agreement  
Page 3  May 9, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
not for profit corporation (the “Borrower”), in order to assist the Borrower in providing the funds necessary to (i) 
finance, or reimburse the Borrower, for all or a portion of the costs of the planning, design, acquisition, construction, 
renovation, improvement, expansion and equipping of the facilities and site, including without limitation 
improvements to Cantigny Park, McCormick House and the First Division Museum, and (ii) pay certain expenses 
incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2017 Bond, all as permitted under the Act (collectively, the 
“Financing Purposes”); and  

WHEREAS, the Authority, the Borrower and MB Financial Bank, N.A. (the “Purchaser”) entered into a 
Bond and Loan Agreement dated as of December 1, 2017 (the “Indenture”) providing for the issuance thereunder of 
the Series 2017 Bond and the loan of the proceeds of the Series 2017 Bond to the Borrower and setting forth the 
terms and provisions applicable to the Series 2017 Bond, including the pledge of the revenues from the Borrower as 
security for the Series 2017 Bond and the Authority’s rights in and to the Indenture; and 

WHEREAS, the Series 2017 Bond currently bears interest at a variable rate determined pursuant to an 
interest rate formula set forth in the Indenture; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrower and the Purchaser have proposed certain amendments to the interest rate formula 
in order to simplify the calculation with no intent to materially change the interest rate on the Series 2017 Bond; and 

WHEREAS, there has been provided to the Authority the First Amendment to Bond and Loan Agreement 
(the “Amendment”) to effect the amendments to the Indenture. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

Section 1.  Findings.  Based solely on the representations made by the Borrower, the Authority hereby 
makes the following findings and determinations with respect to the Borrower, the Series 2017 Bond issued by the 
Authority and the facilities to be financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2017 Bond: 

(a) The Borrower is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of 
Illinois and is qualified to do business in the State of Illinois; 

(b) The Borrower has properly filed with the Authority its request for assistance in providing funds to 
the Borrower which the Borrower will use for the purposes aforesaid; 

(c) The facilities to be financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Series 2017 Bond do not 
include any property used or to be used for sectarian instruction or as a place of religious worship nor any 
facility which is used or to be used primarily in connection with any part of the program of a school or 
department of divinity for any religious denomination or the training of ministers, priests, rabbis or other 
professional persons in the field of religion; and 

(d) The Series 2017 Bond was issued for a valid purpose under and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act. 

Section 2.  Amendment.  The Authority does hereby approve the amendments and authorizes and 
approves the execution (by manual or facsimile signature) by an Authorized Officer (as defined below) of the 
Amendment.  The Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority is hereby authorized to attest and to affix the 
official seal of the Authority to the Amendment.  The Amendment shall be substantially in the form previously 
provided to and on file with the Authority and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall be approved 
by the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the same, with such execution to constitute conclusive 
evidence of such person’s approval and the Authority’s approval of any changes or revisions therein from such form 
of the Amendment to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s approval and the Authority’s approval of the 
terms of the Amendment for the Series 2017 Bond.  The Authority hereby delegates to the Chairperson, Vice 
Chairperson, Executive Director, General Counsel or any person duly appointed by the Members to serve in such 
offices on an interim basis (each, an “Authorized Officer”), the power and duty to make the final determination as to 
the amendments to the interest rate formula set forth in the Amendment, all within the parameters set forth herein. 

Section 3.  Limited Obligation.  Except as otherwise set forth in the Amendment, the Indenture shall 
remain in full force and effect and there shall no change to the pledge or security for the Series 2017 Bond.  The 
Series 2017 Bond and the interest thereon shall be limited obligations of the Authority, payable solely from the 
income and revenues to be derived by the Authority pursuant to the Indenture (except such income and revenues as 
may be derived by the Authority pursuant to the Unassigned Rights (as defined in the Indenture)).  The Series 2017 
Bond and the interest thereon shall never constitute a general obligation or commitment by the Authority to expend 
any of its funds other than (i) proceeds of the sale of the Series 2017 Bond, (ii) the income and revenues derived by 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 31



Cantigny Foundation  Resolution Authorizing First Amendment to Bond and  
501(c)(3) Revenue Bond  Loan Agreement  
Page 4  May 9, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
the Authority pursuant to the Indenture and the Series 2017 Bond and other amounts available under the Indenture 
and (iii) any money arising out of the investment or reinvestment of said proceeds, income, revenue or receipts. 

Section 4.  Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts.  The Members, officers, agents and 
employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute or accept 
all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of these resolutions, the 
Indenture and the Amendment, and all of the acts and doings of the Members, officers, agents and employees of the 
Authority which are in conformity with the intent and purposes of these resolutions and within the parameters set 
forth herein, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed 
and approved.  Unless otherwise provided therein, wherever in the Indenture or Amendment or any other document 
executed pursuant hereto it is provided that an action shall be taken by the Authority, such action shall be taken by 
an Authorized Officer of the Authority, or in the event of the unavailability, inability or refusal of an Authorized 
Officer of the Authority, any two Members of the Authority, each of whom is hereby authorized, empowered, and 
delegated the power and duty and directed to take such action on behalf of the Authority, all within the parameters 
set forth herein and in the Indenture. 

Section 5.  Severability.  The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable, and if any 
section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such declaration shall not affect the 
validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of this Resolution. 

Section 6.  Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are hereby 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 7.  Effectiveness.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage, as 
by law provided. 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 32



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum  
To: IFA Board of Directors 
 
From: Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Date: May 8, 2018 
 
Re: Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of a Second Amended and Restated Regulatory Agreement 

and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants in Connection with the Illinois Development Finance Authority, 
as predecessor to Illinois Finance Authority, $9,765,000 Original Principal Amount Variable Rate Demand 
Affordable Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 1997 (Cinnamon Lake Towers Project); and Related Matters 

 IDFA/IFA File Number:  1551-HB       
______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background: 
 
In October 1997, the Illinois Development Finance Authority (IDFA; a predecessor of the Illinois Finance 
Authority) issued $9,765,000 of Affordable Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 1997.   
 
Proceeds of the Series 1997 Bonds were combined with equity generated from the sale of 4% Low Income Housing 
Tax Credits and owner equity to finance the acquisition and substantial rehabilitation of the 274-unit Cinnamon 
Lake Towers rental housing project located at 2701 Glen Flora, Waukegan (Lake County), Illinois (Cinnamon 
Lake Tower Project; or the “Project”).  The Project was originally constructed in 1980.  Unlike most IFA (IDFA) 
affordable housing bond projects, however, the Project has also had tenant-based HUD Section 8 Housing 
Assistance Payment contracts (the “HAP Contracts”) on 115 of the 274 units in place through the life of the Series 
1997 Bonds. 
 
The 1997/2007 Regulatory Agreement (IFA/Project Owner/Bond Trustee): 
 
As is customary with all tax-exempt bond financed projects, the 1997 bond documents included a three-party 
Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (the “1997 Regulatory Agreement”) between 
(i) IDFA (succeeded in interest by IFA), (ii) Lake Towers Associates II, an Illinois limited partnership (the current 
project owner or “Existing Owner”), and (iii) Bank of New York, as Bond Trustee.  (The Regulatory Agreement 
assures that a minimum specified number of units in the Project will be leased to income-eligible tenants (adjusted 
for family size).) 
 

 In September 2007, the 1997 Regulatory Agreement was amended pursuant to An Amended and Restated 
Regulatory Agreement (the “First Amended Regulatory Agreement” or the “Existing Regulatory 
Agreement”), which was a change necessitated when the Existing Owner changed the provider and form 
of Credit Enhancement securing the Series 1997 Bonds. 

o More specifically, the Existing Owner switched from a Direct Pay Letter of Credit (from JP 
Morgan Chase Bank) to a Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (“Freddie Mac”) credit 
facility.   

o The ongoing Borrower compliance requirements continued, however, essentially unchanged.    
 
Concept of “Qualified Project Period” for any Project Regulatory Agreement 
 
As with any affordable rental housing project that (i) is financed with tax-exempt bonds or (ii) equity derived from 
the syndication of Low Income Housing Tax Credits, or (iii) receives contractual unit-based HUD Housing 
Assistance Payments (i.e., HAP Contract subsidies), the Regulatory Agreement shall remain in effect until the end 
of the “Qualified Project Period”.   

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 33



Cinnamon Lake Towers Project  Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of a Second Amended and  
Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds  Restated Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants 
Page 2  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Customary terms contained in essentially all Regulatory Agreements (including the Existing Regulatory 
Agreement) specify that the Qualified Project Period will not expire until the latest date on which one of the 
following three events occur: 
 

1. 15 years after the date on which the Project first attains 50% occupancy (the “15-year Test”).   
 Given that the Project was an existing Project that was to be substantially rehabilitated; this 15-

year period had expired by 2013. 
2. The first date on which no principal balance of the IDFA Series 1997 Bonds is outstanding.   

 This is expected to occur upon sale of the Property by the Existing Owner to the Successor Owner.  
The Existing Owner is expected to apply proceeds of the sale to redeem the IDFA (IFA) Series 
1997 Bonds in full. 

3. The date on which any assistance provided with respect to specified units of the Project under Section 8 of 
the Housing Act (e.g., the HAP Contracts) terminates. 

 Notwithstanding the proposed payment in full of the Series 1997 Bonds, because the Project will 
remain subject to the HAP Contracts, the Existing Regulatory Agreement will, by its terms, 
remain outstanding (and until the HAP Contracts on the Property terminate).   

 The underlying HAP Contracts on the Project are subject (prospectively) to further extension by 
the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development assuming the Section 8 HAP Program 
continues to be funded in the future annual federal budgets.  (The existing HAP Contracts on the 
Project continue until 2020.) 

 
Request – For IFA to Enter into a Second Amended and Restated Regulatory Agreement to Enable the 
Successor Owner to Assume the Existing Owner’s Obligations under the Existing Regulatory Agreement: 
 
The Existing Owner of the Project (Lake Towers Associates II, an Illinois limited partnership) is proposing to sell 
the Project to a successor owner (Cinnamon Lake Towers Associates, LP, an Illinois limited partnership; the 
“Successor Owner”). 
 
Because the Successor Owner will be assuming the Existing Owner’s obligations under the Existing Regulatory 
Agreement, it is necessary for the Successor Owner, the Authority, and the Bond Trustee to enter into a Second 
Amended and Restated Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (the “Second Amended 
Regulatory Agreement”).  
 
The Second Amended Regulatory Agreement will also (i) release the Existing Owner from the Existing Regulatory 
Agreement (ii) provide for the consent of the Authority to the sale of the property, and (iii) provide for consent of 
the Bond Trustee.  (Note:  Zions Bank will be replacing BNY Mellon as a party to this Second Amended Regulatory 
Agreement upon sale of the Project to the Successor Owner.)   
 
Key terms in the Second Amended Regulatory Agreement with the Successor Owner: 
 
The Second Amended Regulatory Agreement will provide that the Successor Owner provide the Authority with all 
the standard indemnification provisions that would be provided by the Existing Owner pursuant to the Loan 
Agreement.   
 
Representatives of the Successor Owner have consented to including these indemnification provisions in the Second 
Amended Regulatory Agreement.   
 
Additionally, the Authority will be charging the Successor Owner a fee (amount to be determined as of 5/2/2018) at 
closing in consideration for IFA’s ongoing contractual obligation in connection with the Second Amended 
Regulatory Agreement.   
 
Finally, we also understand that the Successor Owner will be financing their acquisition and rehabilitation of the 
Project with a new tax-exempt bond issue supplemented with equity generated from the syndication of 4% Low 
Income Housing Tax Credits.   Consequently, the Successor Owner will also be executing a separate 2018 
Regulatory Agreement (with substantially the same requirements as the Second Amended Regulatory Agreement) in 
connection with the new Upper Illinois River Valley Development Authority Series 2018 Bonds and the 4% LIHTC 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 34



Cinnamon Lake Towers Project  Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of a Second Amended and  
Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds  Restated Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants 
Page 3  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
financing.  IFA will not be a party to the new, 2018 Regulatory Agreement (which will be between the Successor 
Owner, the local issuer, and Zions Bank, as Bond Trustee on the Series 2018 Bonds).    
 
Recommendation: 
 
IFA staff recommends approval of the accompanying Resolution as presented. 
 

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT 
 

Primary Contact Information: 
 
Existing Owner - Cinnamon Lake Towers Project:  Lake Towers Associates II, an Illinois limited partnership, 
c/o Mr. Dennis R. Egidi, DRE, Inc., 800 S. Milwaukee Ave., Suite 179, Libertyville, IL 60048 
 
Successor Owner – Cinnamon Lake Towers Project:  Cinnamon Lake Towers Associates, LP, an Illinois limited 
partnership, c/o Mr. Barry L. Weinstein, Synergic, Inc.,707 Skokie Blvd., Suite 100, Northbrook, IL 60062 (Counsel 
to the Successor Owner/Purchaser is identified below)  
 

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL 
 
Bond Counsel: Greenberg Traurig LLP Chicago, IL Matt Lewin 
Counsel to Purchaser: Sugar Felsenthal Grais &  
      Helsinger LLP Chicago, IL Henry Krasnow 
Tax Counsel to Purchaser: Sugar Felsenthal Grais &  
      Helsinger LLP Chicago, IL Doug Antonio 
Successor Trustee on  
Second Amended 
Regulatory 
Agreement: ZB, National Association 
     d/b/a Zions Bank Chicago, IL Daryl Pomykala  
   (Zions Bank is also the new UIRVDA Series 2018 Bond Trustee) 
 
Existing Bond Trustee under  
1997 Reg. Agrmt.: U.S. Bank, N.A. Chicago, IL 
 
IFA Counsel: Kutak Rock LLP Chicago, IL Kevin Barney 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2018-0508-TE06 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A SECOND 

AMENDED AND RESTATED REGULATORY AGREEMENT AND DECLARATION OF 

RESTRICTIVE COVENANTS IN CONNECTION WITH THE ILLINOIS FINANCE 

AUTHORITY $9,765,000 ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT VARIABLE RATE 

DEMAND AFFORDABLE HOUSING REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 1997 (CINNAMON 

LAKE TOWERS PROJECT); AND RELATED MATTERS. 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority, a body politic and corporate duly organized and validly existing 

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (the “Authority”), including without limitation the Illinois 

Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1, as supplemented and amended (the “Act”), is authorized by the laws of 

the State of Illinois, including without limitation the Act, to issue its bonds for the purposes set forth in the Act and 

to permit the expenditure of the proceeds thereof to defray, among other things, the cost of the acquisition and 

improvement of “industrial projects” as defined in the Act; and 

WHEREAS, Lake Towers Associates II Limited Partnership, an Illinois limited partnership (the “Existing 

Owner”), entered into a Loan Agreement dated as of October 1, 1997 with the Illinois Development Finance 
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 35



Cinnamon Lake Towers Project  Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of a Second Amended and  
Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds  Restated Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants 
Page 4  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Authority, a predecessor to the Authority (hereinafter also referred to as the “Authority”), under which proceeds of 

the Authority’s $9,765,000 original principal amount Variable Rate Demand Affordable Housing Revenue Bonds, 

Series 1997 (Cinnamon Lake Towers Project) (the “Bonds”) were loaned to the Existing Owner to finance costs of 

acquisition of a multifamily housing apartment development located at 2701 Glen Flora, Waukegan, Illinois (the 

“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Bonds, the Authority, the Existing Owner and The Bank of New York, as 

Trustee, entered into a Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants dated as of October 1, 1997 

(the “1997 Regulatory Agreement”) setting forth certain restrictions necessary to satisfy the requirements of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); 

WHEREAS, on September 17, 2007, the Existing Owner caused there to be issued an Alternate Credit 

Facility by Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation in support of the Bonds and, in connection therewith, certain 

amendments with respect to the Bonds were entered into, including an amendment and restatement of the 1997 

Regulatory Agreement pursuant to an Amended and Restated Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive 

Covenants dated September 17, 2007 (the “First Amended Regulatory Agreement”) among the Existing Owner, 

U.S. Bank National Association, as successor to The Bank of New York, as Trustee (the “Trustee”) and the 

Authority; and 

WHEREAS, the Existing Owner is proposing to sell the Project to Cinnamon Lake Towers Associates, LP, 

an Illinois limited partnership (the “Successor Owner”) and, simultaneously therewith, repay in full the Bonds with 

the proceeds of the sale and other available moneys; and 

WHEREAS, notwithstanding the proposed payment in full of the Bonds, the Existing Regulatory Agreement 

will, by its terms, remain in effect until the end of the “Qualified Project Period” as defined therein; and 

WHEREAS, with the payment in full of the Bonds and the discharge of the indenture under which the Bonds 

were issued, the Successor Owner has selected ZB, National Association, dba Zions Bank, as agent (the “Agent”), to 

assume the obligations of the Trustee under the Existing Regulatory Agreement, as amended by the Second 

Amended Regulatory Agreement (defined below); and 

WHEREAS, it is necessary and desirable that the Successor Owner, the Authority and the Agent enter into a 

Second Amended and Restated Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants (the “Second 

Amended Regulatory Agreement”) in order to effect the Successor Owner’s assumption of the Existing Owner’s 

obligations thereunder, the release of the Existing Owner and the consent of the Authority thereto; and 

WHEREAS, a form of the Second Amended Regulatory Agreement is before the Authority at this meeting; 

and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY, AS 

FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Second Amended Regulatory Agreement, in substantially the form presented at this 

meeting and containing substantially the terms and provisions set forth therein, is hereby authorized, approved and 

confirmed, and the forms, terms and provisions of the Second Amended Regulatory Agreement are hereby 

approved, with such changes and revisions therein as shall be approved by the officers of the Authority executing 

and attesting the same, their signatures thereon to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval, and the 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 36



Cinnamon Lake Towers Project  Resolution Authorizing Execution and Delivery of a Second Amended and  
Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds  Restated Regulatory Agreement and Declaration of Restrictive Covenants 
Page 5  May 8, 2018 
  Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher 
 
Chairperson, the Vice Chairperson, the Executive Director, General Counsel, or any person duly appointed by the 

Members to serve in such offices on an interim basis (each an “Authorized Officer”) of the Authority are hereby 

each individually authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Second Amended Regulatory Agreement to the 

other parties thereto and, as necessary, the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the Authority are hereby authorized to 

attest the Second Amended Regulatory Agreement (to the extent execution and/or attestation is so required). 

Section 2. The Authorized Officers referenced in Section 1 hereof are hereby each individually 

authorized and directed to execute, attest, seal and deliver any and all documents and do any and all things deemed 

necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Second Amended Regulatory Agreement, the release and/or 

termination of any other documents relating to the Bonds, and to carry out the intent and purposes of this Resolution, 

including the preambles hereto. 

Section 3. All acts of the officials of the Authority which are in conformity with the purposes and 

intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the amendments referenced herein be, and the same hereby are, in all 

respects, approved and confirmed. 

Section 4. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable and if any section, 

phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the 

remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions. 

Section 5. All resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of 

such conflict. 

Section 6. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its passage, as by law 

provided. 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 37



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 

Memorandum 
 
 

To: IFA Board of Directors 

From: Pam Lenane, Executive Vice President 

Date: May 8, 2018 

Re: Riverside Health System is requesting the Authority to enter into a First Supplemental 
Bond Trust Indenture in order to amend the Bond Trust Indenture dated as of October 1, 
2015 between the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as 
bond trustee, for the purpose of making certain modifications to the Bond Indenture in 
order to amend certain provisions relating to the calculation of interest on the Series 2015 
Bonds and the term-out provisions, if deemed necessary and/or desirable by Riverside 
Medical Center, Riverside Senior Living Center, Oakside Corporation, and DNT Asset 
Trust, the original purchaser and the current owner, of the Series 2015 Bonds (the 
“Bondholder”). 

Also, the Borrowers, the Bondholder and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., as bondholder 
representative, will be entering into an amendment to the Continuing Covenant 
Agreement to make certain changes to the repayment provisions for the Series 2015 
Bonds, which the Borrowers are requesting the Authority to approve. 

 IFA staff recommends approval of the accompanying Resolution. 
 
 

 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 38



 
 

 
Riverside Health System_Amendment Resolution for Series 2015 Bond Trust Indenture - Part 2.doc 
1121102 

IFA RESOLUTION NO. 2018-0508-TE07 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE BOND TRUST INDENTURE 
RELATING TO THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2015 
(RIVERSIDE HEALTH SYSTEM), THE PROCEEDS OF WHICH WERE LOANED TO RIVERSIDE 
MEDICAL CENTER, RIVERSIDE SENIOR LIVING CENTER AND OAKSIDE CORPORATION. 

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created by, and exists 
under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act; and 

WHEREAS, on October 14, 2015, the Authority issued its Illinois Finance Authority 
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2015 (Riverside Health System) (the “Series 2015 Bonds”) 
with an authorized principal amount of $37,165,000; and 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2015 Bonds were loaned to Riverside Medical 
Center, a not for profit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Illinois (the 
“Medical Center”), Riverside Senior Living Center, a not for profit corporation incorporated 
under the laws of the State of Illinois (the “Living Center”), and Oakside Corporation, a not for 
profit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Illinois (“Oakside” and, together 
with the Medical Center and the Living Center, the “Borrowers”), pursuant to three separate 
Loan Agreements, each dated as of October 1, 2015, between the Authority and each of the 
Borrowers; and 

WHEREAS, the Borrowers have requested that the Authority and DNT Asset Trust, the 
original purchaser and the current owner, of the Series 2015 Bonds (the “Purchaser”), consent to 
the amendment of the Bond Trust Indenture dated as of October 1, 2015 (the “Existing Bond 
Indenture”), between the Authority and The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as 
bond trustee (the “Bond Trustee”), relating to the Series 2015 Bonds, in order to amend Sections 
202 and 205 of the Existing Bond Indenture and certain defined terms used therein to modify the 
method of calculating the Private Placement Floating Rate (as defined in the Existing Bond 
Indenture) for each Private Placement Rate Period (as defined in the Existing Bond Indenture) 
and, if deemed necessary and/or desirable by the Borrowers and the Purchaser, the term out 
provision of the Existing Bond Indenture (together, the “Existing Bond Indenture 
Amendments”); and 

WHEREAS, in connection with the Existing Bond Indenture Amendments, the Borrowers 
and the Purchaser will make certain amendments to the Continuing Covenant Agreement dated as 
of October 14, 2015 (the “Existing Continuing Covenant Agreement”) among the Borrowers, 
Riverside Health System (the “Corporation”), the Purchaser and J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A., 
as the bondholder representative (the “Bondholder Representative”), relating to the Series 2015 
Bonds, in order to modify certain of the repayment provisions contained therein for the Series 
2015 Bonds (the “Existing Continuing Covenant Agreement Amendments”); and  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 39



-2- 

WHEREAS, a draft of the First Supplemental Bond Trust Indenture between the Authority 
and the Bond Trustee (the “First Supplemental Bond Trust Indenture”) describing the Existing 
Bond Indenture Amendments has been previously provided to the Authority and is on file with the 
Authority; 

NOW THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 

 Section 1. First Supplemental Bond Trust Indenture.  The Authority does hereby 
authorize and approve the execution by its Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, any of its other 
Members, Executive Director, Treasurer or any officer or employee designated by the Executive 
Director or the Members (each an “Authorized Officer”) and the delivery of the First 
Supplemental Bond Trust Indenture.  The First Supplemental Bond Trust Indenture shall be 
substantially in the form on file with the Authority and hereby approved, or with such changes 
therein as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the same, with 
such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and the 
Authority’s approval of any changes or revisions therein from such form of the First Supplemental 
Bond Trust Indenture, and to constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s 
approval and the Authority’s approval thereof. 

Section 2.  Existing Continuing Covenant Agreement Amendments.  The Authority does 
hereby authorize and approve the execution of an instrument containing the Existing Continuing 
Covenant Agreement Amendments among the Borrowers, the Purchaser, the Corporation and the 
Bondholder Representative (the “Amended Continuing Covenant Agreement”).  The Amended 
Continuing Covenant Agreement shall be in the form as approved by the Authorized Officer of the 
Authority executing the First Supplemental Bond Trust Indenture with such execution to 
constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s 
approval of the final form of the Amended Continuing Covenant Agreement Amendment. 

 Section 3. Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts.  The Members, officers, 
agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts and 
things and to execute, approve and/or accept, as applicable, all such documents (including, 
without limitation, the execution and delivery of a document setting forth the agreements and 
certifications of the parties thereto relating to certain federal tax matters) as may be necessary to 
carry out and comply with the provisions of these resolutions, the First Supplemental Bond Trust 
Indenture, the Existing Bond Indenture Amendments, the Amended Continuing Covenant 
Agreement and the Existing Continuing Covenant Agreement Amendments, and all of the acts 
and doings of the Members, officers, agents and employees of the Authority which are in 
conformity with the intent and purposes of these resolutions, whether heretofore or hereafter 
taken or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved. 

 Section 4. Separability.  The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be 
separable, and if any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be 
invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and 
provisions of this Resolution. 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 40



-3- 

 Section 5. Conflicts.   All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith 
are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 6. Immediate Effect.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon its passage, as by law provided. 

Approved this 8th day of May, 2018 by vote as follows: 

Ayes:  

Nays: 

Abstain: 

Absent: 

Vacant: 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
By ____________________________________ 

Executive Director 
ATTEST: 
 

 
____________________________________ 
                     Assistant Secretary 

[SEAL] 

 IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 41



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-0508-DA08 
 

RESOLUTION DELEGATING TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE 
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY THE POWER TO FUND AND 
ADMINISTER A LOAN PROGRAM FOR DEFERRED ACTION FOR 
CHILDHOOD ARRIVALS (“DACA”) APPLICANTS TO MEDICAL AND 
DENTAL SCHOOLS IN ILLINOIS, THE “DACA LOAN PROGRAM,” IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $2,900,000 AND RATIFYING CERTAIN 
MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 
WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created by the Illinois 

Finance Authority Act (20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq.) (the “Act”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized to enter into loans, contracts, agreements and mortgages 

in any manner connected with any of its corporate purposes and to invest its funds (20 ILCS 3501/801-
30(a)); and 

 
WHEREAS, the General Assembly of Illinois found, determined and declared that the following 

policy is relevant to the Authority’s programs:   
 
that for the benefit of the people of the State of Illinois, the conduct and increase of their 
commerce, the protection and enhancement of their welfare, the development of continued 
prosperity and the improvement of their health and living conditions it is essential that all the 
people of the State be given the fullest opportunity to learn and to develop their intellectual and 
mental capacities and skills; that to achieve these ends it is of the utmost importance that private 
institutions of higher education within the State be provided with appropriate additional means to 
assist the people of the State in achieving the required levels of learning and development of their 
intellectual and mental capacities and skills . . . 20 ILCS 3501/801-5(l); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Secretary of the United States Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) signed 

a memorandum on June 15, 2012 setting forth how, in the exercise of its prosecutorial discretion, DHS 
should enforce the Nation’s immigration laws against certain undocumented young people who came to 
the United States as children and have pursued education or military service in the United States; and  

 
WHEREAS, On August 15, 2012, the United States Citizenship and Immigration Services 

(“USCIS”) released the forms necessary to apply for Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals (“DACA”);  
individuals who demonstrate that they meet the guidelines may request consideration of deferred action 
for childhood arrivals for a period of two years, subject to renewal, and may be eligible for employment 
authorization; and 

 
 WHEREAS, on September 5, 2017, members of the United States executive branch announced 
that the DACA program would be wound down over the next six months, first by rejection of all initial 
applications to the DACA program and later by rejection of renewal applications by current DACA status 
holders; and 
 
 WHEREAS, two federal district courts in California and New York subsequently issued 
injunctions, the effect of which has been to preserve the DACA program substantially as it was prior to 
the September 5, 2017 announcement insofar as current DACA status holders may continue to renew 
DACA status and work authorization; and an additional, recent federal district court order may have the 
effect of requiring DHS to resume accepting initial applications; and 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 42



2 
 

WHEREAS, the DACA students do not fit into any of the United States Department of 
Education’s categories for eligible non-citizens and are not eligible to receive federal financial aid to 
cover tuition and fees; and  

 
WHEREAS, there is a need for physicians in communities in Illinois designated as Health 

Professional Shortage Areas (“HPSA”), Medically Underserved Areas (“MUA”) and Medically 
Underserved Populations (“MUP”) and maintained by the Health Resources and Services Administration 
(“HRSA”) of the US Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”) (collectively, the “Underserved 
Areas”); and 

 
WHEREAS, under Resolution Nos. 2013-0709-AD05, 2014-0513-AD09 and 2015-0218-AD07, 

the Authority provided loans under the DACA Loan Program to DACA students attending Illinois 
medical and dental schools to finance the cost of tuition and fees in exchange for an agreement by a 
DACA student to practice full-time as a physician in Underserved Areas in Illinois one year for each year 
the loan funds are received by the DACA student (the “Service Obligation”); and  

 
WHEREAS, Loyola University’s Stritch School of Medicine (“Stritch”) has waived legal 

residency as an admissions requirement and thus has allowed DACA students to apply and be accepted by 
Stritch; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority previously approved the use of not-to-exceed $2.9 million (the 

“Authorized Amount”) to fund loans through the DACA Loan Program to seven (7) DACA students 
attending Stritch for medical school years 2014-2018 under Resolution No. 2014-0513-AD09 and to five 
(5) DACA students attending Stritch for medical school years 2015-2019 under Resolution No. 2015-
0218-AD07; and 

 
WHEREAS, the per student aggregate loan cap established in the related DACA Loan 

Participation Agreement with respect to five (5) DACA students receiving loans as authorized under 
Resolution No. 2015-0218-AD07 is no longer adequate due to tuition increases, causing the need to 
amend such Agreement to allow a higher cap; and 

 
WHEREAS, the specialties permitted to be pursued by medical students currently receiving, and 

approved to receive in the future, loans under the DACA Loan Program must be expanded to realize the 
full benefits of the DACA Loan Program, requiring technical amendments to the outstanding DACA 
Program Participation Agreements and other DACA Program documents; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the DACA Loan Program is available to any medical or dental school in Illinois that 
agrees to comply with the program’s conditions subject to the availability of funds under this resolution. 
 
 Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority as follows: 
 
 Section 1.  Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated into this Resolution as if fully set forth herein. 
   

Section 2. Purpose of the DACA Loan Program.  The DACA Loan Program provides vital and 
“but for” financial resources so that DACA medical and dental students can complete their medical 
education in Illinois in exchange for a Service Obligation in medically underserved Illinois communities.  
The use of Authority funds to fund the DACA Program up to the Authorized Amount is hereby ratified 
and confirmed.  The purpose of the DACA Loan Program is consistent with the statutory policy findings 
in 20 ILCS 3501/801-5(l).   
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 43



3 
 

Section 3.  Delegation to the Executive Director.  The Authority hereby delegates to the 
Executive Director of the Authority the power to take or cause to be taken any and all such actions, and to 
execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all such agreements, instruments, certificates, amendments and 
other documents as may be required in connection with the funding and administration of the DACA 
Loan Program for medical and dental students in Illinois, including, but not limited to, the power to 
amend the existing DACA Program Participation Agreements and other DACA Program documents for 
the reasons identified herein, including, but not limited to, to allocate unallocated funds remaining under 
the Authorized Amount to raise the individual student aggregate loan cap for five (5) DACA students 
receiving loans as authorized by Resolution No. 2015-0218-AD07 and to otherwise allocate such funds 
among the DACA students currently participating in the DACA Program. 
 
 Section 4.  Further Actions.  The Executive Director of the Authority is hereby authorized, 
empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute, acknowledge and deliver all 
documents as may in his discretion be deemed necessary or desirable to carry out and comply with the 
terms and provisions of this Resolution; and all of the acts and doings of the Executive Director which are 
in conformity with the intent and purposes of this Resolution, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or 
done, shall be and the same are hereby in all respects ratified, confirmed and approved.  All prior and 
future acts and doings of the officers, agents and employees of the Authority that are in conformity with 
the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the execution and performance of the 
Resolution shall be and the same hereby are in all respects approved and confirmed. 
 
 Section 5.  Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this Resolution shall be held to 
be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, paragraph or 
provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this Resolution. 
 
 Section 6.  Conflicts.  All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are hereby 
superseded to the extent of such conflict. 
 
 Section 7.  Immediate Effect.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon 
its passage, as by law provided. 
 
 
 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 44



4 
 

 This Resolution No. 2018-0508-DA08 is approved and effective this 8th day of May, 2018 by roll 
call vote as follows: 
 
 Ayes:   
  
 Nays:   
 
 Abstain:  
  
 Absent:   
 
 Vacancies:  
 
         ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
 
 
         __________________________ 
          Executive Director 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
__________________________ 
 Assistant Secretary 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 45



 
 
 
 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Operating Revenues and Expenses are direct results of our basic business operations. Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses are 
netted against each other and include interest and investment income and expenses, bad debt adjustments, transfers to the State of 
Illinois and realized/unrealized gains and losses on investments. Net Income/ (Loss) is our bottom line.  
* Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 31. This Statement establishes accounting and financial 
reporting standards for all investments held by governmental external investment pools. For most other governmental entities, it 
establishes fair value standards for investments in (a) participating interest-earning investment contracts, (b) external investment 
pools, (c) open-end mutual funds, (d) debt securities, and (e) equity securities, option contracts, stock warrants, and stock rights 
that have readily determinable fair values.   

• Authority investment manager advises that global market conditions contribute to this. 
• Past performance does not direct the outcome of future outcomes; however in FY2015 investment 

income total was $642 thousand compared to (unaudited) FY2016 total $ 742 thousand. 

 
 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL  60601 
312-651-1300  
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com 
 
 Date:  May 8, 2018   

 
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman Lerry Knox 
 Gila J. Bronner Lyle McCoy 
 James J. Fuentes George Obernagel 
 Michael W. Goetz Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Neil Heller Roger Poole 
 Robert Horne Beth Smoots 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Bradley A. Zeller 
   
 
From:  Ximena Granda, Controller 
 
Subject: Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports as of April 30, 2018** 
 
**All information is preliminary, unaudited and subject to change. 
 
 
FISCAL YEAR 2018-UNAUDITED 

 
1. GENERAL OPERATING FUND REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME 

a. Total Annual Revenues equal $4.3 million and are $969 thousand or 29.0% higher than budget 
due primarily to higher closing fees. Closing fees year-to-date of $3.0 million are $559 thousand 
or 23.2% higher than budget.  Annual fees of $310 thousand are $77 thousand higher than the 
budgeted amount.  Administrative service fees of $129 thousand are $87 thousand higher than 
budget.  Application fees total $21 thousand and are $9 thousand lower than the budgeted 
amount. Total accrued interest income from loans in connection with the former Illinois Rural 
Bond Bank local government borrowers and other loans totaled $491 thousand (which has 
represented a declining asset since 2014).  Net investment income position is at $314 thousand for 
the fiscal year and is $209 thousand higher than budget.   

 
b. In April, the Authority generated $2 thousand from a closing fee, lower than the monthly 

budgeted amount of $241 thousand.  The closing fee was received from one Beginning Farmer 
bond transaction.  
 

c. Total Annual Expenses of $2.9 million were $487 thousand or 14.7% lower than budget, which 
was mostly driven by below budget spending on professional services and employee related 
expenses. Year-to-date, employee and professional services expenses total $2.4 million, with each 
function at 19.6% and 14.0% under budget, respectively.  Annual occupancy costs of $137 
thousand are 5.8% lower than budget, while general and administrative costs are $329 thousand 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 46

http://www.il-fa.com/


 
 

2 
 

for the year, which is 17.1% higher than budget.  Total depreciation costs are $12 thousand and 
64.6% below budget.  Total cash transfers in from the Primary Government Borrowing Fund (set-
up to track financial activity on behalf of the State of Illinois) to the General Operating Fund are 
$91 thousand.  
 

d. In April, the Authority recorded operating expenses of $308 thousand, which was lower than the 
monthly budgeted amount of $309 thousand.   
 

e. Total Monthly Net Loss of $153 thousand was driven by lower than expected closing fees.  
 

f. Total Annual Net Income is $1.5 million.  The major drivers of the annual positive bottom line 
are the compressed bond project closing activity in November and December 2017 and lower 
than expected expenses.  

 
2. GENERAL OPERATING FUND-ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION 

In the General Fund, the Authority continues to maintain a strong balance sheet, with total net 
position of $58.0 million. The total assets in the General Fund are $58.6 million (consisting mostly of 
cash, investments, and receivables). Unrestricted cash and investments total $45.1 million (with $7.1 
million in cash). Notes receivables from the former Illinois Rural Bond Bank local governments total 
$10.0 million. Participation loans, DACA (pilot medical student loans in exchange for service in 
medical underserved areas in Illinois) and other loans receivables are at $2.9 million.  
 

3. YEAR TO DATE ACTIVITY FOR ALL OTHER FUNDS 
Financial information for all other funds is not available due to the short time between month end and 
the printing of the Board book.  

 
4. AUTHORITY AUDITS AND REGULATORY UPDATES  

The Entrance Conference for the Financial Audit for the Year Ending June 30, 2018 was held April 
19, 2018.  The fieldwork for the Financial Audit will begin on May 29, 2018.   

 
5. OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION  

The Fiscal Year Comparison of Bonds Issued, Fiscal Year 2018 Bonds Issued, Schedule of Debt, and 
the State of Illinois Receivables Summary are being presented as supplementary financial 
information, immediately following the financial reports in your Board package. 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
/s/ Ximena Granda 
Controller 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 47



1 of 3

 JUL  AUG  SEP  OCT  NOV  DEC  JAN  FEB  MAR  APR  MAY  JUNE 

 YEAR TO 
DATE 

ACTUAL 

 YEAR TO 
DATE 

BUDGET 

  
BUDGET 

VARIANCE 
($) 

 
BUDGET 

VARIANCE 
(%)

Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees 136,265$       226,532$       486,374$     19,345$     376,290$    1,279,665$   215,338$    -$            221,778$       2,000$       2,963,587$  2,404,917$ 558,670$      23.2%
Annual Fees 21,005           23,599           20,265         22,158        25,018        26,081          34,256        20,616         95,413           21,925       310,336       232,930       77,406          33.2%
Administrative Service Fees -                     10,500           20,000         33,500        500             40,500          6,000          -                   -                     18,000       129,000       41,670         87,330          209.6%
Application Fees 100                4,100             3,000           2,300          3,000          6,100            1,100          300              1,000             400             21,400         30,000         (8,600)           -28.7%
Miscellaneous Fees 104                -                     10,336         338             14,750        -                    108             -                   -                     -                  25,636         4,580           21,056          459.7%
Interest Income-Loans 50,587           49,369           52,190         50,787        50,356        50,244          50,240        51,309         41,440           43,745       490,267       523,110       (32,843)         -6.3%
Other Revenue 164                163                162              57,382        161             160               160             159              514                157             59,182         1,670           57,512          3443.8%
Total Operating Revenue: 208,225$       314,263$       592,327$     185,810$   470,075$    1,402,750$   307,202$    72,384$      360,145$       86,227$     -$             -$          3,999,408$  3,238,877$ 760,531$      23.5%

Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense 133,489$       139,259$       131,705$     131,125$   128,774$    124,356$      181,610$    177,296$    180,593$       179,147$   1,507,354$  1,874,542$ (367,188)$     -19.6%
Professional Services 75,916           38,669           50,322         114,233     46,325        68,966          113,925      122,821      137,146         74,868       843,191       980,830       (137,639)       -14.0%
Occupancy Costs 14,324           12,110           13,155         13,506        12,721        12,505          16,610        13,833         13,283           14,534       136,581       145,000       (8,419)           -5.8%
General & Administrative 28,531           28,689           33,165         30,977        35,469        38,158          36,598        30,703         28,470           38,471       329,231       281,250       47,981          17.1%
Depreciation and Amortization 1,177             1,177             1,177           1,148          1,843          1,047            1,047          1,047           1,289             1,143         12,095         34,170         (22,075)         -64.6%
Total Operating Expense 253,437$       219,904$       229,524$     290,989$   225,132$    245,032$      349,790$    345,700$    360,781$       308,163$   -$             -$          2,828,452$  3,315,792$ (487,340)$     -14.7%

Operating Income(Loss) (45,212)$        94,359$         362,803$     (105,179)$  244,943$    1,157,718$   (42,588)$     (273,316)$   (636)$             (221,936)$  -$             -$          1,170,956$  (76,915)$     1,247,871$   1622.4%

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Miscellaneous Non-Opertg Rev/(Exp) -$               -$               -$             -$           -$            -$              -$            -$            -$               -$           -$             -$             -$             -$              #DIV/0!
Bad Debt Adjustments (Expense) -                     18,000       18,000         1,670           16,330          977.8%
Interest and Investment Income* 34,141           51,568           39,087         42,092        39,346        43,482          45,731        42,473         51,718           54,781       444,419       208,333       236,086        113.3%
Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Invests (3,209)            (5,094)            (2,750)          7                 31               (1,469)           (3,131)         243              (2,305)            (2,013)        (19,690)        (20,830)       1,140             -5.5%
Net Appreciation (Depr) in FV of Invests 11,539           9,008             (35,070)        (25,750)      (48,369)       (13,632)         (22,568)       (16,841)       14,885           (1,489)        (128,287)      (83,333)       (44,954)         53.9%
Total Nonoperating Rev (Exp) 42,471$         55,482$         1,267$         16,349$     (8,992)$       28,381$        20,032$      25,875$      64,298$         69,279$     -$             -$          314,442$     105,840$     208,602$      197.1%

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers (2,741)$          149,841$       364,070$     (88,830)$    235,951$    1,186,099$   (22,556)$     (247,441)$   63,662$         (152,657)$  -$             -$          1,485,398$  28,925$       1,456,473$   5035.4%

Transfers:
Transfers in from other funds 58,296$         -$               -$              899$              31,520$     90,715$       -$             90,715          0.0%
Transfers out to other funds (58,296)          -                     (899)               (31,520)      (90,715)        -                   (90,715)         0.0%
Total Transfers In (Out) -$               -$               -$             -$           -$            -$              -$            -$            -$               -$           -$             -$          -$             -$             -$              0.0%

Net Income (Loss) (2,741)$          149,841$       364,070$     (88,830)$    235,951$    1,186,099$   (22,556)$     (247,441)$   63,662$         (152,657)$  -$             -$          1,485,398$  28,925$       1,456,473$   5035.4%

** Net Appreciation (Depr) in FV of Investments is not not available as of August 2, 2017
*Interest and Investment income for the month of July are estimates

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME

GENERAL OPERATING FUND

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018 AS OF APRIL 30, 2018

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 48



2 of 3

FUND

Assets and Deferred Outflows:
Current Assets:
Unrestricted:
Cash & cash equivalents 7,100,568             
Investments 30,094,619           
Accounts receivable, Net 6,218                    
Loans receivables, Net 1,339                    
Accrued interest receivable 356,202                
Bonds and notes receivable 1,180,200             
Due from other funds 11,549                  
Due from primary government -                            
Due from other local government agencies 83,698                  
Prepaid Expenses 38,834,393$         
Total Current Unrestricted Assets

Restricted: -$                      
Cash & Cash Equivalents -                            
Deposits in transit -                            
Investments -                            
Bonds and notes receivable from State component units -                            
Loans receivables, Net -$                      
Total Current Restricted Assets 38,834,393$         
Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets:
Unrestricted:
Investments 7,918,357             
Accounts receivable, Net 2,928,959             
Loans receivables, Net 8,890,837             
Bonds and notes receivable -                            
Due from other local government agencies 19,738,153$         
Total Noncurrent Unrestricted Assets

Restricted: -$                      
Cash & Cash Equivalents -                            
Investments -                            
Funds in the custody of the Treasurer
Loans receivables, Net -                            
Bonds and notes receivable from State component units -                            
Total Noncurrent Restricted Assets -$                      

Capital Assets
Capital Assets 867,686$              
Accumulated Depreciation (795,347)               
Total Capital Assets 72,339$                

Total Noncurrent Assets 19,810,492$         

Total Assets 58,644,885$         

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred loss on debt refunding -$                      
TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES -$                      

Total Assets & Deferred Inflows of Resources 58,644,885$         

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)
April 30, 2018

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 49



3 of 3

FUND
(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)

April 30, 2018

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:
Payable from unrestricted current assets:
Accounts payable 62,356$                
Payables from pending investment purchases -                            
Accrued liabilities 284,561                
Due to employees 95,721                  
Due to primary government 50,001                  
Due to other funds 11,341                  
Other liabilities -                            
Unearned revenue, net of accumulated amortization 109,116                
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Current Assets 613,096$              

Payable from restricted current assets:
Accounts payable -                            
Obligation under securites lending of the State Treasurer -                            
Accrued interest payable -$                      
Due to other funds -                            
Due to primary government -                            
Bonds and notes payable from primary government -                            
Bonds and notes payable from State component units -                            
Current portion of long term debt -                            
Other liabilities -                            
Unamortized bond premium -                            
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Current Assets -$                      
Total Current Liabilties 613,096$              

Noncurrent Liabilities
Payable from unrestricted noncurrent assets:
Noncurrent payables 585$                     
Accrued liabilities -                            
Bonds and notes payable from primary government -                            
Bonds and notes payable from State component units -                            
Noncurrent loan reserve -                                   
Assets 585$                     

Payable from restricted noncurrent assets:
Noncurrent payables -                            
Total Noncurrent Liabilities Payable from Restricted Noncurrent -$                      

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 585$                     
Total Liabilities 613,681$              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 72,339$                
Restricted for Low Income Community Investments -                            
Unrestricted 56,473,467           
Current Change in Net Position 1,485,398             
Total Net Position 58,031,204$         

Total Liabilities & Net Position 58,644,885$         

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 50



 
 

 

     
 

STATE of ILLINOIS 
DETAILED RECEIVABLES SUMMARY (UNAUDITED) 

AS OF May 3, 2018 
 

As of November 1, 2015 the Illinois Finance Authority has purchased the following receivables on behalf of the State of 
Illinois, pursuant to Resolutions 2015-1112-AD11 and 2016-0211-AD07: 
 

Vendor Payment dates Amount  
 Cosgrove Distributors Inc.   12/21/2015 $9,225.92  
 

 
Payment received by IFA ($9,225.92) 

 
 Balance due from Cosgrove Distributors $0.00  

       
 Grayboy Building Maintenance 12/16/2015 $15,790.36  
 

 
Payment received by IFA ($15,790.36) 

 
 Balance due from Grayboy Building Maint. $0.00  

       
 M. J. Kellner Co. Inc. 12/28/2015 $1,806,912.20  
 M. J. Kellner Co. Inc. 3/31/2016 1,929,224.10 
 

 Payment received by IFA ($3,732,458.28) 
   Balance due from M.J. Kellner $3,678.02  
 

    Smith Maintenance Company 11/25/2015 $251,665.26 
 Smith Maintenance Company 12/29/2015 125,832.63 
 Smith Maintenance Company 2/10/2016 129,811.11 
 Smith Maintenance Company 3/21/2016 151,826.83 
 Smith Maintenance Company 4/14/2016 151,826.83 
 Smith Maintenance Company 5/19/2016 151,826.83 
 Smith Maintenance Company 6/23/2016 107,795.38 
 Smith Maintenance Company 7/21/2016 107,795.38 
    $1,178,380.25 
  Payment received by IFA (1,178,380.25)  

 
Balance due from Smith Maintenance $0.00 

 Sysco St. Louis LLC 
Sysco St. Louis LLC 

12/16/2015 
Payment received by IFA  

$32,418.85 
($32,418.85)   

 Balance due from Sysco St. Louis LLC              $0.00         

 
Total  State of Illinois Assigned/Purchased 

Receivables 
$4,971,951.65   

 

Total  State of Illinois Assigned/Purchased 
Receivables Payment Received 

$4,968,273.63  
 
 
 

 

Balance due from State of Illinois 
Assigned/Purchased Receivables 

$3,678.02  
 
 

 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 51



Bonds Issued - Fiscal Year Comparison
for the Period Ending April 30, 2018

Fiscal Year 2016

# Market Sector

14 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 3,762,495

Principal Issued

10 Education 692,515,000
1 Freight Transfer Facilities Bonds 100,000,000

13 Healthcare - Hospital 1,869,903,000
6 Healthcare - CCRC 381,762,000

54

Fiscal Year 2017

# Market Sector

9 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 717,050,000
1 Local Government 14,540,000

18 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 3,765,900

7 Education 304,222,000
1 Freight Transfer Facilities Bonds 130,000,000

12 Healthcare - Hospital 2,568,650,000

2 65,365,000

7 Healthcare - CCRC 310,364,967
1 Midwest Disaster Area Bonds 9,969,162
7 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 221,407,000
2 Recovery Zone Facilities Bonds 28,951,409

Bond Issuance Analysis

The Authority issued $183,831,820 in conduit debt during the month of March, 2018. This is 7.91% higher than 
March, 2017 at $169,283,909. Total issuance for FY 2018 is $3,058,819,045. This is 15.8% lower than the same 
period for FY 2017 at $3,636,278,309. The IFA has issued 27 conduit bonds and seven beginner farmer bonds 
in FY 2018. 

1 Local Government 500,000,000

58

Fiscal Year 2018

# Market Sector

8

35

Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 1,355,045

Healthcare - CCRC 388,700,000

6 296,974,000

5 Education

5
7 Healthcare - Hospital 1,308,930,000

1 Local Government

1 Midwest Disaster Area Bonds

2 Multifamily/Senior/Not-for-Profit Housing

501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit

Multifamily/Senior/Not-for-Profit Housing

3,779,532,495$           

4,142,695,438$        

$3,058,959,045

Principal Issued

Principal Issued

20,200,000

79,020,000
560,025,000

403,755,000

A-BFB 0.1%
E-PC 18.3%
FTFRB 2.6%
HO 49.5%
CCRC 10.1%
501(c)(3) 19.0%
LG 0.4%
Total: 100.0%

Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2016

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 52



CCRC Friendship Village of Schaumburg 12/28/2017 Fixed at Schedule 122,550,000 108,371,437

HO Northwestern Memorial HealthCare 12/19/2017 Fixed at Schedule 706,900,000 593,500,000

P3-SH CHF- Chicago, LLC (University of Illinois at Chicago) 12/19/2017 Fixed at Schedule 94,860,000 0

HO Ingalls Memorial Hospital 12/29/2017 Variable 41,180,000 41,180,000

E-PC Elmhurst College 12/27/2017 Variable 37,160,000 37,000,000

501(c)(3) The Lincoln Park Zoological Society 12/27/2017 Variable 70,354,000 70,000,000

501(c)(3) Cantigny Foundation 12/27/2017 Variable 58,000,000 0

HO OSF Healthcare System 12/20/2017 Variable 235,000,000 49,000,000

501(c)(3) Chicago Charter School Foundation 11/30/2017 Variable 51,310,000 0

HOUS Better Housing Foundation (Windy City Portfolio Project) 11/21/2017 Fixed at Schedule 59,980,000 0

CCRC Greenfields of Geneva 11/17/2017 Fixed at Schedule 65,000,000 65,000,000

HO Blessing Hospital 11/17/2017 Variable 15,955,000 0

HO UnityPoint Health 10/20/2017 Fixed at Schedule 19,500,000 12,000,000

E-PC Bradley University 09/01/2017 Fixed at Schedule 39,500,000 0

LG Clean Water Initiative Revolving Fund 09/12/2017 Fixed at Schedule 560,025,000 0

CCRC Tabor Hills Supportive Living Community 09/19/2017 Variable 16,000,000 16,000,000

HO Southern Illinois Healthcare Enterprises 09/12/2017 Variable 66,845,000 0

E-PC Bradley University 09/01/2017 Variable 50,000,000 50,000,000

E-PC Rosalind Franklin University 08/23/2017 Fixed at Schedule 112,390,000 62,390,000

501(c)(3) Chicagoland Laborers Training and Apprentice Fund 08/10/2017 Fixed at Schedule 12,950,000 0

CCRC Three Crown Park 07/25/2017 Variable 34,210,000 34,210,000

07/01/2017 Variable 1,128,225 0

501(c)(3) YMCA of Rock River Valley 07/25/2017 Variable 9,500,000 5,234,000

Bonds Issued and Outstanding 
as of 

April 30, 2018

Bonds Issued between July 01, 2017 and April 30, 2018

Initial Interest 
Rate

Bonds 
RefundedBond Issue Date Issued Principal Issued

A-BFB Beginner Farmer Bond

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 53



Justin Joseph Bergbower 03/26/2018 86,820 65.90 Jasper

Total Beginner Farmer Bonds Issued 1,355,045$    498.48

ref:  H:\Board Book Reports\Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year-Board Book-Activity Report.rpt

Jordan Weidner 04/19/2018 4.25 140,000 75.00 Clay

Maria Kern 12/27/2017 3.625 125,000 80.00 Montgomery
Ethan Keller 12/21/2017 3.90 107,500 42.00 Jasper
Jason Hayes 12/15/2017 3.85 502,250 60.00 Logan
Levi B. & Megan N. Yager 12/15/2017 3.25 193,800 40.00 Jasper
Matthew& Jana Roark 10/02/2017 3.5 129,675 95.58 Lawrence
Kevin Timothy Thole 07/06/2017 3.50 70,000 40.00 Montgomery

Initial 
Interest 

RateBorrower Date Funded Loan Proceeds Acres County

Total Bonds Issued as of April 30, 2018 3,058,959,045$ 1,535,247,547$  

Legend: Fixed Rate Bonds as shown
DP-VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Direct Purchase Bond
      VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Variable Rate Bond that does not include the cost of the LOC arrangement.                   
Beginner Farmer Bonds interest rates are shown in section below.

Beginner Farmer Bonds Funded between July 01, 2017 and April 30, 2018

HOUS Better Housing Foundation (Ernst Portfolio Project) 03/08/2018 Fixed at Schedule 19,040,000 0

E-PC The University of Chicago 03/07/2018 Fixed at Schedule 164,705,000 0

HO Ann & Robert Lurie Children's Hospital of Chicago 01/18/2018 Fixed at Schedule 223,550,000 223,550,000

A-BFB Beginner Farmer Bond 01/01/2018 Variable 226,820 0

CCRC The Admiral at the Lake 12/29/2017 Fixed at Schedule 150,940,000 147,612,110

MWDAB Kone Center Project 12/29/2017 Variable 20,200,000 20,200,000

3.90

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 54



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

Illinois Finance Authority  "IFA" [ b ]

Agriculture 4
Education 5
Healthcare 6
Industrial Development [includes Recovery Zone/Midwest Disaster] 11
Local Government 17
Multifamily/Senior/Not-for Profit Housing 18

501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 19
Exempt Facilities Bonds 20

Student Housing 

Total IFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Development Finance Authority "IDFA" [ b ]

Education 25
Healthcare 26
Industrial Development 27
Local Government 31
Multifamily/Senior/Not-for Profit Housing 32
501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 33
Exempt Facilities Bonds 34

Total IDFA Principal Outstanding

Illinois Rural Bond Bank "IRBB" [ b ]

50

Total IRBB Principal Outstanding

Illinois Health Facilities Authority "IHFA" 45
Illinois Educational Facilities Authority "IEFA" 43

Illinois Farm Development Authority "IFDA" [ f ] 48

General Purpose Moral Obligations

* Issued through IRBB - Local Government Pools 50
*Issued through IFA - Local Government Pools 12
Issued through IFA - Illinois Medical District Commission 15

Total General Moral Obligations

* All the Local Government bonds were defeased as of August 1, 2014.

Financially Distressed Cities Moral Obligations

Issued through IFA 14
Issued through IDFA 30

Total Financially Distressed Cities

State Component Unit Bonds [ c ]

Issued through IDFA [ i ] 29

Issued through IFA [ i ] 13 *

Total State Component Unit Bonds

Midwestern Disaster Area Bonds [Flood Relief] 10

Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds**
Recovery Zone Facilities Bonds** 9

Qualified Energy Conservation Bonds***

** Programs expired as of 12/31/2010. There have been no new issues subsequent to the expiration date of these Federal programs.

***

June 30, 2017 April 30, 2018

15,265,699,341$            

1,235,655,000               

23,834,203,809$           
  

496,388                          

14,953,281,829             
889,671,685$                 852,470,163                  
725,285,000$                 

Conduit debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)] which does not constitute an indebtedness or an obligation, either general or moral, or a pledge of the full faith or 
a loan of the Authority, the State of Illinois or any Political Subdivision of the State within the purview of any constitutional or statutory limitation or provisions with special limited obligations of the 
Authority secured under provisions of the individual Bond Indentures and Loan Agreements with the exception of the bonds identified below in Section I (b) -- General Purpose Moral Obligation/State 
Component Parts -- which are subject to the $28.15B cap in Section 845-5(a).

Section I (a) Principal Outstanding    #  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity 

51,839,174$                   48,627,671$                  
4,345,951,386$              4,482,801,803               

153,127,575$                 

23,465,040,218$            

82,249,117                     49,454,392                    
519,192,342                   433,614,826                  

1,069,175,454$              

-$                                -$                               

119,399,744                  
222,207,364                   173,166,782                  

289,551,887                  
1,665,996,057$              1,448,040,456               

73,600,000                     73,600,000                    
171,430,244                   

849,235,744$                

320,275,000                  
149,915,000$                 203,500,000                  
217,555,000$                 

294,285,000$                 189,270,000$                
490,472,000$                 396,498,000$                

April 30, 2018

13,436,353$                   11,158,212$                  

Total Illinois Finance Authority Debt 25,332,409,025$            25,280,365,764$           2,869,634,236$                    

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)]

Section I (b) Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2017

28,150,000,000$    

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/801-40(w)]

14,050,000                     13,415,000                    

14,050,000$                   13,415,000$                  150,000,000$         136,585,000$                       

Designated exclusive Issuer by the Governor of the State of Illinois to issue Midwestern Disaster Area Bonds in Illinois. This Federal program expired as of December 31, 2012.

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/825-60]

-$                                -$                               
-                                  -                                 

-$                                -$                               50,000,000$           50,000,000$                         

-                                  -                                 
599,372,488                   1,095,214,096               

599,372,488$                 1,095,214,096$             

Section I (c) Principal Outstanding  Remaining MDAB 
Volume Cap  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2017 April 30, 2018

63,634,933$                  62,892,738$                 N/A 41,530,000$                        

 Designated by the Governor of the State of Illinois to manage and coordinate the re-allocation of Federal ARRA Volume Cap and the issuance of Recovery Zone 
Bonds in the State of Illinois to fully utilize RZBs before December 31, 2010. 

Section I (d) ARRA Act of 2009 Volume 

Cap Allocated [ h ]
 City/Counties Ceded 
Voluntarily to/(by) IFA 

Bonds issued as of 
December 31, 2014

Remaining ARRA Volume Cap for 
each Program as of December 31, 

2014

666,972,000$                 16,940,000$                  12,900,000$           
1,000,457,000$              204,058,967$                214,849,804$         N/A

133,846,000$                 (17,865,000)$                 82,795,000$           
IFA Cap:  $4,755,783
Cities/Counties Cap:  

$46,295,717 

N/A

The IFA manages the QECB allocation for the entire State of Illinois. All QECB's to date have been issued by local governments or state universities. The QECB program 
currently has no set expiration date under Federal law.  IFA's remaining QECB allocation of $4,755,783 has been reserved for use by state universities.

ref:  H:\Board Book Reports\May 2018\03- Schedule of Debt 040302018.xlsx\Fiscal Year 2018
5/2/2018  11:45 AM        Page 1

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 55



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Schedule of  Debt [ a ]

Illinois Power Agency

Agri Debt Guarantees [Restructuring Existing Debt]

Fund # 994 - Fund Balance $10,206,209* 72

AG Loan Guarantee Program

Fund # 205 - Fund Balance  $8,003,713* [ e ]

Agri Industry Loan Guarantee Program 64 75
Farm Purchase Guarantee Program 67 78
Specialized Livestock Guarantee Program 63 74
Young Farmer Loan Guarantee Program 66 77

Total State Guarantees

155 Fire Truck Revolving Loan Program      Fund # 572 117 * * 113

22 Ambulance Revolving Loan Program        Fund # 334 116 * * 112

Environmental [Large Business]
Issued through IFA 22
Issued through IDFA 37

Total Environmental [Large Business]

Environmental [Small Business]

Participation Loans
Business & Industry 86  
Agriculture 98  

Participation Loans excluding Defaults & Allowances 99  

##
##

Local Government Direct Loans ##

Rural Bond Bank Local Government Note Receivable *
FmHA Loans ##
Renewable Energy [RED Fund] ##

Total Loans Outstanding

[ a ] Total subject to change; late month payment data may not be included at issuance of report.
[ b ] State Component Unit Bonds included in balance.
[ c ] Does not include Unamortized issuance premium as reported in Audited Financials.
[ d ] Program Limitation reflects the increase to $3 billion effective 01/01/2010 under P.A. 96-103.
[ e ] Program Limitation reflects the increase from $75 million to $225 million effective 01/01/2010 under P.A. 96-103.
[ f ] Beginner Farmer Bonds are currently updated annually; new bonds will be added under the Illinois Finance Authority when the bond closes.

[ g ]

[ h ]

[ i ] Includes EPA Clean Water Revolving Fund

* Balances as of April 30, 2018 are estimated and subject to change.

 Statutory Debt 
Limitation Remaining HELA Debt LimitationJune 30, 2017 April 30, 2018

Midwestern University Foundation - Student Loan Program Revenue 
Bonds

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(b)]

Section II Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2017 April 30, 2018

-$                                -$                                       4,000,000,000$      4,000,000,000$                    

Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Section 825-65(f); 825-70 and 825-75] - see also P.A. 96-103 effective 01/01/2010

Section III Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2017 April 30, 2018

Clean Coal, Coal, Renewable Energy and Energy Efficiency Projects -$                                -$                                       3,000,000,000$      [ d ] 3,000,000,000$                    

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Sections 830-25 (see also P.A.96-103); 830-30; 830-35; 830-45 and 830-50]

Section IV Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations 

 Remaining 
Capacity  State Exposure June 30, 2017 April 30, 2018

5,966,448$      4,465,315$                 160,000,000$   155,534,685$   3,795,518$                   

2,696,940$      2,562,594$                 225,000,000$   222,437,406$   2,178,205$                   

-$                 
866,646           857,434                      728,819                        

1,251,934        1,143,256                   971,768                        
578,360           561,903                      477,618                        

8,663,388$      7,027,909$                 385,000,000$   377,972,091$   5,973,723$                   

13,405,000$                  
97,505,000                     47,505,000                    

                           91,130 

Issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501 Sections 825-80 and 825-85 

Section V Principal Outstanding  Cash and Investment
 Balance  June 30, 2017 April 30, 2018

Issued under the Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act [20 ILCS 3515/9]

2,868,467$             

18,094,427$          5,229,381$             

1,672,960$      1,378,640$            

6,079,859               

Illinois Finance Authority Funds at Risk

Section VII
 Original Amount 

Principal Outstanding

June 30, 2017

23,020,158             99,724                            

April 30, 2018

29,100,017             99,724                            91,130                           

Plus:  Legacy IDFA Loans in Default 936,358                          3,170                             

34,353,017             14,065,860                     12,771,117                    

Less:  Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 938,353                          5,165                             
Total Participation Loans 97,729                            89,135                           

Higher Education Loan Act (110 ILCS 945 or “HELA”)

Recovery Zone Facility Revenue Bonds - Federal government allocated volume cap directly to all 102 Illinois counties and 8 municipalities with population of 100,000 or more. [Public Act 96-1020]

963,250                  163,518                                                   141,369 
2,000,000               1,107,838                       

1,289,750               627,638                          501,477                         

-                                 

12,039,137                    12,069,137                     

IRBB funds were defeased and transferred into a note receivable with the IFA.

Midwestern Disaster Area Bonds - Illinois Counties eligible for Midwest Disaster Bonds included Adams, Calhoun, Clark, Coles, Crawford, Cumberland, Douglas, Edgar, Hancock, Henderson, Jasper, Jersey, 
Lake, Lawrence, Mercer, Rock Island, Whiteside and Winnebago.

Section VIII Principal Outstanding

15,000,000$                   15,000,000$                           200,000,000$         [ d ] 185,000,000$                       

111,980,000$                 60,910,000$                  2,425,000,000$      

14,475,000$                   

Total Environment Bonds Issued under Act 111,980,000$                 60,910,000$                  2,500,000,000$      2,439,090,000$                    

Section VI Principal Outstanding  Program 
Limitations  Remaining Capacity June 30, 2017 April 30, 2018

Note:  Due to deposits in transit, the Fund Balance at the IOC may differ from the IFA General Ledger. In May, 2014 the OSF transferred the Fund Balance to a Locally Held Fund by the IFA.

20,057,851$    

2,364,090,000$                    

-$                                -$                               75,000,000$           75,000,000$                         

ref:  H:\Board Book Reports\May 2018\03- Schedule of Debt 040302018.xlsx\Fiscal Year 2018
5/2/2018  11:45 AM        Page 2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 56



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
BOARD MEETING 

May 8, 2018 
 

1 
 

CONTRACTS/AMENDMENTS EXECUTED 
 Vendor Initial Term Estimated Not 

to Exceed Value 
Action/Proposed Method of 

Procurement Products/Services Provided 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Small Purchases 
 

Marcor Technologies 04/01/2018-
03/31/2021 $9,375 BidBuy PO (in process) MailArchiva support (archive 

emails) 
Com Microfilm Company, 
Inc.  07/01/2018 $7,230 BidBuy PO (in process) Docuware support (document 

storage) 
Velocita Technology Inc. 04/05/2018 $1,564 BidBuy PO  Additional power backup unit 
Malelo 04/26/2018 $934 BidBuy PO Back up tapes 
     

Illinois Procurement Code-
Order Against Master 
 

Mesirow Insurance Services  05/xx/2018 $322,900 
Continue with State Master 
CMS4819650 with BOA.  
(in process) 

Insurance Brokering Services 

Com Microfilm Company, 
Inc.  05/xx/2018 $22,523 BidBuy PO off State Master. 

(in process) Document Imaging 

CDS Office Technologies 03/30/2018 $2,075 BidBuy PO Laptops 
     

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 57



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
BOARD MEETING 

May 8, 2018 
 

2 
 

EXPIRING CONTRACTS 
 Vendor Expiration 

Date 
Estimated Not 

to Exceed Value 
Action/Proposed Method of 

Procurement Products/Services Provided 

 Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases 

Marcor Technologies  05/06/2018 $9,375 BidBuy PO MailArchiva Support for 3 
years 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Competitive Bids 

Arbitrage Compliance 
Specialists 05/31/2018 $49,000 Services not required. Let 

expire. 
Arbitrage Liability Calculation 
Services/Bond Comp 

Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases 

Hewlett Packard 
Enterprise  05/31/2018 $5,627 Purchase again via Small 

Purchase with incumbent. Hardware Support Care Packs 

MX Save  06/12/2018 $588 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. Disaster Recovery for email 

GoDaddy  06/14/2018 $150 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

SSL Certificate for Mobile 
Device Management 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Competitive Bids 

Merlinos & 
Associates 06/15/2018 $45,040 Services not required. Let 

expire. Actuarial Services 

Illinois Procurement Code- Small 
Purchases 
 

3rd Coast Imaging, 
Inc. 06/30/2018 $10,000 BidBuy Bid Printing Services for Monthly 

Board Books 
Com Microfilm 
Company, Inc.  06/30/2018 $7,230 BidBuy PO Docuware Maintenance and 

Support 

Novanis IT Solutions  06/30/2018 $203 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. Encryption of laptops 

Presidio Networked 
Solutions  06/30/2018 $3,292 BidBuy PO with State Master.    Production 

Support/Subscription VMWare 
CDW Government 
LLC (SmartNet) 

06/30/2018 $422 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

SmartNet Technical Support 

Tallgrass Systems 
SmartNet  

06/30/2018 $540 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Cisco SmartNet 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 58



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
BOARD MEETING 

May 8, 2018 
 

3 
 

EXPIRING CONTRACTS (cont’d) 
 Vendor Expiration 

Date 
Estimated Not 

to Exceed Value 
Action/Proposed Method of 

Procurement Products/Services Provided 

Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchase 
 

United States Postal 
Service Prepaid 
Postage  

08/08/2018 
$1,000 

Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Chicago and Mt. Vernon 
postage 

GoDaddy Web 
Hosting 

08/10/2018 $539 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Web Hosting Server 

GoDaddy 2018 SSL 
Cert 

08/23/2018 $299 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

SSL Certificate 

Illinois Procurement Code-Sole 
Economically Feasible Purchase 

East Bank Records 
Management  

08/31/2018 $20,000 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent 

Records Storage 

Illinois Procurement Code-Order 
Against Master 

CDW Government 
LLC Cisco switches 
and support  

09/10/2018 
$11,939 BidBuy PO with State Master. 

Cisco switches, firewall, router 
and support 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Exempt 
 

Acacia Financial 
Group, Inc. 

03/01/2018-
09/14/2018 $225,000 Contract extension executed. 

To do RFP. Financial Advisors 

Sycamore Advisors, 
LLC 

03/01/2018-
09/14/2018 $225,000 Contract extension executed. 

To do RFP. Financial Advisors 

Illinois Procurement Code-Order 
Against Master 

CDW Government 
LLC HPE  

09/17/2018 $37,380 BidBuy PO with State Master. HP Servers, disk array, tape 
drive 

Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases 

SHI International 
Corp 

10/16/2018 $4,560 BidBuy Bid Enterprise Mobility Mgmt 
System 

WellSpring Software, 
Inc. 

10/30/2018 $100 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Annual support for software 
to print checks 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 59



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT 

 
BOARD MEETING 

May 8, 2018 
 

4 
 

EXPIRING CONTRACTS (cont’d) 

 Vendor Expiration 
Date 

Estimated Not 
to Exceed Value 

Action/Proposed Method of 
Procurement Products/Services Provided 

I Illinois Procurement Code-Small 
Purchases 

 
 

Sullivan Reporting  10/31/2018 $9,500 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

BOA for Transcription Services 

United Parcel Service  11/21/2018 $4,000 BidBuy PO with State Master Package Delivery 
Google Ad 2017-2018 12/3/2018 $4,500 Purchase again via Small 

Purchase with incumbent. 
IFA Ad Page 

Network Solutions 
IDFA  

12/20/2018 $39 Purchase again via Small 
Purchase with incumbent. 

Renewal of www.idfa.com 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Competitive Bids 

ClearArc Capital, Inc. 
Amend Invest  

12/26/2018 $900,000 RFP? Investment Management 
Services 

Illinois Procurement Code-Sole 
economically feasible Purchase 

Bloomberg Finance 
L.P. - Anywhere 

12/30/2018 $43,200 Sole economically feasible with 
incumbent. 

Bloomberg Terminal License 

Illinois Procurement Code-
Anticipation of Litigation 

G&R Public Law & 
Strategies  

11/18/2018 $100,000 TBD Anticipation of Litigation 

Jenner & Block LLP  12/8/2018 $250,000 TBD Anticipation of Litigation 
 Illinois Procurement Code-Order 
Against Master 

Enterprise Car Rental  12/31/2018 $5,000 Continue with State Master. 
State in process with RFP 

Car Rental 

      
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 60



 
 
 
 

 

160 North LaSalle Street 
Suite S-1000 
Chicago, IL  60601 
312-651-1300  
312-651-1350 fax 
www.il-fa.com 

Date:  May 8, 2018  
   
Subject: Minutes of the April 10, 2018 Special Meeting 
 
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman Lerry Knox 
 Gila J. Bronner Lyle McCoy 
 James J. Fuentes George Obernagel 
 Michael W. Goetz Terrence M. O’Brien 
 Neil Heller Roger Poole 
 Robert Horne Beth Smoots 
 Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Bradley A. Zeller 
   
 
Dear Members of the Authority: 
 
Please find enclosed the Report of Proceedings prepared by Sullivan Reporting Co. (the “Minutes”) in 
connection with the special meeting of the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”), 
begun and held at the Michael A. Bilandic Building, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-1000, Chicago, 
Illinois 60601, on the second Tuesday of April in the year 2018, pursuant to the provisions of Section 
801-25 and Section 801-30 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq. of the State 
of Illinois (the “Act”). 
 
To aid in your review of the Minutes, please reference the following pages and line numbers for 
corresponding sections of the respective meeting’s agenda: 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
SPECIAL MEETING 

Tuesday, April 10, 2018 
9:30 AM 

 
AGENDA: 

 
I. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 (page 3, line 9 through page 5, line 10)  
II. Approval of Agenda 
 (page 5, line 11 through page 6, line 2) 
III. Public Comment 

(page 6, lines 3 through 5) 
IV. Chairman’s Remarks 

(page 6, line 6) 
V. Message from the Executive Director 

(page 6, line 7) 
VI. Committee Reports 

(page 6, line 8 through page 7, line 15) 
VII. Presentation and Consideration of New Business 

(page 7, line 16 through page 21, line 23) 
VIII. Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 61



 
 

(page 21, line 24 through page 25, line 18) 
IX. Monthly Procurement Report 

(page 25, line 19 through page 26, line 11) 
X. Correction and Approval of Minutes 

(page 26, line 12 through page 27, line 4) 
XI. Other Business 

(page 27, lines 5 through 7) 
XII. Closed Session 

(page 27, lines 8 through 11) 
XIII. Adjournment 

(page 27, line 12 through page 28, line 2) 
 
The Minutes of the special meeting of the Authority are further supplemented by a summary of the 
respective meeting’s voting record prepared by Authority staff (the “Voting Record”), which is also 
enclosed. 
 
Please contact an Assistant Secretary to report any substantive edits to the enclosures. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
/s/ Ryan Oechsler           
Associate General Counsel 
 
 
Enclosures: 1. Minutes of the April 10, 2018 Special Meeting 
  2. Voting Record of the April 10, 2018 Special Meeting 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 62



 
1

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  

IL
LI
NO
IS
 F
IN
AN
CE
 A
UT
HO
RI
T
Y
 

1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

SP
EC
IA
L 
ME
ET
IN
G 

2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ap
ri
l 
10
, 
20
18
, 
at
 9
:4
2 
a
.m
.
 

3
 

 
  

4
 

 
 
  
  
  

RE
PO
RT
 O
F 
PR
OC
EE
DI
NG
S 
ha
d 
at
 t
h
e 
Re
gu
la
r
 

5
 

 
 
Me
et
in
g 
of
 t
he
 I
ll
in
oi
s 
Fi
na
nc
e 
Au
th
o
ri
ty
 o
n
 

6
 

 
 
Ap
ri
l 
10
, 
20
18
, 
at
 t
he
 h
ou
r 
of
 9
:3
0 
a
.m
.,
 p
ur
su
an
t
 

7
 

 
 
to
 n
ot
ic
e,
 a
t 
16
0 
No
rt
h 
La
Sa
ll
e 
St
re
e
t,
 S
ui
te
 S

-1
00
0,
 

8
 

 
 
Ch
ic
ag
o,
 I
ll
in
oi
s.
 

9
 

 
  

1
0
 

 
  

1
1
 

 
  

1
2
 

 
  

1
3
 

 
  

1
4
 

 
  

1
5
 

 
  

1
6
 

 
  

1
7
 

 
  

1
8
 

 
  

1
9
 

 
  

2
0
 

 
  

2
1
 

 
  

2
2
 

 
  

2
3
 

 
 

2
4
 

 
2

 
 
AP
PE
AR
AN
CE
S:
 

1
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
ER
IC
 A
ND
ER
BE
RG
, 
Ch
ai
rm
an
 

2
 

 
 
  
MS
. 
GI
LA
 B
RO
NN
ER
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
JA
ME
S 
J.
 F
UE
NT
ES
 

3
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
NE
IL
 H
EL
LE
R 

 
 
  
MR
. 
RO
BE
RT
 H
OR
NE
 

4
 

 
 
  
MS
. 
AR
LE
NE
 A
. 
JU
RA
CE
K 

 
 
  
MR
. 
LE
RR
Y 
KN
OX
 

5
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
LY
LE
 M
cC
OY
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
TE
RR
EN
CE
 M
. 
O'
BR
IE
N 

6
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
GE
OR
GE
 O
BE
RN
AG
EL
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
RO
GE
R 
E.
 P
OO
LE
 

7
 

 
 
  
MS
. 
BE
TH
 S
MO
OT
S 

 
 
  
MR
. 
BR
AD
LE
Y 
A.
 Z
EL
LE
R 

8
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
MI
CH
AE
L 
W.
 G
OE
TZ
 (
vi
a 
au
di
o 
co
n
fe
re
nc
e)
 

 
  

9
 

 
 
IL
LI
NO
IS
 F
IN
AN
CE
 A
UT
HO
RI
TY
 S
TA
FF
 M
EM
B
ER
S
 

1
0
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
CH
RI
ST
OP
HE
R 
B.
 M
EI
ST
ER
, 
Ex
ec
ut
i
ve
 D
ir
ec
to
r
 

1
1
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
RI
CH
 F
RA
MP
TO
N,
 V
ic
e 
Pr
es
id
en
t
 

 
 
  
MS
. 
PA
ME
LA
 L
EN
AN
E,
 V
ic
e 
Pr
es
id
en
t
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
BR
AD
 F
LE
TC
HE
R,
 I
FA
 A
ss
is
ta
nt
 V
i
ce

-P
re
si
de
nt
 

 
 
  
MS
. 
XI
ME
NA
 G
RA
ND
A,
 C
on
tr
ol
le
r
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
ST
AN
LE
Y 
LU
BO
FF
, 
IF
A 
Vi
ce
 P
re
si
d
en
t,
 L
oa
ns
 a
nd
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Gu
ar
an
te
es
 

1
4
 

 
 
  
MR
. 
RY
AN
 O
EC
HS
LE
R,
 I
FA
 A
ss
oc
ia
te
 G
e
ne
ra
l 
Co
un
se
l
 

 
 
  
MS
. 
JA
NE
LL
A 
KA
CZ
AN
KO
, 
IF
A 
Hu
ma
n 
Re
s
ou
rc
es
 M
an
ag
er
 

1
5
 

 
  

1
6
 

 
  

1
7
 

 
  

1
8
 

 
  

1
9
 

 
  

2
0
 

 
  

2
1
 

 
  

2
2
 

 
  

2
3
 

 
 

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 63



 
3

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Be
fo
re
 w
e 
g
et
 g
oi
ng
, 
I'
d
 

1
 

 
 
li
ke
 t
o 
we
lc
om
e 
ou
r 
ne
w 
me
mb
er
, 
Ne
il
 
He
ll
er
. 
 N
ei
l
 

2
 

 
 
co
me
s 
fr
om
 t
he
 B
lo
om

in
gt
on
 a
re
a,
 a
nd
 
he
's
 b
ee
n
 

3
 

 
 
ap
po
in
te
d 
by
 t
he
 G
ov
er
no
r 
an
d 
is
 a
wa
i
ti
ng
 h
is
 S
en
at
e
 

4
 

 
 
co
nf
ir
ma
ti
on
. 

5
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

So
 N
ei
l,
 t
ha
nk
 y
ou
 f
or
 
jo
in
in
g 
an
d
 

6
 

 
 
se
rv
in
g 
on
 t
he
 I
FA
. 

7
 

 
 
  
  
 H
EL
LE
R:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u.
 

8
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Wi
th
 t
ha
t,
 
I'
ll
 c
al
l 
th
e
 

9
 

 
 
me
et
in
g 
to
 o
rd
er
. 
 I
t'
s 
9:
42
.
 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
 F

LE
TC
HE
R:
  
I'
ll
 c
al
l 
th
e 
ro
ll
, 
n
ow
 t
ha
t 
th
e
 

1
1
 

 
 
me
et
in
g 
ha
s 
be
en
 c
al
le
d 
to
 o
rd
er
. 
 T
h
e 
ti
me
 i
s 
9:
42
.
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ms
. 
Br
on
ne
r?
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
 B
RO
NN
ER
: 
 H
er
e.
 

1
4
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Fu
en
te
s?
 

1
5
 

 
 
  
  
 F
UE
NT
ES
: 
 H
er
e.
 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
 F

LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
He
ll
er
? 

1
7
 

 
 
  
  
 H
EL
LE
R:
  
He
re
. 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Ho
rn
e?
 

1
9
 

 
 
  
  
 H
OR
NE
: 
 H
er
e.
 

2
0
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Ms
. 
Ju
ra
ce
k?
 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
 J
UR
AC
EK
: 
 H
er
e.
 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Kn
ox
? 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
 K
NO
X:
  
He
re
.

2
4
 

 
4

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Mc
Co
y?
 

1
 

 
 
  
  
 M
cC
OY
: 
 H
er
e.
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
 F

LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
O'
Br
ie
n?
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
 O
'B
RI
EN
: 
 H
er
e.
 

4
 

 
 
  
  
 F

LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Ob
er
na
ge
l?
 

5
 

 
 
  
  
 O
BE
RN
AG
EL
: 
 H
er
e.
 

6
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Po
ol
e?
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
 P
OO
LE
: 
 Y
es
. 

8
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Ms
. 
Sm
oo
ts
? 

9
 

 
 
  
  
 S
MO
OT
S:
  
He
re
. 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Ze
ll
er
? 

1
1
 

 
 
  
  
 Z
EL
LE
R:
  
He
re
. 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Ch
ai
rm
an
?
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
He
re
.
 

1
4
 

 
 
  
  
 F

LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Ch
ai
rm
an
, 
a 
qu
or
u
m 
of
 M
em
be
rs
 

1
5
 

 
 
ph
ys
ic
al
ly
 p
re
se
nt
 i
n 
th
e 
ro
om
 h
as
 b
e
en
 c
on
st
it
ut
ed
.
 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

At
 t
hi
s 
ti
me
, 
I'
d 
li
ke
 
to
 a
sk
 i
f 
an
y
 

1
7
 

 
 
Me
mb
er
s 
wo
ul
d 
li
ke
 t
o 
at
te
nd
 v
ia
 a
ud
i
o 
co
nf
er
en
ce
.
 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
 G
OE
TZ
: 
 T
hi
s 
is
 M
ik
e 
Go
et
z.
  
I'
m
 r
eq
ue
st
in
g 
to
 

1
9
 

 
 
at
te
nd
 v
ia
 a
ud
io
 c
on
fe
re
nc
e 
du
e 
to
 e
m
pl
oy
me
nt
 

2
0
 

 
 
pu
rp
os
es
. 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
 C
HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Ok
ay
. 
 I
s 
t
he
re
 a
 m
ot
io
n
 

2
2
 

 
 
to
 a
pp
ro
ve
 h
is
 r
eq
ue
st
 p
ur
su
an
t 
to

 t
h
e 
by
la
ws
 -

- 
2
3
 

 
 
  
  
 P
OO
LE
: 
 S
o 
mo
ve
d.

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 64



 
5

 
 
  
  
 C
HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  

--
 a
nd
 p
ol
i
ci
es
? 

1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

So
 m
ov
ed
. 
 A
 s
ec
on
d?
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
 B
RO
NN
ER
: 
 S
ec
on
d.
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Al
l 
th
os
e 
i
n 
fa
vo
r?
 

4
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(C
ho
ru
s 
of
 a
ye
s.
) 

5
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  

Op
po
se
d?
 

6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
e 
ay
es
 h
a
ve
 i
t.
 

8
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Al
l 
ri
gh
t.
  
Mr
. 
Ch
ai
r
ma
n,
 M
em
be
r
 

9
 

 
 
Go
et
z 
ha
s 
be
en
 a
dd
ed
 t
o 
th
e 
in
it
ia
l 
q
uo
ru
m 
ro
ll
 c
al
l.

 
1
0
 

 
 
  
  
 C
HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Ok
ay
. 
 D
oe
s
 a
ny
on
e 
wi
sh
 t
o
 

1
1
 

 
 
ma
ke
 a
ny
 a
dd
it
io
ns
, 
ed
it
s 
or
 c
or
re
ct
i
on
s 
to
 t
od
ay
's
 

1
2
 

 
 
Ag
en
da
? 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

1
4
 

 
 
  
  
 M
EI
ST
ER
: 
 I
'd
 l
ik
e 
to
 r
eq
ue
st
 a
 
mo
ti
on
 t
o
 

1
5
 

 
 
ap
pr
ov
e 
th
e 
Ag
en
da
. 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Is
 t
he
re
 s
uc
h 
a 
mo
ti
on
? 

1
7
 

 
 
  
  
 K
no
x:
  
So
 m
ov
ed
. 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Is
 
-
- 

1
9
 

 
 
  
  
 J
UR
AC
EK
: 
 S
ec
on
d.
 

2
0
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
A 
mo
ti
on
 a
n
d 
a 
se
co
nd
.
 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Al
l 
th
os
e 
in
 f
av
or
? 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(C
ho
ru
s 
of
 a
ye
s.
) 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Op
po
se
d?

2
4
 

 
6

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

1
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
e 
ay
es
 h
a
ve
 i
t.
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Is
 t
he
re
 a
ny
 p
ub
li
c 
co
m
me
nt
 f
or
 t
he
 

3
 

 
 
Me
mb
er
s?
 

4
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

5
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Ok
ay
. 
 I
 h
a
ve
 n
o 
re
ma
rk
s.
 

6
 

 
 
  
  
 M
EI
ST
ER
: 
 I
 h
av
e 
no
 r
em
ar
ks
.
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:

  
Ok
ay
. 
 C
om
m
it
te
e 
Re
po
rt
s.
 

8
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ms
. 
Br
on
ne
r?
 

9
 

 
 
  
  
 B
RO
NN
ER
: 
 T
ha
nk
 y
ou
. 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Th
e 
Au
di
t,
 B
ud
ge
t,
 F
in
a
nc
e,
 

1
1
 

 
 
In
ve
st
me
nt
, 
an
d 
Pr
oc
ur
em
en
t 
Co
mm
it
te
e
 m
et
 o
n
 

1
2
 

 
 
Ap
ri
l 
3r
d,
 2
01
8,
 a
nd
 v
ot
ed
 u
na
ni
mo
us
l
y 
to
 r
ec
om
me
nd

 
1
3
 

 
 
fo
r 
ac
ce
pt
an
ce
 t
he
 I
ll
in

oi
s 
Fi
na
nc
e 
A
ut
ho
ri
ty
 F
is
ca
l
 

1
4
 

 
 
Ye
ar
 2
01
7 
Fi
na
nc
ia
l 
Au
di
t 
an
d 
Fi
sc
al
 
Ye
ar
s 
20
16
 a
nd

 
1
5
 

 
 
20
17
 C
om
pl
ia
nc
e 
Ex
am
in
at
io
n.
 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

I'
d 
li
ke
 t
o 
ad
d,
 w
e 
ha
d
 a
 v
er
y 
ni
ce
 

1
7
 

 
 
co
nv
er
sa
ti
on
 w
it
h 
th
e 
in
te
rn
al
 a
ud
it
o
rs
 f
ro
m 
CM
S.

 
1
8
 

 
 
Si
x 
di
d,
 I
 t
ho
ug
ht
, 
al
so
 a
n 
ex
ce
ll
en

t
 p
re
se
nt
at
io
n 
of
 

1
9
 

 
 
co
rr
ec
ti
on
 a
ct
io
n 
an
d 
wh
at
 t
he
 A
ut
ho
r
it
y 
is
 d
oi
ng

 
2
0
 

 
 
re
la
ti
ve
 t
o 
an
y 
of
 t
he
 f
in
di
ng
s 
th
at
 
we
re
 a
 p
ar
t 
of

 
2
1
 

 
 
th
e 
Co
mp
li
an
ce
 E
xa
mi
na
ti
on
. 
 A
nd
 I
 h
a
ve
 t
he
 u
tm
os
t
 

2
2
 

 
 
co
nf
id
en
ce
 t
ha
t 
we
 a
re
 o
n 
ta
rg
et
 f
or
 
ad
dr
es
si
ng
 t
he
m.

 
2
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Th
at
's
 m
y 
re
po
rt
.

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 65



 
7

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u.

 
1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Mr
. 
Ho
rn
e?
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 S
o 
th
e 
Ta
x-

Ex
em
pt
 C
o
nd
ui
t 

3
 

 
 
Tr
an
sa
ct
io
ns
 C
om
mi
tt
ee
 m
et
 t
hi
s 
mo
rn
i
ng
 a
nd
 v
ot
ed

 
4
 

 
 
un
an
im
ou
sl
y 
to
 r
ec
om
me
nd
 a
pp
ro
va
l 
of
 
th
e 
fo
ll
ow
in
g
 

5
 

 
 
Ne
w 
Bu
si
ne
ss
 i
te
ms
: 
Th
e 
Be
tt
er
 H
ou
si
n
g 
Fo
un
da
ti
on
's

 
6
 

 
 
Bl
ue
 S
ta
ti
on
 P
ro
je
ct
, 
th
re
e 
Be
gi
nn
in
g
 F
ar
me
r 
Bo
nd
s,

 
7
 

 
 
an
d 
th
e 
St
. 
Fr
an
ci
s 
Hi
gh
 S
ch
oo
l 
Co
ll
e
ge
 P
re
p 
Pr
oj
ec
t
 

8
 

 
 
re
so
lu
ti
on
. 

9
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u.

 
1
0
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Mr
. 
Kn
ox
. 

1
1
 

 
 
  
  
 K
NO
X:
  
Th
e 
Di
re
ct
 a
nd
 A
lt
er
na
ti
v
e 
Fi
na
nc
e
 

1
2
 

 
 
Co
mm
it
te
e 
Me
mb
er
s 
me
t 
ea
rl
ie
r 
th
is
 m
o
rn
in
g 
an
d 
vo
te
d
 

1
3
 

 
 
un
an
im
ou
sl
y 
to
 r
ec
om
me
nd
 f
or
 a
pp
ro
va
l
 t
he
 f
ol
lo
wi
ng

 
1
4
 

 
 
ne
w 
bu
si
ne
ss
 i
te
m:
 N
ei
gh
bo
rh
oo
ds
.c
om
,
 L
LC
.
 

1
5
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Ok
ay
. 
 I
'd
 
li
ke
 t
o 
as
k 
fo
r
 

1
6
 

 
 
th
e 
ge
ne
ra

l 
co
ns
en
t 
of
 t
he
 M
em
be
rs
 t
o
 c
on
si
de
r 
Ne
w
 

1
7
 

 
 
Bu
si
ne
ss
 i
te
ms
 c
ol
le
ct
iv
el
y,
 a
nd
 h
av
e
 t
he
 s
ub
se
qu
en
t
 

1
8
 

 
 
vo
te
s 
re
co
rd
ed
 a
nd
 a
pp
li
ed
 t
o 
ea
ch
 r
e
sp
ec
ti
ve
,
 

1
9
 

 
 
in
di
vi
du
al
 i
te
m,
 u
nl
es
s 
th
er
e 
ar
e 
an
y
 s
pe
ci
fi
c 
Ne
w
 

2
0
 

 
 
Bu
si
ne
ss
 i
te
ms
 t
ha
t 
a 
me
mb
er
 w
ou
ld
 l
i
ke
 t
o 
co
ns
id
er

 
2
1
 

 
 
se
pa
ra
te
ly
. 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ok
ay
. 
 M
r.
 F
ra
mp
to
n?
 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u,
 M
r.
 C
ha
ir
m
an
.

2
4
 

 
8

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

It
em
 1
 i
s 
a 
Co
nd
ui
t 
Pr
i
va
te
 A
ct
iv
it
y
 

1
 

 
 
Bo
nd
 r
eq
ue
st
. 
 S
ta
ff
 r
eq
ue
st
s 
yo
ur
 o
n
e
-
ti
me
 F
in
al
 

2
 

 
 
Bo
nd
 R
es
ol
ut
io
n 
ap
pr
ov
al
 f
or
 2
01
8 
Bl
u
e 
Is
la
nd
 L
LC

 
3
 

 
 
Be
tt
er
 H
ou
si
ng
 F
ou
nd
at
io
n 
Bl
ue
 S
ta
ti
o
n 
Pr
oj
ec
t.
  
Bo
nd
 

4
 

 
 
pr
oc
ee
ds
 w
il
l 
be
 u
se
d 

--
 w
il
l 
be
 i
ss
u
ed
 i
n 
on
e 
or
 

5
 

 
 
mo
re
 s
er
ie
s 
an
d 
us
ed
 b
y 
th
e 
bo
rr
ow
er
 
to
 f
in
an
ce
 t
he

 
6
 

 
 
ac
qu
is
it
io
n 
an
d 
re
no
va
ti
on
 o
f 
a 
34
5
-
u
ni
t 
mu
lt
if
am
il
y 

7
 

 
 
ap
ar
tm
en
t 
pr
oj
ec
t 
kn
ow
n 
as
 B
lu
e 
St
at
i
on
 A
pa
rt
me
nt
s 
in

 
8
 

 
 
Bl
ue
 I
sl
an
d,
 I
ll
in
oi
s.
  
Ad
di
ti
on
al
ly
,
 b
on
d 
pr
oc
ee
ds

 
9
 

 
 
wi
ll
 b
e 
us
ed
 t
o 
ca
pi
ta
li
ze
 c
er
ta
in
 r
e
se
rv
es
, 
pa
y
 

1
0
 

 
 
ce
rt
ai
n 
pr
e-

ac
qu
is
it
io
n 
du
e 
di
li
ge
nc
e
 e
xp
en
se
s,
 a
nd
 

1
1
 

 
 
to
 p
ay
 c
os
ts
 o
f 
is
su
an
ce
.
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  

  
It
 i
s 
an
ti
ci
pa
te
d 
th
at
 
th
e 
Bo
nd
s 
wi
ll
 

1
3
 

 
 
be
 c
om
pr
is
ed
 o
f 
bo
th
 a
 S
ub
or
di
na
te
 T
a
x
-
Ex
em
pt
 S
er
ie
s 

1
4
 

 
 
an
d 
a 
Se
ni
or
 S
er
ie
s.
  
Th
e 
Se
ni
or
 S
er
i
es
 w
il
l 
fe
at
ur
e
 

1
5
 

 
 
bo
th
 a
 T
ax

-E
xe
mp
t 
su
bs
er
ie
s 
an
d 
a 
Ta
x
ab
le
 s
ub
se
ri
es
.
 

1
6
 

 
 
As
 w
it
h 
th
e 
fo
ur
 p
ri
or
 B
et
te
r 
Ho
us
in
g
 F
ou
nd
at
io
n
 

1
7
 

 
 
fi
na
nc
in
gs
, 
al
l 
se
ri
es
 o
f 
Bo
nd
s 
ar
e 
e
xp
ec
te
d 
to
 b
e
 

1
8
 

 
 
in
ve
st
me
nt
 g
ra
de
 r
at
ed
 b
y 
S&
P.
  
Th
is
 
wi
ll
 b
e 
th
e
 

1
9
 

 
 
fi
ft
h 
BH
F-
sp
on
so
re
d 
ac
qu
is
it
io
n 
fi
na
n
ci
ng
 t
hr
ou
gh
 I
FA
 

2
0
 

 
 
si
nc
e 
Ju
ly
 2
01
6.
 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
 M
em
be
r 
ha
ve
 a
n
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s 
or
 

2
2
 

 
 
wi
sh
 t
o 
ma
ke
 a
 s
ta
te

me
nt
? 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 66



 
9

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
Ok
ay
. 
 N
ex
t,
 w
e 
wi
ll
 
mo
ve
 o
n 
to
 I
te
m
 

1
 

 
 
2A
, 
wh
ic
h 
is
 a
 B
eg
in
ni
ng
 F
ar
me
r 
Bo
nd
 
re
qu
es
t.
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

St
af
f 
re
qu
es
ts
 y
ou
r 
on
e
-t
im
e 
Fi
na
l 

3
 

 
 
Bo
nd
 R
es
ol
ut
io
n 
ap
pr
ov
al
 f
or
 J
os
hu
a 
a
nd
 N
ic
ol
e 
Ho
ok
s,

 
4
 

 
 
wh
o 
ar
e 
pu
rc
ha
si
ng
 7
8-

 -
- 
76
 a
cr
es
 o
f
 f
ar
ml
an
d 

5
 

 
 
lo
ca
te
d 
in
 E
ff
in
gh
am
 C
ou
nt
y,
 i
n 
th
e 
n
ot

-t
o-
ex
ce
ed
 

6
 

 
 
am
ou
nt
 o
f 
$3
00
,0
00
. 
 F
ir
st
 M
id
 I
ll
in
o
is
 B
an
k 
& 
Tr
us
t
 

7
 

 
 
is
 t
he
 p
ur
ch
as
in
g 
ba
nk
 f
or
 t
hi
s 
co
nd
u
it
 t
ra
ns
ac
ti
on
.
 

8
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
 M
em
be
r 
ha
ve
 a
n
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s 
or
 

9
 

 
 
wi
sh
 t
o 
ma
ke
 a
 s
ta
te
me
nt
?
 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

1
1
 

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
Ne
xt
 i
s 
It
em
 2
B,
 w
hi
c
h 
is
 a
 

1
2
 

 
 
Be
gi
nn
in
g 
Fa
rm
er
 B
on
d 
re
qu
es
t.
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

St
af
f 
re
qu
es
ts
 y
ou
r 
on
e
-t
im
e 
Fi
na
l 

1
4
 

 
 
Bo
nd
 R
es
ol
ut
io
n 
ap
pr
ov
al
 f
or
 J
or
da
n 
W
ei
dn
er
, 
wh
o 
is

 
1
5
 

 
 
pu
rc
ha
si
ng
 7
5 
ac
re
s 
of
 f
ar
ml
an
d 
lo
ca
t
ed
 i
n 
Cl
ay

 
1
6
 

 
 
Co
un
ty
, 
in
 t
he
 n
ot

-t
o-
ex
ce
ed
 a
mo
un
t 
o
f 
$2
42
,5
00
. 
 T
he
 

1
7
 

 
 
Pe
op
le
s 
St
at
e 
Ba
nk
 o
f 
Ne
wt
on
 i
s 
th
e 
p
ur
ch
as
in
g 
ba
nk

 
1
8
 

 
 
fo
r 
th
is
 c
on
du
it
 t
ra
ns
ac
ti
on
.
 

1
9
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
 M
em
be
r 
ha
ve
 a
n
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s 
or
 

2
0
 

 
 
wi
sh
 t
o 

ma
ke
 a
 s
ta
te
me
nt
? 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
It
em
 2
C,
 J
us
ti
n 
Pr
ob
s
t.
 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

It
em
 2
C 
is
 a
 B
eg
in
ni
ng
 
Fa
rm
er
 B
on
d

2
4
 

 
1
0 

 
 
re
qu
es
t.
  
St
af
f 
re
qu
es
ts
 y
ou
r 
on
e
-
ti
m
e 
Fi
na
l 
Bo
nd
 

1
 

 
 
Re
so
lu
ti
on
 a
pp
ro
va
l 
fo
r 
Ju
st
in
 P
ro
bs
t
, 
wh
o 
is
 

2
 

 
 
pu
rc
ha
si
ng
 a

pp
ro
xi
ma
te
ly
 4
8 
ac
re
s 
of
 
fa
rm
la
nd
,
 

3
 

 
 
in
cl
ud
in
g 
gr
ai
n 
bi
ns
, 
lo
ca
te
d 
in
 M
on
t
go
me
ry
 C
ou
nt
y,

 
4
 

 
 
in
 t
he
 n
ot

-t
o-
ex
ce
ed
 a
mo
un
t 
of
 $
30
3,
0
00
. 
 F
ir
st
 

5
 

 
 
Na
ti
on
al
 B
an
k 
of
 R
ay
mo
nd
 i
s 
th
e 
pu
rc
h
as
in
g 
ba
nk
 f
or

 
6
 

 
 
th
is
 c
on
du
it
 t
ra
ns
ac
ti
on
.
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
 M
em
be
r 
ha
ve

 a
n
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s 
or
 

8
 

 
 
wi
sh
 t
o 
ma
ke
 a
 s
ta
te
me
nt
?
 

9
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
Ch
ec
k 
th
e 
pr
in
t 
bi
n.
 
 T
he
re
 m
ay
 h
av
e
 

1
1
 

 
 
be
en
 a
 l
at
e 
up
da
te
 o
n 
th
at
 p
ar
ti
cu
la
r
 i
te
m.
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

It
em
 3
 i
s 
fo
r 
Ne
ig
hb
or
h
oo
ds
.c
om
, 
LL
C.
 

1
3
 

 
 
It
em
 3
 i
s 
a 
Pa
rt
ic
ip
a
t
io
n 
Lo
an
 r
eq
ue
s
t.
  
St
af
f 

1
4
 

 
 
re
qu
es
ts
 y
ou
r 
on
e-

ti
me
 f
in
al
 a
pp
ro
va
l
 f
or
 

1
5
 

 
 
Ne
ig
hb
or
ho
od
s.
co
m,
 L
LC
. 
 T
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
t
y 
is
 b
ei
ng
 a
sk
ed

 
1
6
 

 
 
to
 p
ur
ch
as
e 
a 
lo
an
 p
ar
ti
ci
pa
ti
on
 i
n 
t
he
 a
mo
un
t 
of

 
1
7
 

 
 
$2
75
,0
00
, 
am
or
ti
ze
d 
ov
er
 s
ev
en
 y
ea
rs
,
 t
o 
fi
na
nc
e 
pa
rt

 
1
8
 

 
 
of
 t
he
 b
ui
ld

-o
ut
 o
f 
ne
w 
of
fi
ce
 s
pa
ce
 
fo
r 
th
e
 

1
9
 

 
 
Bo
rr
ow
er
. 

2
0
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Th
e 
pa
rt
ic
ip
at
in
g 
ba
nk
 
fo
r 
th
is
 

2
1
 

 
 
tr
an
sa
ct
io
n 
is
 W
in
tr
us
t 
Ba
nk
. 
 T
he
 A
u
th
or
it
y'
s
 

2
2
 

 
 
pa
rt
ic
ip
at
io
n 
wi
ll
 b
e 
su
bo
rd
in
at
ed
 t
o
 W
in
tr
us
t 
Ba
nk
's

 
2
3
 

 
 
po
te
nt
ia
l 
ex
po
su
re
 t
o 
th
e 
Bo
rr
ow
er
, 
a
nd
 t
h
e
 B
an
k'
s

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 67



 
1
1 

 
 
an
d 
Au
th
or
it
y'
s 
po
si
ti
on
s 
wi
ll
 b
e 
se
c
ur
ed
 b
y 
a
 

1
 

 
 
fi
rs
t-
pr
io
ri
ty
 b
la
nk
et
 l
ie
n 
on
 a
ll
 b
u
si
ne
ss
 a
ss
et
s 
of
 

2
 

 
 
th
e 
Bo
rr
ow
er
 a
s 
we
ll
 a
s 
un
li
mi
te
d 
jo
i
nt
 a
nd
 s
ev
er
al

 
3
 

 
 
pe
rs
on
al
 g
ua
ra
nt
ee
s 
by
 e
ac
h 
of
 t
he
 B
o
rr
ow
er
's
 t
wo

 
4
 

 
 
ow
ne
rs
. 

5
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
 M

em
be
r 
ha
ve
 a
n
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s 
or
 

6
 

 
 
wi
sh
 t
o 
ma
ke
 a
 s
ta
te
me
nt
?
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 I
 j
us
t 
ha
d 
a 
qu
es
ti
o
n.
 

8
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

So
 t
hi
s 
is
 u
nd
er
 t
hi
s 
n
ew
 p
ro
gr
am
?
 

9
 

 
 
  
  
 M
EI
ST
ER
: 
 Y
es
. 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 T
hi
s 
wa
s 
in
te
nd
ed
 f
o
r 
ve
te
ra
ns
 

1
1
 

 
 
an
d 
--
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
 M
EI
ST
ER
: 
 B
ut
 w
e 
al

so
 e
xp
an
de
d 
i
t 
to
 a
ll
 

1
3
 

 
 
bu
si
ne
ss
es
, 
an
d 
th
en
 w
it
h 
a 
pa
rt
ic
ul
a
r 
fo
cu
s 
on

 
1
4
 

 
 
di
sa
bi
li
ty
 a
nd
 m
in
or
it
y.
  
We
 h
av
e 
si
g
ne
d 
up
 s
ix

 
1
5
 

 
 
ba
nk
s;
 w
e'
ve
 g
ot
 a
 n
um
be
r 
of
 o
th
er
 b
a
nk
s,
 a
nd
 t
he
y'
ve

 
1
6
 

 
 
si
gn
ed
 m
as
te
r 
ag
re
em
en
ts
.
 

1
7
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Th
is
 w
as
 t
he
 f
ir
st
 p
ro
j
ec
t 
th
at
 w
a
s 

1
8
 

 
 
re
ad
y,
 a
nd
 i
t'
s 

--
 i
t 
wa
s 
re
qu
es
te
d 
b
y 
th
e 
ba
nk
 a
nd
 

1
9
 

 
 
pr
ov
id
es
 a
 b
en
ef
it
 t
o 
th
e 
Bo
rr
ow
er
, 
a
nd
 w
e 
th
in
k
 

2
0
 

 
 
co
ul
d 
be
 t
he
 i
ni
ti
al
 o
f 
a 
mo
re
 w
id
e
-
r
an
gi
ng
 p
ro
gr
am
 

2
1
 

 
 
us
in
g 
Au
th
or
it
y 
fu
nd
s.
 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 S
o 
we
'r
e 
go
in
g 
to
 b
r
oa
de
n 
th
e
 

2
3
 

 
 
mi
ss
io
n,
 b
as
ic
al
ly
.

2
4
 

 
1
2 

 
 
  
  
 M
EI
ST
ER
: 
 Y
es
. 
 T
he
re
 w
er
e 

--
 

1
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 D
oe
s 
th
at
 k
in
d 
of
 p
u
t 
us
 i
n 
th
e 

--
 

2
 

 
 
be
co
mi
ng
, 
ba
si
ca
ll
y 
a 
ba
nk
?
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
 M

EI
ST
ER
: 
 A
ct
ua
ll
y,
 S
ta
n 
Lu
bo
ff
,
 c
ou
ld
 y
ou
 

4
 

 
 
an
sw
er
 M
em
be
r 
Ho
rn
e'
s 
qu
es
ti
on
?
 

5
 

 
 
  
  
 L
UB
OF
F:
  
Ce
rt
ai
nl
y.
  
Go
od
 m
or
ni
n
g.
 

6
 

 
 
  
  
  

  
  
  
  
Th
is
 i
s 
an
 i
ni
ti
al
 r
eq
u
es
t.
  
It
 i
s,
 i
n
 

7
 

 
 
es
se
nc
e,
 a
 p
ro
of
 o
f 
pr
oc
es
s.
  
We
 c
an
 
sh
ow
 b
an
ks
 t
ha
t
 

8
 

 
 
we
'r
e 
re
ad
y 
to
 r
ol
l.
  
Ho
we
ve
r,
 I
 a
m 
n
ow
 w
or
ki
ng
 o
n 
a
 

9
 

 
 
pr
oj
ec
t 
fo
r 
a 
Hi
sp
an
ic

-o
wn
ed
 p
ri
nt
in
g
 c
om
pa
ny
 i
n
 

1
0
 

 
 
Ro
ck
fo
rd
. 
 T
he
re
 i
s 
al
so
 a
 p
ro
je
ct
 f
r
om
 U
CB
 B
a
n
k 
th
at
 

1
1
 

 
 
in
vo
lv
es
 a
 v
et
er
an

-o
wn
ed
 A
lz
he
im
er
's
 
ca
re
 c
en
te
r,
 a
nd
 

1
2
 

 
 
we
'r
e 
al
so
 l
oo
ki
ng
 a
t 
th
e 
Ba
nk
 o
f 
Be
l
le
vi
ll
e 
fo
r 
a
 

1
3
 

 
 
wo
ma
n-
ow
ne
d 
re
st
au
ra
nt
. 
 S
he
 h
as
 a
 c
o
up
le
 o
f
 

1
4
 

 
 
re
st
au
ra
nt
s 
in
 M
is
so
ur
i 
an
d 
sh
e'
s 
op
e
ni
ng
 o
ne
 i
n
 

1
5
 

 
 
Il
li
no
is
. 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

So
 t
he
 i
de
a 
is

, 
ye
s,
 w
e
'r
e 
ce
rt
ai
nl
y
 

1
7
 

 
 
fo
cu
se
d 
ou
r 
ma
rk
et
in
g 
on
 v
et
er
an
s,
 m
i
no
ri
ty
, 
wo
ma
n,

 
1
8
 

 
 
di
sa
bl
ed
, 
an
d 
fa
rm
er
s 
an
d 
ag
ri
bu
si
ne
s
s.
  
Bu
t 
we
 d
o
 

1
9
 

 
 
ne
ed
 t
o 
ge
t 
de
al
s 
go
in
g 
so
 t
ha
t 
we
 c
a
n 
pr
ov
e 
th
at
 w
e
 

2
0
 

 
 
ha
ve
 a
 v
ia
bl
e 
pr
od
uc
t,
 s
ir
.
 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 I
 u
nd
er
st
an
d.
 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

I 
ju
st
 -
- 
to
 m
e,
 I
 r
ea
d
 t
hi
s,
 l
ik
e,
 a
s
 

2
3
 

 
 
a 
ba
nk
. 
 W
e'
re
 t
ak
in
g 
a 
su
bo
rd
in
at
e 
p
os
it
io
n 
to
 a

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 68



 
1
3 

 
 
ba
nk
 l
oa
n-

at
-r
is
k,
 a
nd
 i
t 
wa
sn
't
 r
ea
l
ly
 s
pe
ci
fi
c 
to
 

1
 

 
 
th
e 
or
ig
in
al
 m
is
si
on
 o
f 
wh
at
 t
hi
s 
pr
o
gr
am
 w
as
 

2
 

 
 
in
te
nd
ed
 f
or
. 

3
 

 
 
  
  
 L

UB
OF
F:
  
I 
un
de
rs
ta
nd
. 

4
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Th
er
e 
ar
e 
fo
ur
 m
ai
n 
ta
r
ge
ts
 o
f 
th
e 

--
 

5
 

 
 
of
 t
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty
. 
 W
e 
ar
e 
in
ve
st
in
g 
t
he
se
 f
un
ds
 i
n 
a
 

6
 

 
 
ve
ry
 c
ar
ef
ul
 m
an
ne
r,
 a
nd
 w
e'
re
 g
iv
in
g
 t
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty
 a

 
7
 

 
 
go
od
 r
et
ur
n 
th
at
 w
il
l 
en
ab
le
 t
hi
s 
to
 
be
co
me
 a
 

8
 

 
 
se
lf
-s
us
ta
in
in
g 
pr
og
ra
m.
 

9
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 O
ka
y.
 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
 L
UB
OF
F:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u,
 s
ir
.
 

1
1
 

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
Ok
ay
. 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
 M
EI
ST
ER
: 
 I
 t
hi
nk
 t
ha
t 
Me
mb
er
 K
n
ox
 n
ee
ds
 t
o
 

1
3
 

 
 
le
av
e 
fo
r 
an
ot
he
r 

--
 

1
4
 

 
 
  
  
 K
NO
X:
  
Ye
ah
. 
 I
 h
av
e 

--
 u
nf
or
tu
n
at
el
y,
 I
 h
av
e 
a 

1
5
 

 
 
co
nf
li
ct
 -
- 
bu
si
ne
ss
 c
on
fl
ic
t.
 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
 y
ou
 n
ee
d 
me

 f
or
 t
he
 
vo
te
 f
or
 

1
7
 

 
 
qu
or
um
? 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
No
. 

1
9
 

 
 
  
  
 K
NO
X:
  
I'
m 
go
od
? 

2
0
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Yo
u'
re
 g
oo
d.
 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
 K
NO
X:
  
Ok
ay
. 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u,
 
Le
rr
y.
 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
 K
NO
X:
  
So
 I
 a
sk
 t
o 
be
 r
ec
us
ed
. 
 
Th
an
k 
yo
u,

2
4
 

 
1
4 

 
 
ev
er
yo
ne
. 

1
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Le
t 

th
e 
re
co
rd
 r
ef
le
c
t,
 p
le
as
e,
 t
ha
t
 

2
 

 
 
Me
mb
er
 K
no
x 
ha
s 
ex
it
ed
 t
he
 r
oo
m.
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
I'
m 
go
in
g 
to
 j
um
p 
ba
c
k 
to
 I
te
m 
2C
 t
o
 

4
 

 
 
no
te
 t
he
 c
or
re
ct
 f
ac
ts
 f
or
 t
he
 r
ec
or
d
. 
 T
he
 I
te
m,
 a
s
 

5
 

 
 
re
po
rt
ed
 i
n 
th
e 
Bo
ar
d 
Bo
ok
 a
nd
 A
ge
nd
a
 i
s 
co
rr
ec
t.
  
So

 
6
 

 
 
ju
st
 t
o 
cl
ar
if
y 
It
em

 2
C,
 J
us
ti
n 
Pr
ob
s
t,
 B
eg
in
ni
ng
 

7
 

 
 
Fa
rm
er
 B
on
d,
 S
ta
ff
 r
eq
ue
st
s 
yo
ur
 o
ne

-
ti
me
 F
in
al
 B
on
d 

8
 

 
 
Re
so
lu
ti
on
 a
pp
ro
va
l 
fo
r 
Ju
st
in
 P
ro
bs
t
, 
wh
o 
is
 

9
 

 
 
pu
rc
ha
si
ng
 4
8 
ac
re
s 
of
 f
ar
ml
an
d 
lo
ca
t
ed
 i
n 
Ja
sp
er

 
1
0
 

 
 
Co
un
ty
, 
an
d 
th
e 
no
t-

to
-e
xc
ee
d 
am
ou
nt
 
is
 $
92
,5
00
.
 

1
1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

So
 t
ho
se
 t
wo
 -

- 
1
2
 

 
 
  
  
 F

LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Pu
rc
ha
si
ng
 b
an
k?
  
Pe
o
pl
es
 B
an
k?
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
 F

RA
MP
TO
N:
  
Ye
ah
. 
 P
eo
pl
es
 S
ta
te
 
Ba
nk
 i
s 
th
e
 

1
4
 

 
 
pu
rc
ha
se
r.
 

1
5
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Mo
vi
ng
 o
n 

--
 m
ov
in
g 
on
,
 n
ex
t,
 I
te
m 
4.
 

1
6
 

 
 
It
em
 4
 i
s 
a 
Re
so
lu
ti
on
 o
n 
be
ha
lf
 o
f 
S
t.
 F
ra
nc
is
 H
ig
h
 

1
7
 

 
 
Sc
ho
ol
 a
nd
 W
he
at
on
 B
an
k 
& 
Tr
us
t 
Co
mp
a
ny
 t
ha
t 
wi
ll

 
1
8
 

 
 
au
th
or
iz
e 
ex
ec
ut
io
n 
an
d 
de
li
ve
ry
 o
f 
a
 F
ir
st
 A
me
nd
me
nt

 
1
9
 

 
 
to
 t
he
ir
 S
er
ie
s 
20
10
 B
on
d 
an
d 
Lo
an
 A
g
re
em
en
t,
 a
nd

 
2
0
 

 
 
ap
pr
ov
e 
re
la
te
d 
do
cu
me
nt
s 
to
 r
es
et
 t
h
e 
in
te
re
st
 r
at
e
 

2
1
 

 
 
bo
rn
e 
on
 t
he
 S
er
ie
s 
20
10
 B
on
d 
fo
r 
a 
n
ew
 
t
er
m 
of
 1
0 

2
2
 

 
 
ye
ar
s.
 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ap
pr
ov
al
 o
f 
th
is
 R
es
ol
u
ti
on
 w
il
l

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 69



 
1
5 

 
 
pr
ov
id
e 
co
ns
en
t 
to
 c
ha
ng
es
 a
gr
ee
d 
to
 
by
 t
he
 B
or
ro
we
r
 

1
 

 
 
an
d 
th
ei
r 
Se
ri
es
 2
01
0 
Bo
nd
 P
ur
ch
as
er
,
 W
he
at
on
 B
an
k 
&
 

2
 

 
 
Tr
us
t 
Co
mp
an
y,
 w
hi
ch
 i
s 
a 
Wi
nt
ru
st
 C
o
mm
un
it
y 
Ba
nk
.
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
 M
em
be
r 
ha
ve
 a
n
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s 
or
 

4
 

 
 
wi
sh
 t
o 
ma
ke
 a
 s
ta
te
me
nt
?
 

5
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

6
 

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
Ok
ay
. 
 N
ex
t,
 I
te
m 
5.

 
7
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

It
em
 5
 i
s 
a 
Re
so
lu
ti
on
 
ac
ce
pt
in
g 
th
e
 

8
 

 
 
Il
li
no
is
 F
in
an
ce
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty
 F
is
ca
l 
Ye
a
r 
20
17
 F
in
an
ci
al

 
9
 

 
 
Au
di
t 
an
d 
Fi
sc
al
 Y

ea
rs
 2
01
6 
an
d 
20
17
 
Co
mp
li
an
ce
 

1
0
 

 
 
Ex
am
in
at
io
n,
 b
ot
h 
co
nd
uc
te
d 
by
 S
pe
ci
a
l 
As
si
st
an
t
 

1
1
 

 
 
Au
di
to
rs
 f
or
 t
he
 I
ll
in
oi
s 
Au
di
to
r 
Ge
n
er
al
.
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Th
e 
Co
mp
li
an
ce
 E
xa
mi
na
t
io
n 
yi
el
de
d 
on
e
 

1
3
 

 
 
cu
rr
en
t 
fi
nd
in
g 
re
la
te
d 
to
 G
ov
er
nm
en
t
 a
cc
ou
nt
in
g 

--
 

1
4
 

 
 
Go
ve
rn
me
nt
 A
ud
it
in
g 
St
an
da
rd
s 
an
d 
ei
g
ht
 c
ur
re
nt

 
1
5
 

 
 
fi
nd
in
gs
 r
el
at
ed
 t
o 
st
at
e 
co
mp
li
an
ce
.
  
Th
e 
Au
th
or
it
y
 

1
6
 

 
 
ha
s 
ta
ke
n 
im
me
di
at
e 
ac
ti
on
 t
o 
en
su
re
 
th
at
 t
he
se

 
1
7
 

 
 
fi
nd
in
gs
 a
re
 n
ot
 r
ep
ea
te
d.
 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A 
ch
ar
t 
de
ta
il
in
g 
th
e 
A
ut
ho
ri
ty
's
 

1
9
 

 
 
re
sp
on
se
 t
o 
ea
ch
 f
in

di
ng
 a
nd
 p
ro
gr
es
s
 i
n 
re
sp
on
di
ng
 

2
0
 

 
 
is
 i
n 
yo
ur
 f
ol
de
rs
. 
 A
s 
yo
u 
wi
ll
 s
ee
,
 t
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty

 
2
1
 

 
 
ha
s 
fu
ll
y 
re
sp
on
de
d 
to
 s
om
e 
fi
nd
in
gs
 
an
d 
ha
s 
ta
ke
n
 

2
2
 

 
 
si
gn
if
ic
an
t 
st
ep
s 
to
 r
es
po
nd
 t
o 
th
e 
o
th
er
s.
  
Th
e
 

2
3
 

 
 
Au
th
or
it
y 
al
so
 s
uc
ce
ss
fu
ll
y 
re
so
lv
ed
 
fo
ur
 p
ri
or

2
4
 

 
1
6 

 
 
fi
nd
in
gs
 w
hi
ch

 w
er
e 
no
t 
re
pe
at
ed
. 

1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
 M
em
be
r 
ha
ve
 a
n
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s 
or
 

2
 

 
 
wi
sh
 t
o 
ma
ke
 a
 s
ta
te
me
nt
?
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

4
 

 
 
  
  
 M
EI
ST
ER
: 
 N
ex
t,
 I
te
m 
6,
 A
ut
ho
ri
z
at
io
n 
to
 

5
 

 
 
Co
nt
ra
ct
 f
or
 I
ns
ur
an
ce
.
 

6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

It
em
 6
 i
s 
a 
Re
so
lu
ti
on
 
au
th
or
iz
in

g 
th
e 

7
 

 
 
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e 
Di
re
ct
or
 t
o 
en
te
r 
in
to
 a
 c
o
nt
ra
ct
 o
r
 

8
 

 
 
co
nt
ra
ct
s 
wi
th
 a
 v
en
do
r 
fo
r 
in
su
ra
nc
e
 s
er
vi
ce
s,

 
9
 

 
 
Al
li
an
t/
Me
si
ro
w,
 p
ur
su
an
t 
to
 a
 s
ta
te
 
ma
st
er
 c
on
tr
ac
t.

 
1
0
 

 
 
Su
ch
 c
on
tr
ac
t 
or
 c
on
tr
ac
ts
 w
il
l 
be
 f
o
r 
in
su
ra
nc
e
 

1
1
 

 
 
br
ok
er
ag
e 
an
d 
ot
he
r 
in
su
ra
nc
e 
se
rv
ic
e
s,
 i
n
c
lu
di
ng
 

1
2
 

 
 
em
pl
oy
ee
 b
en
ef
it
s.
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A 
pr
io
r 
co
nt
ra
ct
 w
it
h 
M
es
ir
ow
 f
or
 

1
4
 

 
 
in
su
ra
nc
e 
br
ok
er
ag
e 
an
d 
ot
he
r 
se
rv
ic
e
s 
wa
s 
ap
pr
ov
ed

 
1
5
 

 
 
by
 a
 R
es
ol
ut
io
n 
ad
op
te
d 
Ju
ly
 1
4,
 2
01
6
. 
 T
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty

 
1
6
 

 
 
ag
ai
n 
co
nt
ra
ct
ed
 w
it
h 
Me
si
ro
w 
in
 2
01
7
 f
or
 s
im
il
ar

 
1
7
 

 
 
se
rv
ic
es
 p
ur
su

an
t 
to
 A
ll
ia
nt
/M
es
ir
ow
'
s 
st
at
e 
ma
st
er
 

1
8
 

 
 
co
nt
ra
ct
. 

1
9
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

A 
sc
he
ma
ti
c 
se
tt
in
g 
fo
r
th
 a
 

2
0
 

 
 
de
sc
ri
pt
io
n 
of
 t
he
 i
ns
ur
an
ce
 c
ov
er
ag
e
s 
th
e 
Au
th
or
it
y
 

2
1
 

 
 
wi
ll
 o
bt
ai
n 
pu
rs
ua
nt
 t
o 
Me
si
ro
w'
s 
st
a
te
 m
as
te
r
 

2
2
 

 
 
co
nt
ra
ct
 i
s 
in
 y
ou
r 
fo
ld
er
s.
  
No
te
 t
h
at
 m
an
y 
of
 t
he
se

 
2
3
 

 
 
co
ve
ra
ge
s 
ar
e 
cu
rr
en
tl
y 
pr
ov
id
ed
 t
o 
t
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 70



 
1
7 

 
 
pu
rs
ua
nt
 t
o 
th
at
 m
as
te
r 
co
nt
ra
ct
.
 

1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

We
 e
xp
ec
t 
th
is
 c
on
tr
ac
t
 o
r 
co
nt
ra
ct
s
 

2
 

 
 
wi
th
 M
es
ir
ow
 t
o 
be
 t
he
 f
in
al
 p
ie
ce
 i
n
 t
he
 y
ea
rs

-l
on
g 

3
 

 
 
ef
fo
rt
 t
o 
tr
an
si
ti
on
 t
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty
 a
w
ay
 f
ro
m 
it
s
 

4
 

 
 
lo
ng
ti
me
 e
mp
lo
ye
e 
be
ne
fi
ts
 a
nd
 p
ay
ro
l
l 
pr
ov
id
er
.
 

5
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
 M
em
be
r 
ha
ve
 a
n
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s 
or
 

6
 

 
 
wi
sh
 t
o 
ma
ke
 a
 s
ta
te
me
nt
?
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 I
s 

--
 d
o 
we
 d
o 
an
 R
F
P 
fo
r 

8
 

 
 
in
su
ra
nc
e?
 

9
 

 
 
  
  
 M
EI
ST
ER
: 
 A
ct
ua
ll
y,
 t
he
 S
ta
te
 d
o
es
 a
 m
as
te
r 
RF
P
 

1
0
 

 
 
th
at
 t
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty

 h
as
 t
he
 a
bi
li
ty
, 
a
s 
a 
co
mp
on
en
t
 

1
1
 

 
 
pa
rt
 o
f 
th
e 
St
at
e,
 t
o 
av
ai
l 
th
em
se
lv
e
s.
  
So
 w
e
 

1
2
 

 
 
us
ed
 -
- 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
 M

R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 S
o 
yo
u 
us
e 
th
ei
r 
bu
y
in
g 
po
we
r 
to
 

1
4
 

 
 
ba
si
ca
ll
y 

--
 

1
5
 

 
 
  
  
 M

EI
ST
ER
: 
 Y
es
. 
 W
e 
us
e 
th
ei
r 
bu
y
in
g 
po
we
r 
an
d
 

1
6
 

 
 
th
ei
r 
co
nt
ra
ct
, 
an
d 
th
en
 w
ha
t 
th
ey
 d
i
d 

--
 a
nd
 t
he
n 

1
7
 

 
 
wh
at
 -
- 
wo
rk
in
g 
wi
th
 t
he
 v
en
do
r,
 t
he
y
 c
an
va
ss
ed
 t
he
 

1
8
 

 
 
ma
rk
et
 f
or
 b
ot
h 
li
ab
il
it
y 
an
d 
fo
r 
em
p
lo
ye
e 
be
ne
fi
ts
.
 

1
9
 

 
 
Th
er
e 
we
re
 a
t 
le
as
t 
th
re
e,
 s
om
et
im
es
 
mo
re
, 
pr
od
uc
ts

 
2
0
 

 
 
on
 -
- 
on
 e
ac
h 
of
 t
he
 t
he
se
. 
 A
nd
 t
he
 
gu
id
in
g
 

2
1
 

 
 
pr
in
ci
pl
es
 t
ha
t 
we
 u
se
d 
wi
th
 t
hi
s 

pr
o
ce
ss
 w
as
 t
o 
be
 

2
2
 

 
 
ab
le
 t
o 
de
li
ve
r 
to
 t
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty
 a
nd
 
to
 t
he
 e
mp
lo
ye
es

 
2
3
 

 
 
th
e 
sa
me
 o
r 
be
tt
er
 q
ua
li
ty
, 
th
e 
sa
me
 
or
 b
et
te
r 
ch
oi
ce

2
4
 

 
1
8 

 
 
at
 a
pp
ro
xi
ma
te
ly
 t
he
 s
am
e 
or
 b
et
te
r 
p
ri
ce
, 
an
d 
we

 
1
 

 
 
be
li
ev
e 
th
at
 w
e 
ha
ve
 a
cc
om
pl
is
he
d 
th
a
t.
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

An
d 
Si
x,
 w
ho
 h
as
 b
ee
n 
l
ea
di
ng
 u
p 
th
is
 

3
 

 
 
la
te
r 
--
 t
hi
s 
ef
fo
rt
, 
al
on
g 
wi
th
 J
an
e
ll
a 
Ka
cz
an
ko
 
-
- 

4
 

 
 
Ja
ne
ll
a,
 c
ou
ld
 y
ou
 s
ta
nd
 u
p 
to
o?
 

5
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

--
 w
ho
 j
oi
ne
d 
us
 -

- 
6
 

 
 
  
  
 M
S.
 J
AN
EL
LA
 K
AC
ZA
NK
O:
  
Go
od
 m
or
n
in
g.
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
 M

EI
ST
ER
: 
 -

- 
in
 J
an
ua
ry
. 

 A
nd
 s
h
e'
s 
go
t 
a 

8
 

 
 
ba
ck
gr
ou
nd
 i
n 
HR
 a
nd
 b
en
ef
it
s,
 a
nd
 t
h
ey
'v
e 
be
en

 
9
 

 
 
he
lp
in
g 
--
 a
nd
 s
he
's
 b
ee
n 
he
lp
in
g 
Si
x
 a
nd
 I
 m
ov
e
 

1
0
 

 
 
th
ro
ug
h 
th
is
 p
ro
ce
ss
. 
 B
ut
 i
t'
s 
a 
ve
r
y 
go
od
 r
es
ul
t
 

1
1
 

 
 
fo
r 
th
e 
--
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 S
ou
nd
s 
go
od
.
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
 M

EI
ST
ER
: 
 -

- 
em
pl
oy
ee
s.
 

1
4
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 S
ou
nd
s 
go
od
. 
 T
ha
nk
s
.
 

1
5
 

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
Ok
ay
. 
 N
ex
t,
 I
te
m 
7:
 
 A
pp
ro
va
l 
of
 

1
6
 

 
 
Ch
an
ge
 i
n 
Me
et
in
g 
Da
te
s 
fo
r 
th
e 
Re
ma
i
nd
er
 o
f 
FY
 2
01
8.

 
1
7
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

It
em
 7
 i
s 
a 
Re
so
lu
ti
on
 
ap
pr
ov
in
g 
th
e
 

1
8
 

 
 
ch
an
ge
 i
n 
th
e 
da
te
s 
of
 t
he
 r
eg
ul
ar
 m
e
et
in
gs
 r
em
ai
ni
ng

 
1
9
 

 
 
in
 F
is
ca
l 
Ye
ar
 2
01
8,
 t
he
 M
ay
 a
nd
 J
un
e
 m
ee
ti
ng
s,
 f
ro
m
 

2
0
 

 
 
th
e 
se
co
nd
 T
hu
rs
da
y 
of
 e
ac
h 
mo
nt
h 
to
 
th
e 
se
co
nd

 
2
1
 

 
 
Tu
es
da
y 
of
 t
ho
se
 t
wo
 m
on
th
s.
 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Th
e 
me
et
in
g 
sc
he
du
le
d 
f
or
 T
hu
rs
da
y,
 

2
3
 

 
 
Ma
y 
10
th
 w
il
l 
be
 m
ov
ed
 t
o 
Tu
es
da
y,
 M
a
y 
th
e 
8t
h,
 a
nd

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 71



 
1
9 

 
 
th
e 
me
et
in
g 
sc
he
du
le

d 
fo
r 
Th
ur
sd
ay
, 
J
un
e 
14
th
 w
il
l 
be
 

1
 

 
 
mo
ve
d 
to
 T
ue
sd
ay
, 
Ju
ne
 1
2t
h.
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
 M
em
be
r 
ha
ve
 a
n
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s 
or
 

3
 

 
 
wi
sh
 t
o 
ma
ke
 a
 s
ta
te
me
nt
?
 

4
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

5
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u,
 
Ri
ch
.
 

6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ok
ay
. 
 I
'd
 l
ik
e 
to
 r
eq
u
es
t 
a 
mo
ti
on
 t
o
 

7
 

 
 
pa
ss
 a
nd
 a
do
pt
 t
he
 f
ol
lo
wi
ng
 N
ew
 B
us
i
ne
ss
 i
te
ms
:
 

8
 

 
 
It
em
s 
1,
 2
A,
 2
B,
 2
C,
 3
, 
4,
 5
, 
6,
 a
nd
 
7.
 

9
 

 
 
  
  
 B
RO
NN
ER
: 
 S
o 
mo
ve
d.
 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
 C
HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
We
 h
av
e 
a 
m
ot
io
n.
 

1
1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
 w
e 
ha
ve
 a
 s
ec
on
d?
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
 O
'B
RI
EN
: 
 S
ec
on
d.
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
A 
se
co
nd
.
 

1
4
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Wi
ll
 t
he
 A
ss
is
ta
nt
 S
ec
r
et
ar
y 
pl
ea
se
 

1
5
 

 
 
ca
ll
 t
he
 r
ol
l?
 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Ce
rt
ai
nl
y.
  
On
 t
he
 m
o
ti
on
 a
nd
 

1
7
 

 
 
se
co
nd
, 
I 
wi
ll
 c
al
l 
th
e 
ro
ll
.
 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ms
. 
Br
on
ne
r?
 

1
9
 

 
 
  
  
 B
RO
NN
ER
: 
 Y
es
. 

2
0
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Fu
en
te
s?
 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
 F
UE
NT
ES
: 
 Y
es
. 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Go
et
z?
 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
 G
OE
TZ
: 
 Y
es
.

2
4
 

 
2
0 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
He
ll
er
? 

1
 

 
 
  
  
 H
EL
LE
R:
  
Ye
s.
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Ho
rn
e?
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
 H
OR
NE
: 
 Y
es
. 

4
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Ms
. 
Ju
ra
ce
k?
 

5
 

 
 
  
  
 J

UR
AC
EK
: 
 Y
es
. 

6
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Mc
Co
y?
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
 M
cC
OY
: 
 Y
es
. 

8
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
O'
Br
ie
n?
 

9
 

 
 
  
  
 O
'B
RI
EN
: 
 Y
es
. 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
 F

LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Ob
er
na
ge
l?
 

1
1
 

 
 
  
  
 O
BE
RN
AG
EL
: 
 Y
es
. 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Po
ol
e?
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
 P
OO
LE
: 
 Y
es
. 

1
4
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Ms
. 
Sm
oo
ts
? 

1
5
 

 
 
  
  
 S
MO
OT
S:
  
Ye
s.
 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Ze
ll
er
? 

1
7
 

 
 
  
  
 Z
EL
LE
R:
  
Ye
s.
 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
 F

LE
TC
HE
R:
  
An
d 
Mr
. 
Ch
ai
rm
an
?
 

1
9
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Ye
s.
 

2
0
 

 
 
  
  
 F

LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Mr
. 
Ch
ai
rm
an
, 
th
e 
mo
t
io
n 
ca
rr
ie
s.
 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u.

 
2
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ri
ch
? 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
Mo
vi
ng
 o
n,
 I
te
m 
8 
is
 
a 
su
bj
ec
t

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 72



 
2
1 

 
 
ma
tt
er
 d
is
cu
ss
io
n 
it
em
.
 

1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

It
em
 8
 i
s 
a 
st
at
us
 r
ep
o
rt
 o
n 
th
e
 

2
 

 
 
Au
th
or
it
y'
s 
As
se
t 
Ow
ne
rs
hi
p 
an
d 
Pr
oj
e
ct
 F
in
an
ce

 
3
 

 
 
Pr
og
ra
m,
 a
nd
 s
ec
on
dl
y,
 o
n 
th
e 
Il
li
no
i
s 
Me
di
um

-T
er
m 

4
 

 
 
He
al
th
ca
re
 F
in
an
ce
 P
ro
gr
am
. 
 
P
le
as
e 
n
ot
e 
th
at
 n
o 
vo
te
 

5
 

 
 
is
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
to
 -

- 
is
 r
eq
ui
re
d 
wi
th
 r
e
sp
ec
t 
to
 t
hi
s
 

6
 

 
 
Ag
en
da
 I
te
m.
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Re
ga
rd
in
g 
th
e 
Au
th
or
it
y
 A
ss
et
 

8
 

 
 
Ow
ne
rs
hi
p 
an
d 
Pr
oj
ec
t 
Fi
na
nc
e 
Pr
og
ra
m
, 
th
e 
Au
th
or
it
y
 

9
 

 
 
is
 w
or
ki
ng
 w
it
h 
on
e 
pr
os
pe
ct
iv
e 
bo
rr
o
we
r 
to
 d
ev
el
op
 a

 
1
0
 

 
 
fi
na
nc
ia
l 
st
ru
ct
ur
e 
an
d 
un
de
rs
ta
nd
s 
t
ha
t 
se
ve
ra
l
 

1
1
 

 
 
ot
he
r 
bo
rr
ow
er
s 
ar
e 
in
te
re
st
ed
 a
t 
th
i
s 
ti
me
.
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Re
ga
rd
in
g 
th
is
 s
ec
on
d 
p
ro
gr
am
, 
th
e
 

1
3
 

 
 
Me
di
um
-T
er
m 
He
al
th
ca
re
 F
in
an
ce
 P
ro
gr
a
m,
 t
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty
 

1
4
 

 
 
ha
s 
re
ce
iv
ed
 s
ev
er
al
 i
nq
ui
re
s 
ab
ou
t 
t
he
 p
ro
gr
am
. 
 W
e
 

1
5
 

 
 
wi
ll
 c
on
ti
nu
e 
to
 m
ai
l 
in
fo
rm
at
io
n 
ab
o
ut
 t
he
 p
ro
gr
am

 
1
6
 

 
 
to
 p
ro
sp
ec
ti
ve
 b
or
ro
we
rs
 a
s 
we
ll
 a
s 
m
ak
e 
fo
ll
ow

-u
p 

1
7
 

 
 
ca
ll
s.
 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
 M
em
be
r 
ha
ve
 a
n
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s 
or
 

1
9
 

 
 
wi
sh
 t
o 
ma
ke
 a
 s
ta
te
me
nt
?
 

2
0
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  

Th
an
k 
yo
u,
 
Ri
ch
. 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
 F
RA
MP
TO
N:
  
Ok
ay
. 
 T
ha
nk
 y
ou
.
 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Fi
na
nc
ia
l 
R
ep
or
ts
.

2
4
 

 
2
2 

 
 
  
  
 G
RA
ND
A:
  
Go
od
 m
or
ni
ng
, 
ev
er
yo
ne
.
  
I 
wi
ll
 b
e
 

1
 

 
 
pr
es
en
ti
ng
 t
he
 F
in
an
ci
al
 S
ta
te
me
nt
s 
a
s 
of
 M
ar
ch
 3
1s
t,

 
2
 

 
 
20
18
. 
 D
ue
 t
o 
th
e 
sh
or
t 
ti
me
 b
et
we
en
 
Ma
rc
h 
31
s
t
 a
nd
 

3
 

 
 
Bo
ar
d 
Bo
ok
 p
ri
nt
in
g,
 t
he
 F
in
an
ci
al
 S
t
at
em
en
ts
 a
lo
ng

 
4
 

 
 
wi
th
 t
he
 F
in
an
ci
al
 A
na
ly
si
s 
Me
mo
 i
s 
i
n 
yo
ur
 f
ol
de
rs
.
 

5
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Th
e 
fi
na
nc
ia
l 
hi
gh
li
gh
t
 f
or
 t
he
 

6
 

 
 
Ge
ne
ra
l 
Fu
nd
 i
s 
as
 f
ol
lo
ws
: 
Ou
r 
to
ta
l
 a
nn
ua
l 
re
ve
nu
es

 
7
 

 
 
ar
e 
at
 $
4.
2 
mi
ll
io
n 
an
d 
ar
e 
$1
.1
 o
r
 
3
8.
1 
pe
rc
en
t 

8
 

 
 
hi
gh
er
 t
ha
n 
bu
dg
et
. 
 T
hi
s 
is
 d
ue
 t
o 
h
ig
he
r 
cl
os
in
g
 

9
 

 
 
fe
es
 t
ha
t 
we
re
 g
en
er
at
ed
 i
n 
No
ve
mb
er
 
an
d 
De
ce
mb
er
.
 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
 M
ar
ch
, 
th
e 
Au
th
or
it
y
 g
en
er
at
ed
 

1
1
 

 
 
$2
22
,0
00
 i
n 
cl
os
in
g 
fe
es
, 
wh
ic
h 
is
 $
1
9,
00
0 
lo
we
r 
th
an

 
1
2
 

 
 
th
e 
mo
nt
hl
y 
bu
dg
et
 o
f 
$2
41
,0

00
. 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ou
r 
to
ta
l 
an
nu
al
 e
xp
en
s
es
 e
qu
al
s
 

1
4
 

 
 
$2
.5
 m
il
li
on
, 
an
d 
ar
e 
$4
54
,0
00
 o
r 
15
.
3 
pe
rc
en
t 
lo
we
r
 

1
5
 

 
 
th
an
 b
ud
ge
t,
 w
hi
ch
 w
as
 m
os
tl
y 
dr
iv
en
 
by
 a
 r
ed
uc
ti
on

 
1
6
 

 
 
in
 s
pe
nd
in
g 
on
 p
ro
fe
ss
io
na
l 
se
rv
ic
es
 
an
d
 

1
7
 

 
 
em
pl
oy
ee
-r
el
at
ed
 e
xp
en
se
s.
 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

In
 M
ar
ch
, 
th
e 
Au
th
or
it
y
 r
ec
or
de
d
 

1
9
 

 
 
op
er
at
in
g 
ex
pe
ns
es
 o
f 
$3
61
,0
00
, 
wh
ic
h
 w
as
 h
ig
he
r 
by

 
2
0
 

 
 
$5
2,
00
0 
fr
om
 t
he
 b
ud
ge
t 
am
ou
nt
 o
f 
$3
0
9,
00
0.
  
Th
e
 

2
1
 

 
 
va
ri
an
ce
 i
s 
du
e 
to
 a
 s
li
gh
t 
in
cr
ea
se
 
in
 p
ro
fe
ss
io
na
l
 

2
2
 

 
 
se
rv
ic
es
 d
ue
 t
o 
un
ti
me
ly
 r
ec
ei
pt
 o
f 
i
nv
oi
ce
s.
 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ou
r 
to
ta
l 
mo
nt
hl
y 
ne
t 
i
nc
om
e 
is
 a
t

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 73



 
2
3 

 
 
$6
4,
00
0,
 w
hi
ch
 w
as
 d
ri
ve
n 
by
 a
n 
un
ex
p
ec
te
d 
an
nu
al
 f
ee

 
1
 

 
 
fr
om
 F
C 
Ha
rr
is
 P
av
il
io
n 
Bo
nd
 i
ss
ue
 f
r
om
 2
00
4.
  
Th
e
 

2
 

 
 
an
nu
al
 f
ee
 w
as
 a
bo
ut
 $
70
,0
00
.
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ou
r 
to
ta
l 
an
nu
al
 n
et
 i
n
co
me
 i
s 
at
 $
1.
6
 

4
 

 
 
mi
ll
io
n.
  
Th
e 
ma
jo
r 
dr
iv
er
s 
of
 t
hi
s 
p
os
it
iv
e 
bo
tt
om
 

5
 

 
 
li
ne
 i
s 
du
e 
to
 t
he
 c
om
pr
es
se
d 
bo
nd
 p
r
oj
ec
t 
cl
os
in
g
 

6
 

 
 
ac
ti
vi
ty
 i
n 
No
ve
mb
er
 a
nd
 i
n 
De
ce
mb
er
 
of
 2
01
7 
as
 w
el
l
 

7
 

 
 
as
 l
ow
er
 t
ha
n 
ex
pe
ct
ed
 e
xp
en
se
s.
 

8
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ou
r 
ge
ne
ra
l 
fu
nd
 c
on
ti
n
ue
s 
to
 m
ai
nt
ai
n
 

9
 

 
 
a 
st
ro
ng
 b
al

an
ce
 s
he
et
 w
it
h 
a 
ne
t 
po
s
it
io
n 
of
 $
58
.3
 

1
0
 

 
 
mi
ll
io
n,
 a
nd
 u
nr
es
tr
ic
te
d 
ca
sh
 a
nd
 i
n
ve
st
me
nt
s 
of

 
1
1
 

 
 
ab
ou
t 
$4
5 
mi
ll
io
n.
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

As
 m
os
t 
of
 y
ou
 k
no
w,
 b
a
ck
 i
n
 

1
3
 

 
 
Se
pt
em
be
r 
12
 o
f 
20
17
, 
th
e 
Au
th
or
it
y 
i
ss
ue
d 
th
e 
Cl
ea
n
 

1
4
 

 
 
Wa
te
r 
In
it
ia
ti
ve
 B
on
ds
 S
er
ie
s 
20
17
 o
n
 b
e
h
al
f 
of
 t
he
 

1
5
 

 
 
Il
li
no
is
 E
nv
ir
on
me
nt
al
 P
ro
te
ct
io
n 
Ag
e
nc
y 
in
 t
he

 
1
6
 

 
 
am
ou
nt
 o
f 
ab
ou
t 
$5
60
 m
il
li
on
. 
 A
s 
of
 
Ma
rc
h 
31
st
,
 

1
7
 

 
 
20
18
, 
$3
73
.1
 m
il
li
on
 o
r 
63
.4
 p
er
ce
nt
 
of
 t
he
 S
er
ie
s 

--
 

1
8
 

 
 
of
 t
he
 S
er
ie
s 
20
17
 h
av
e 
be
en
 d
is
bu
rs
e
d 
to
 p
ro
je
ct
s.

 
1
9
 

 
 
A 
li
st
in
g 
of
 t
ho
se
 p
ro
je
ct
s 
ar
e
 
in
cl
u
de
d 
in
 y
ou
r 

2
0
 

 
 
ma
ni
la
 f
ol
de
rs
. 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ar
e 
th
er
e 
an
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s
 o
n 
th
e
 

2
2
 

 
 
Fi
na
nc
ia
l 
An
al
ys
is
? 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)

2
4
 

 
2
4 

 
 
  
  
 G
RA
ND
A:
  
Al
l 
ri
gh
t.
  
Mo
vi
ng
 o
n 
t
o 
ou
r 
fa
vo
ri
te

 
1
 

 
 
to
pi
c,
 w
hi
ch
 i
s 
Au
di
t.
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

As
 M
s.
 B
ro
nn
er
 m
en
ti
on
e
d,
 o
n
 

3
 

 
 
Ap
ri
l 
3r
d,
 2
01
7,
 t
he
 A
ud
it
 P
lu
s 
Co
mm
i
tt
ee
 m
et
. 
 T
he

 
4
 

 
 
Fi
sc
al
 Y
ea
r 
20
17
 F
in
an
ci
al
 A
ud
it
 a
nd
 
th
e 
Tw
o
-
Ye
ar
 

5
 

 
 
20
16
 a
nd
 2
01
7 
Co
mp
li
an
ce
 E
xa
mi
na
ti
on
 
we
re
 d
is
cu
ss
ed
.
 

6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Th
e 
Au
th
or
it
y 
ha
d 
ni
ne
 
ma
te
ri
al
 

7
 

 
 
fi
nd
in
gs
 a
nd
 s
ev
en
 i
mm
at
er
ia
l 
fi
nd
in
g
s.
  
Th
e 
fi
nd
in
gs

 
8
 

 
 
we
re
 d
is
cu
ss
ed
 i
n 
th
e 
Ap
ri
l 
3r
d 
me
et
i
ng
 a
nd
 a
n 
au
di
t
 

9
 

 
 
fi
nd
in
g 
tr
ac
ki
ng
 p
la
n 
wa
s 
pr
es
en
te
d.
 
 A
 c
op
y 
of
 t
ha
t
 

1
0
 

 
 
au
di
t 
tr
ac
ki
ng
 -

- 
fi
nd
 -

- 
au
di
t 
fi
nd
i
ng
 t
ra
ck
in
g 
pl
an
 

1
1
 

 
 
is
 i
nc
lu
de
d 
in
 y
ou
r 
fo
ld
er
s.
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Fi
ve
 o
f 
th
e 
ni
ne
 m
at
er
i
al
 f
in
di
ng
s 
an
d
 

1
3
 

 
 
si
x 
of
 t
he
 i
mm
at
er
ia
l 
fi
nd
in
gs
 h
av
e 
b
ee
n 
ad
dr
es
se
d
 

1
4
 

 
 
an
d 
co
rr
ec
te
d.
  
Th
e 
Au
th
or
it
y 
wi
ll
 c
o
nt
in
ue
 t
o 
wo
rk

 
1
5
 

 
 
on
 t
he
 r
em
ai
ni
ng
 f
in
di
ng
s.
 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Fi
na
ll
y,
 t
he
 C
en
tr
al
 M
a
na
ge
me
nt
 

1
7
 

 
 
Se
rv
ic
es
 i
nt
er
na
l 
au

di
to
rs
, 
al
so
 p
re
s
en
t 
at
 t
he
 

1
8
 

 
 
me
et
in
g,
 t
he
y 
pr
es
en
te
d 
a 
dr
af
t 
of
 t
h
e 

--
 o
ne
 o
f 
th
e 

1
9
 

 
 
dr
af
ts
 o
f 
th
e 
au
di
ts
 t
ha
t 
th
ey
 h
av
e 
p
er
fo
rm
ed
. 
 T
he
y
 

2
0
 

 
 
di
d 
re
po
rt
 t
wo
 m
at
er
ia
l 
fi
nd
in
gs
 a
nd
 
on
e 
im
ma
te
ri
al

 
2
1
 

 
 
fi
nd
in
gs
. 
 T
he
se
 f
in
di
ng
s 
ar
e 
si
mi
la
r
 f
in
di
ng
s 
th
at

 
2
2
 

 
 
we
re
 a
lr
ea
dy
 d
is
cu
ss
ed
 i
n 
th
e 
Co
mp
li
a
nc
e
 

2
3
 

 
 
Ex
am
in
at
io
ns
. 
 T
he
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty
 w
il
l 
co
n
ti
nu
e 
to
 w
or
k 
on

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 74



 
2
5 

 
 
ad
dr
es
si
ng
 a
nd
 c
or
re
ct
in
g 
th
es
e 
fi
nd
i
ng
s.
 

1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Ar
e 
th
er
e 
an
y 
qu
es
ti
on
s
?
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
 G
RA
ND
A:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u.
 

4
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Le
t 
th

e 
re
co
rd
 r
ef
le
c
t,
 p
le
as
e,
 

5
 

 
 
be
fo
re
 w
e 
ta
ke
 a
 v
ot
e 
to
 c
on
si
de
r 
fi
n
an
ci
al
 r
ep
or
ts
,
 

6
 

 
 
Me
mb
er
 O
'B
ri
en
 b
ri
ef
ly
 e
xi
te
d 
th
e 
ro
o
m.
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
 C
HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u,
 
Si
x.
  
I'
d 
li
ke

 
8
 

 
 
to
 r
eq
ue
st
 a
 m
ot
io
n 
to
 a
cc
ep
t 
th
e 
Fi
n
an
ci
al
 R
ep
or
ts
.
 

9
 

 
 
  
  
 P
OO
LE
: 
 S
o 
mo
ve
d.
 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
 C
HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Is
 t
he
re
 s
u
ch
 a
 m
ot
io
n?
 

1
1
 

 
 
  
  
 F
UE
NT
ES
: 
 S
ec
on
d.
 

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
A 
mo
ti
on
 a
n
d 
a 
se
co
nd
.
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Al
l 
th
os
e 
in
 f
av
or
? 

1
4
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(C
ho
ru
s 
of
 a
ye
s.
) 

1
5
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Op
po
se
d?
 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

1
7
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
e 
ay
es
 h
a
ve
 i
t.
 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Pr
oc
ur
em
en
t 
Re
po
rt
. 

1
9
 

 
 
  
  
 M
EI
ST
ER
: 
 T
he
 A
ss
oc
ia
te
 G
en
er
al
 
Co
un
se
l,
 R
ya
n
 

2
0
 

 
 
Oe
ch
sl
er
, 
wi
ll
 b
e 
pr
es
en
ti
ng
 t
he
 P
ro
c
ur
em
en
t 
Re
po
rt

 
2
1
 

 
 
be
ca
us
e 
Mr
. 
Fr
an
ze
n 
is
 i
ll
 t
od
ay
.
 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
 O
EC
HS
LE
R:
  
Th

an
k 
yo
u.
  
Go
od
 m
or
n
in
g,
 

2
3
 

 
 
Mr
. 
Ch
ai
rm
an
, 
Me
mb
er
s 
of
 t
he
 B
oa
rd
.

2
4
 

 
2
6 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Fr
om
 t
he
 P
ro
cu
re
me
nt
 R
e
po
rt
, 
yo
u 
ca
n
 

1
 

 
 
se
e 
th
at
 w
e 
ha
ve
 e
xe
cu
te
d 
th
e 
fi
na
nc
i
al
 a
dv
is
or

 
2
 

 
 
ex
te
ns
io
n 
to
 a
ll
ow
 t
im
e 
fo
r 
a 
re
qu
es
t
 f
or
 p
ro
po
sa
l
 

3
 

 
 
pr
oc
es
s.
  
We
'v
e 
al
so
 e
xe
cu
te
d 
a 
nu
mb

e
r 
of
 s
ma
ll
 

4
 

 
 
pu
rc
ha
se
s 
to
 s
up
po
rt
 A
ut
ho
ri
ty
 o
pe
ra
t
io
ns
, 
an
d 
we
 n
ow

 
5
 

 
 
us
e 
th
e 
ne
w 
St
at
e 
e-

pr
oc
ur
em
en
t 
sy
st
e
m 
ca
ll
ed
 B
id
Bu
y
 

6
 

 
 
fo
r 
ma
ny
 o
f 
th
es
e 
pu
rc
ha
se
s.
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

If
 t
he
re
 a
ny
 q
ue
st
io
ns
,
 I
'l
l 
do
 m
y
 

8
 

 
 
be
st
 t
o 
an
sw
er
. 

9
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
 O
EC
HS
LE
R:
  
Th
an
k 
yo
u.
 

1
1
 

 
 
  
  
 C
HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Co
rr
ec
ti
on
 
an
d 
Ap
pr
ov
al
 o
f
 

1
2
 

 
 
Mi
nu
te
s.
 

1
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Do
es
 a
ny
on
e 
wi
sh
 t
o 
ma
k
e 
an
y
 

1
4
 

 
 
ad
di
ti
on
s,
 e
di
ts
, 
or
 c
or
re
ct
io
ns
 t
o 
t
he
 M
in
ut
es
 f
ro
m
 

1
5
 

 
 
Fe
br
ua
ry
 8
th
 o
r 
Fe
br
ua
ry
 1
5t
h 
of
 t
hi
s
 y
ea
r?
 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

1
7
 

 
 
  
  
 C
HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
He
ar
in
g 
no
n
e,
 I
'd
 l
ik
e 
to
 

1
8
 

 
 
re
qu
es
t 
a 
mo
ti
on
 t
o 
ap
pr
ov
e 
ea
ch
 o
f 
t
he
 M
in
ut
es
.
 

1
9
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Is
 t
he
re
 s
uc
h 
a 
mo
ti
on
? 

2
0
 

 
 
  
  
 B
RO
NN
ER
: 
 S
o 
mo
ve
d.
 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
 O
BE
RN
AG
EL
: 
 S
ec
on
d.
 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:

  
A 
mo
ti
on
 a
n
d 
a 
se
co
nd
.
 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Al
l 
th
os
e 
in
 f
av
or
?

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 75



 
2
7 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(C
ho
ru
s 
of
 a
ye
s.
) 

1
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Op
po
se
d?
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
e 
ay
es
 h
a
ve
 i
t.
 

4
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Is
 t
he
re
 a
ny
 o
th
er
 b
us
i
ne
ss
 t
o 

co
me
 

5
 

 
 
be
fo
re
 t
he
 M
em
be
rs
? 

6
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

7
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
He
ar
in
g 
no
n
e,
 i
s 
th
er
e 
an
y
 

8
 

 
 
ma
tt
er
 o
f 
di
sc
us
si
on
 
-
- 
fo
r 
di
sc
us
si
o
n 
in
 c
lo
se
d
 

9
 

 
 
se
ss
io
n?
 

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

1
1
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Ok
ay
. 
 T
he
 
ne
xt
 r
eg
ul
a
r 

1
2
 

 
 
me
et
in
g 
wi
ll
 b
e 
Ma
y 
8t
h,
 a
nd
 I
'd
 l
ik
e
 t
o 
re
qu
es
t 
a
 

1
3
 

 
 
mo
ti
on
 t
o 
ad
jo
ur
n.
 

1
4
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Is
 t
he
re
 s
uc
h 
a 
mo
ti
on
? 

1
5
 

 
 
  
  
 M
R.
 H
OR
NE
: 
 S
o 
mo
ve
d.
 

1
6
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
A 
mo
ti
on
 
-
- 

1
7
 

 
 
  
  
 M
cC
OY
: 
 S
ec
on
d.
 

1
8
 

 
 
  
  
 C
HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  

--
 a
nd
 a
 s
e
co
nd
. 

1
9
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Al
l 
th
os
e 
in
 f
av
or
? 

2
0
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(C
ho
ru
s 
of
 a
ye
s.
) 

2
1
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Op
po
se
d?
 

2
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(N
o 
re
sp
on
se
.)
 

2
3
 

 
 
  
  
 C

HA
IR
MA
N 
AN
DE
RB
ER
G:
  
Th
e 
ay
es
 h
a
ve
 i
t.

2
4
 

 
2
8 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Th
an
k 
yo
u,
 e
ve
ry
bo
dy
. 

1
 

 
 
  
  
 F
LE
TC
HE
R:
  
Th
e 
ti
me
 i
s 
10
:0

7 
a.
m
. 

2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

(W
he
re
up
on
 
th
e 
ma
tt
er
 

3
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
a
bo
ve
 w
as
 
ad
jo
ur
ne
d.
)
 

4
 

 
  

5
 

 
  

6
 

 
  

7
 

 
  

8
 

 
  

9
 

 
  

1
0
 

 
  

1
1
 

 
  

1
2
 

 
  

1
3
 

 
  

1
4
 

 
  

1
5
 

 
  

1
6
 

 
  

1
7
 

 
  

1
8
 

 
  

1
9
 

 
  

2
0
 

 
  

2
1
 

 
  

2
2
 

 
  

2
3
 

 
 

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 76



 
2
9 

 
 
ST
AT
E 
OF
 I
LL
IN
OI
S.
  
)
 

1
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

) 
SS
: 

 
 
CO
UN
TY
 O
F 
CO
OK
  
  
  
)
 

2
 

 
 
  
  
  

Br
ad
 B
en
ja
mi
n,
 b
ei
ng
 f
ir
st
 d
ul
y
 s
wo
rn
 o
n 
oa
th
,
 

3
 

 
 
sa
ys
 t
ha
t 
he
 i
s 
a 
Ce
rt
if
ie
d 
Sh
or
th
an
d
 R
ep
or
te
r,
 t
ha
t
 

4
 

 
 
he
 r
ep
or
te
d 
in
 s
ho
rt
ha
nd
 t
he
 p
ro
ce
ed
i
ng
s 
gi
ve
n 
at
 t
he

 
5
 

 
 
ta
ki
ng
 o
f 
sa
id
 h
ea
ri
ng
, 
an
d 
th
at
 t
he
 
fo
re
go
in
g 
is
 a

 
6
 

 
 
tr
ue
 a
nd
 c
or
re
ct
 t
ra
ns
cr
ip
t 
of
 h
is

 s
h
or
th
an
d 
no
te
s 
so
 

7
 

 
 
ta
ke
n 
as
 a
fo
re
sa
id
 a
nd
 c
on
ta
in
s 
al
l 
t
he
 p
ro
ce
ed
in
gs

 
8
 

 
 
gi
ve
n 
at
 s
ai
d 
Il
li
no
is
 F
in
an
ce
 A
ut
ho
r
it
y 
Me
et
in
g.

 
9
 

 
  

1
0
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

1
1
 

 
  

1
2
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
 C

er
ti
fi
ed
 S
ho
rt
ha
nd
 R
ep
or
t
er
 

 
 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

No
. 
 0
84
-0
04
80
5 

1
3
 

 
  

1
4
 

 
  

1
5
 

 
  

1
6
 

 
  

1
7
 

 
  

1
8
 

 
  

1
9
 

 
  

2
0
 

 
  

2
1
 

 
  

2
2
 

 
  

2
3
 

 
  

2
4
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 77



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

APPROVAL OF REQUEST TO PARTICIPATE VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE 
ADOPTED 

 
  
April 10, 2018 
 
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole  
Y Fuentes Y Knox Y Smoots 
NV Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
  

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 78



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

APRIL 10, 2018 AGENDA OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 
ADOPTED 

 
 
April 10, 2018 
 
14 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole  
Y Fuentes Y Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 79



NO. 01 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2018-0410-TE01 
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND – 2018 BLUE ISLAND LLC (BETTER HOUSING 

FOUNDATION BLUE STATION PROJECT) 
FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 

PASSED* 
 

 
April 10, 2018 
 
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Fuentes NV Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
  

 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 80



NO. 2A 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2018-0410-TE2A 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – JOSHUA P. AND NICHOLE E. HOOKS 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
April 10, 2018 
 
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Fuentes NV Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
  

 
 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 81



NO. 2B 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2018-0410-TE2B 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – JORDAN WEIDNER 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 
April 10, 2018 
 
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Fuentes NV Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
  

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 82



NO. 2C 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2018-0410-TE2C 
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND – JUSTIN PROBST 

FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION) 
PASSED* 

 
 

 
April 10, 2018 
 
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Fuentes NV Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
  

 
 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 83



NO. 03 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2018-0410-DA03 
PARTICIPATION LOAN – NEIGHBORHOODS.COM, LLC 

PASSED* 
 

 
April 10, 2018 
 
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Fuentes NV Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
  

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 84



NO. 04 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2018-0410-TE04 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 

A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF 
DECEMBER 1, 2010 UNDER WHICH THE BONDS WERE ISSUED AND SOLD TO 
WHEATON BANK & TRUST COMPANY AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF 

CERTAIN OTHER AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS; AND 
RELATED MATTERS (ST. FRANCIS HIGH SCHOOL COLLEGE PREPARATORY 

PROJECT) 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
April 10, 2018 
 
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Fuentes NV Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
  

 
 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 85



NO. 05 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2018-0410-AP05 
RESOLUTION TO ACCEPT THE FISCAL YEAR 2017 FINANCIAL AUDIT 
AND THE FISCAL YEARS 2016 & 2017 COMPLIANCE EXAMINATION 

ADOPTED* 
 

 
April 10, 2018 
 
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Fuentes NV Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
  

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 86



NO. 06 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2018-0410-AP06 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO ENTER 

INTO ONE OR MORE CONTRACTS WITH MESIROW INSURANCE 
SERVICES, INC. AND ONE OR MORE OF ITS AFFILIATES OR OTHER 

PROVIDERS FOR THE PROVISION OF INSURANCE BROKERAGE AND 
OTHER INSURANCE SERVICES, INCLUDING EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

ADOPTED* 
 

 
April 10, 2018 
 
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Fuentes NV Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
  

 
 

 
  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 87



NO. 07 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
ROLL CALL 

RESOLUTION 2018-0410-GP07 
RESOLUTION APPROVING CHANGES IN THE DATES OF REGULAR 

MEETINGS FOR THE REMAINDER OF FISCAL YEAR 2018 
ADOPTED* 

 
 
April 10, 2018 
 
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Fuentes NV Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller Y O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
 * – Consent Agenda 
  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 88



 
 
 

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 
VOICE VOTE 

FEBRUARY 8, 2018 MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS AND 
FEBRUARY 15, 2018 MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MEMBERS 

ADOPTED 
 

 
April 10, 2018 
 
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT 
 
Y Bronner Y Juracek Y Poole 
Y Fuentes NV Knox Y Smoots 
Y Goetz 

(VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE) 
Y McCoy Y Zeller 

Y Heller NV O’Brien Y Mr. Chairman 
Y Horne Y Obernagel   
 
  
  

 
 
 

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 89


	AGENDA A 2018-05 (v7)
	AGENDA B 2018-05 (v7)
	AGENDA C 2018-05 (v7)
	Executive Director Msg May 8 2018 (v6)
	01 PUBLIC Beginning Farmer Bond Summary - May 2018 (v2)
	02 Blanco-PSD Printing IFA Credit Write-up (v3) TNR Font
	03 Carmel Catholic High School Amend 2018-05 (v3)
	04 Chicago Symphony Orchestra Amend 2018-05 (v2)
	05 Cantigny Foundation - Amendment 2018-05-08 (v3)
	06 Cinnamon Lake Towers - Memo and Resolution - 2nd Amended and Restated Reg Agrmt (v4)
	07 Riverside Memo_Resolution (vFinal)
	Riverside Health System Part 1 - Memorandum
	Riverside Health System_Amendment Resolution for Series 2015 Bond Trust Indenture - Part 2
	IFA Resolution No. 2018-0508-TE07
	Illinois Finance Authority
	Executive Director


	08 DACA Memo_Resolution (vFinal)
	FINANCIALS A Financial Analysis April (v2brad)
	FINANCIALS B 2018 APR MONTHLY FINANCIALS Board
	INC ST-GEN FUND
	BAL-SHT gen

	FINANCIALS C State Receivables Analysis -  April 18
	Treasur Report 01-Bonds Issued Fiscal Year Three Year 4-30-2018 Final 
	Treasury Report 02-Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year-Board Book-Activity Report
	Treasury Report 03- Schedule of Debt 040302018
	Procurement BOD monthly Procurement Report May 8 2018 Final
	MINUTES A Cover Memo 04102018 (v1)
	MINUTES B Tiled 041018-board-special-meeting-minutes
	MINUTES C 041018-board-voting-record



